
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. 0. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
February 28, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, February 28, 2019, 
in the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda. 
Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available at the entrance to the Board Room) 
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter 
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment. 

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted. 

Items placed under "consent calendar" are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved, 
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a 
Director or from a member of the audience. 

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as 
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who 
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made 
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please 
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. 

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing 
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the 
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail. 

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website 
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email 
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART /subscriber/new?topic id=CA TRANBART 
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets 
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website and bart.legistar.com no later than 48 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in 
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or 
telephone 510-464-6083. 

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



Regular Meeting of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and·take such action as the Board may desire 
in connection with: · 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

. A. Roll Call. 
B. Pledge of Allegiance. 
C. Introduction of Special Guests. 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of February 14, 2019.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

B. Employee Relocation Assistance for the Chief Planning, Development 
and Construction Officer and Managing Director, Capitol Corridor.* 
Board request to authorize. 

C. District Base Pay Schedule.* Board requested to authorize. 

D. Resolution Authorizing Execution of BART to Antioch Extension 
Application for the Fiscal Year 2019 Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program (LCTOP). * Board requested to adopt. 

E. Lease Extension with 19th and Broadway LLC, for the 19th Street Bike 
Station.* Board requested to authorize. 

F. Fiscal Year 2019 Second Quarter Financial Report.* For information. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT- IS Minutes 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at 
the end of the Meeting.) 

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 
Director Simon, Chairperson 

A. Financial Outlook for Fiscal Year 2020. * For information. 

* Attachment available 2 of4 



5. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS 
Director Foley, Chairperson 

A. Agreements for Professional Service Agreements to Provide Architectural 
and General Engineering Services for BART Projects.* 

a. Agreement No. 6M8142, with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. 
b. Agreement No. 6M8143, with HDR Engineering, Inc. 
c. Agreement No. 6M8144, with HNTB Corporation/FMG 

Architects, a Joint Venture 
d. Agreement No. 6M8145, with Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 
e. · Agreement No. 6M8146, with Parsons Transportation Group, Inc. 
f. Agreement No. 6M8147, with PGH Wong Engineering, Inc. 
g. Agreement No. 6M8148, with T.Y. Lin International/Transit 

Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint Venture 
h. Agreement No. 6M8149, with WSP USA Inc. 

Board requested to authorize. 

B. Quarterly Performance Report, Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2019 - Service 
Performance Review.* For information. 

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS 
Director Raburn, Chairperson 

A. Surveillance Technology Approvals - BART Research Methodologies.* 
a. Surveillance Use Policy. 
b. Surveillance Impact Report. 

Board requested to authorize. 

B. State Legislation for Consideration.* Board requested to authorize. 

C. Amendment No. 10 to Lease at 300 Lakeside Drive,'Oakland with\ 
SIC-Lakeside Drive, LLC.* Board requested to authorize. 

7. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative, 
and Roll Call for Introductions Items. 

8. BOARDMATTERS' 

A. Board Member Reports. 
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are available 
through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board members to report 
on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.) 

B. Roll Call for Introductions. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future 
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.) 

C. In Memoriam. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.) 

* Attachment available . 3 of4 



9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under their 
jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 

10. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room) 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS: 
Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager; Michael Jones, 

Assistant General Manager, Administration; and Martin Gran, 
Chief Employee Relations Officer 

Employee Organizations: (1) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555; 
(2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal 

Employees, Local 3993; 
(3) BART Police Officers Association; 
(4) BART Police Managers Association; 
(5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; and 
(6) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021, 

BART Professional Chapter 
(7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all) 

Government Code Section: 54957.6 

11. OPEN SESSION 

* Attachment available 4 of4 



  

-1- 

 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

 

Board of Directors 

Minutes of the 1,832nd Meeting 

February 14, 2019 

 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held February 14, 2019, convening at 9:05 a.m. 

in the Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California.  President Dufty presided; 

Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

 

Directors present: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and 

Dufty. 

 

                Absent: Director Allen. 

 

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were: 

           

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of January 10, 2019 and January 24 

and 25, 2019. 

 

2. No Cost Change Order to Agreement No. 6M4282, Investigative Services 

with Frasco, Inc. 

 

3. Award of Agreement No. 6M3421, Traffic Control Services for C55 and 

R65 Interlocking Projects. 

 

4. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9051, Train Operator Uniforms. 

 

5. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9053, Brake Lining, Bonded Assembly. 

 

Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit.  Director McPartland seconded the 

motions, which carried by unanimous electronic vote.  Ayes – 8: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, 

McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty.  Noes - 0.  Absent – 1: Director Allen. 

 

1. That the Minutes of the Meetings of January 10, 2019 and January 24 and 

25, 2019, be approved. 

 

2. That the General Manager be authorized to extend the time of 

performance under Agreement No. 6M4282, Investigative Services, with 

Frasco, Inc. for an additional six months to September 30, 2019; with the 

original not-to-exceed amount for the Agreement to remain at 

$1,441,875.00. 

 

3. That the General Manager be authorized to award Agreement No. 6M3421 

to CMC Traffic Control Specialists for Traffic Control Services for C55 

and R65 Interlocking construction projects, for an amount not to exceed 



  

-2- 

$345,130.00, pursuant to the notice to be issued by the General Manager 

and subject to the District’s protest procedures. 

 

4. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 

9051, an estimated quantity contract, for the procurement of Train 

Operator Uniforms to Galls, LLC, for the amount of $767,115.26, 

including taxes, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General 

Manager, subject to compliance with the District’s protest procedures. 

 

5. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 

9053 for Brake Lining, Bonded Assembly, to Railroad Friction Products 

for an amount of $691,425.00 including tax, pursuant to notification to be 

issued by the General Manger, subject to compliance with the District’s 

protest procedures. 

 

(The foregoing two motions were made on the basis of analysis by the 

staff and certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available 

for this purpose.) 

 

President Dufty called for Public Comment.  The following individuals addressed the Board: 

 

Susan Donahue 

Charlotta Wallace  

 

President Dufty brought the matter of Fruitvale Station Street Name before the Board.   

 

The following individuals addressed the Board: 

Cephus Johnson 

Julie Wedge 

George Galvis 

Annie Banks 

Wanda Johnson 

Fredrick Andrews 

Nancy Scott 

Jose Luis Pavon 

Desley Brooks 

Marlene Sanchez 

 

The item was discussed. 

 

Director Raburn moved that the Board adopt Resolution No. 5393, In the Matter of Naming a 

Road for Oscar Grant III.  Director Simon seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous 

electronic vote.  Ayes – 8: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, 

and Dufty.  Noes - 0.  Absent – 1: Director Allen. 

 

 

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, had no report. 

 



  

-3- 

Director Foley, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter of 

Award of Contract No. 11IA-112, Civic Center Stairs Project, before the Board.  Ms. Tamar 

Allen, Assistant General Manager, Operations; and Mr. Kevin Reeg, Project Manager, 

Maintenance and Engineering, presented the item.  The item was discussed. 

 

Director Simon moved that the General Manger be authorized to award Contract No. 11IA-112, 

Civic Center Station Scissor Stairs Project, to Wickman Development and Construction for the 

Bid price of $5,734,100.00, pursuant to the notice to be issued by the General Manager and 

subject to the District’s protest procedures.  Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which 

carried by unanimous electronic vote.  Ayes – 8: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, 

Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty.  Noes - 0.  Absent – 1: Director Allen. 

 

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation 

Committee, had no report. 

 

President Dufty called for the General Manager’s Report. 

 

General Manager Grace Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she 

had participated in, ridership, upcoming events, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions 

items.  Ms. Allen; Ms. Rachel Russell, Senior Planner; and Ms. Kerry Hamill, Assistant General 

Manager, External Affairs, gave a report on the implementation of the 5AM opening time.  Ms. 

Russell reported on addressing customer concerns and the benefits of the use of the BART 

Official Application.  Ms. Allen gave a report on the Transbay Tube construction, activity and 

steel installation, and Ms. Hamill reported on response from customers. 

 

Discussion continued. 

 

President Dufty brought the matter of Resolution Commending Steve Heminger before the 

Board.  The item was presented by General Manager, Grace Crunican. 

 

Director Raburn moved adoption of the Resolution No. 5394, Commending Steve Heminger.  

Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote.  Ayes – 8: 

Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty.  Noes - 0.  Absent 

– 1: Director Allen. 

 

President Dufty called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In 

Memoriam. 

 

Director McPartland reported he had attended the Transbay Tube drill, Millbrae and Coliseum 

military drill bayet, and the Alameda County Emergency Managers meeting. 

 

Director Foley thanked Ariel Mercado of Government and Community Relations.  He reported 

he had attended the Friday morning Breakfast Club of Antioch, the Mayor’s Conference of 

Contra Costa County, a point-in-time homeless count at the Antioch eBART Station, and had 

met with Brentwood Mayor, City Manager, and City Council and with the Mayor of Antioch.   

 

Director Saltzman reported she had addressed the Orinda City Council and had attended the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) Transit Fare integration seminar. 



  

-4- 

 

Director Simon thanked Ariel Mercado and Maisha Everhart of the Government and Community 

Relations Department for their support, and BART Real Estate staff for their attendance at the 

City of Oakland Planning Commission discussion of the West Oakland development.  She 

reported she had addressed the Pinole City Council, Richmond Rotary Club, and South Berkeley 

Community Association; and that she had met with Wendy Still, Alameda County Chief 

Probation Officer.   

 

Director Simon requested an In Memorium for aManda Greene, Youth Impact Hub – Urban 

Roots Oakland.   

 

Director Li thanked staff for their assistance with BART activities.  She reported she had 

attended the Transbay Tube drill with Director McPartland, the MTC Transit Fare integration 

seminar, the San Francisco Labor and Community Martin Luther King (MLK) Jr. Breakfast, and 

the San Francisco Chamber of Commerce City Beat Breakfast. 

 

Director Raburn reported he had attended Mayor London Breed’s economic forecast, the Capitol 

Corridor Joint Powers Authority Board meeting, the MTC Transit Fare integration seminar, a 

presentation on safe routes to BART - Transportation Forum in the Fruitvale District, a SPUR 

meeting on Transit Oriented Development, the Diridon Station Area Joint Policy Advisory Board 

meeting, a meeting with the Alameda County Grand Jury Association, the Chinese Lunar New 

Year Celebration in Downtown Oakland, the BART MLK Celebration, a Bay Area Council 

Transportation Committee meeting, and had observed the Women’s March at Lake Merritt 

Station. 

 

Director Ames reported she had attended the Fremont Mobility Task Force and met with the 

Deputy City Manager of Union City on an access gap at the Union City Station. 

 

President Dufty thanked the staff for the Board Workshop.  He reported he had attended the 

MLK Labor and Community Breakfast, and the San Francisco Chamber of Commerce City Beat 

Breakfast, had toured the Milpitas and Berryessa/North San Jose Stations, had given an update 

on the Bike Pod at Mission Branch Library, and had met with San Francisco Supervisor Hillary 

Ronen and Caroline Samponaro.   

 

President Dufty called for Public Comment: 

 

Jerry Grace addressed the Board. 

 

President Dufty announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Items 10-A and 

10-B (Conference with Legal Counsel) of the regular meeting agenda, and that the Board would 

reconvene in open session upon the conclusion of the closed session. 

 

The Board Meeting recessed at 11:18 a.m. 

 

 

 

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 11:25 a.m. 

 



  

-5- 

Directors present: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon. 

 

                 Absent: Director Allen.  President Dufty entered the meeting later. 

 

President Dufty entered the meeting. 

 

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:47 p.m. 

 

 

 

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 12:48 p.m. 

 

Directors present: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon and 

Dufty. 

 

                 Absent: Director Allen. 

 

President Dufty reported there were no announcements to be made. 

 

President Dufty reported that he would adjourn the meeting in honor of Deslar Patton, former 

President of BART Service Employees International Union Professional Chapter. 

 

The Meeting was adjourned at 12:51 p.m. in memory of Deslar Patton and aManda Greene.  

 

       Patricia K. Williams  

       District Secretary 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Board Approval and Authorization 

DATE: 2/4/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Gia Hole eral Counsel Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

D.~•::• Romm, Ad~t,otioo 

S,gutm/~ 'Iii 11 

. I J . 

Employee Relocation Assistance for Chief Planning, Development and Construction 
Officer and Managing Director, Capitol Corridor 

PURPOSE: 
To authorize the General Manager to approve employee relocation assistance for the 
following two positions: Chief Planning, Development and Construction Officer; and 
Managing Director, Capitol Corridor. 

DISCUSSION: 
On March 11, 1993, the Board adopted Resolution 4487, which requires Board approval 
prior to any recruiting activity to employ a person who is not a current District employee for 
an annual salary of $50,000 or more. The resolution also states that the District should 
confine its recruiting to the State of California, consistent with provisions of the law, and that 
no relocation or moving expenses would be offered to new employees without prior Board 
approval. 

The Chief Planning, Development and Construction Officer is a senior-level management 
position. The Managing Director, Capitol Corridor is an executive-level management 
position. Each position requires specialized skills derived from unique managerial and 
technical experience. 

Specifically, the Chief Planning, Development and Construction Officer, under the direction 
of the Assistant General Manager, Planning, Development and Construction (PD&C), will 
provide strategic leadership and direction in the implementation of Phase II of the BART 
Extension to Silicon Valley. Responsibilities include the design and construction of this 
critical regional BART extension project, contract administration, project finance and 
administration, systems integration, and oversight for all other capital program areas. 



Employee Relocation Assistance for Chief Planning, Development and Construction Officer and Managing (cont.) 

The Chief will have lead responsibility for the direct supervision of several Group Managers 
in key engineering disciplines including tunneling, system, rail yard/shop facilities, and station 
construction. In addition to exercising leadership in managing assigned work, incumbents 
participate in the development and implementation of departmental goals, objectives, policies 
and priorities for assigned service areas, and may serve as the Assistant General Manager, 
PD&C in his/her absence. 

The Managing Director, Capitol Corridor will provide strategic leadership and direction on 
day-to-day activities and operations of the Capitol Corridor passenger rail services 
program. The Managing Director will provide highly complex executive management 
support to the General Manager and Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Board in the execution 
of long and short-term plans related to the operations, management and delivery of Capitol 
Corridor passenger rail services. In addition, the Managing Director will develop and direct 
the implementation and execution of policies, plans, procedures and programs related to the 
administration and management of the Capitol Corridor passenger rail service; review 
legislation, evaluate impact and recommend and implement policy and procedural 
improvements; and manage and direct the development and implementation of the capital 
improvement program and the annual budget for marketing, operations and administration, 
which includes forecasting funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials, supplies, and 
projects related to the delivery of the Capitol Corridor passenger rail service. 

The ability to offer relocation assistance will enhance the District's competitive posture in 
filling both of these positions. 

The Board's will allow staff to execute a relocation agreement within the parameters of 
current District practice as provided in Management Procedure 70. This procedure sets a 
maximum reimbursement for relocation at $18,000 and it does not allow for reimbursement 
for loss on sale of residence. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

The costs for relocation agreement cost will come from the FYI 9 Operating Budget of 
the Office of Planning, Development and Construction and from the Office of Capitol 
Corridor respectively. 

Funds will be budgeted in the Office of Planning, Development and Construction operating 
budget (Cost Center 1001215, Account 681356) and the Office of Capitol Corridor (Cost 
Center 1401511, Account 603180). 

FY19: $36,000 ($18,000 approx, max per position) 

Funding for services in this Fiscal Year are included in the Department's existing operating 
budget. 



Employee Relocation Assistance for Chief Planning, Development and Construction Officer and Managing (cont.) 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Offer the position without relocation assistance which could result in losing the selected 
candidate. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 

That the General Manager or her designee is authorized to approve employee relocation 
assistance in accordance with Management Procedure Number 70, New Employee 
Relocation Expense Reimbursement for the following two positions: Chief Planning, 
Development and Construction Officer; and Managing Director, Capitol Corridor. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
NIA 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

[ l ~i 

District Base Pay Schedule 

PURPOSE: 
To approve a base pay schedule effective January 1, 2019, in a form prescribed by 
CalPERS. 

DISCUSSION: 
The District contracts with the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) 
for employee retirement benefits. CalPERS' rules control whether compensation qualifies as 
reportable to CalPERS for purposes of retirement calculations. For base compensation to 
be reportable for purposes of retirement calculation, CalPERS requires that the District's pay 
schedules be formally approved by the Board, including each position title and pay rate, and 
that they be publicly available ( e.g., the District website). 

Attachment A is the base pay schedule effective January 1, 2019. It is important to note this 
table does not make changes to compensation for any District employee. It reflects 
negotiated salary changes with each union already approved by the Board through its 
ratification of the Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA's). The pay for Board
appointees has been approved by the Board. The pay bands for non-represented 
employees has been approved by the Board with the adoption of the annual budget or 
notice has been provided by the General Manager to the Board. Staff requests that the 
Board approve the attached salary schedule. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact to the District for this proposed action. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
To not approve the action. However, failure to do so may result in CalPERS' 
disqualification of pay as "compensation earnable" for reporting and determination of 



District Base Pay Schedule 

District employees' retirement benefits. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the following motion. 

MOTION: 
The Board approves the base pay schedule in effect January 1, 2019. 



3 FA205 Accountant 
4 FA210 Accounting Analyst 
5 000070 Accounting Supervisor 
6 FA215 Accounting Technician 
7 OFOSO ACTO Central Control 
8 OF075 ACTO Service Delivery 
9 AE200 Administrative Analyst - BPOA 
10 AF200 Administrative Analyst NR 
11 AA200 Administrative Analyst SEIU 
12 AF101 Administrative Secretary - NR 
13 AGlOO Administrative Secretary SEIU 
14 AA230 Administrative Support Officer 
15 CB190 Administrative Technici;m ATU 
16 CF190 Administrative Technician NR 
17 CA190 Administrative Technician SEIU 
18 MAlOO AFC Electronic Technician 
19 MAlOS AFC Foreworker 
20 MA560 AFC Parts Runner 
21 IAlOO Appl Programmer Analyst 
22 000046 Architect 
23 000051 Asset Coordinator 
24 000178 Asset Data Manager 
25 LFlOO Associate General Counsel 
26 AAlOO Asst Admin Analyst - SEIU 
27 AFl OO Asst Admin Analyst NR 
28 UA200 Asst Buyer 
29 000153 Asst Chief Info Officer 
30 000083 Asst Chief Labor Relations 
31 000086 Asst Chief Maint & Eng Officer 
32 000082 Asst Chief Mechanical Officer 
33 UA205 Asst Contract Administrator 
34 FF225 Asst Controller 
35 AFlOS Asst District Secretary 
36 ZF050 Asst GM Administration* 
37 ZFlOS Asst GM Operations* 
38 ZF118 Asst GM PD&C* 
39 XF2B Asst GM Performance & Budget* 
40 XF125 Asst GM Technology/CIO* 
41 ZF117 Asst GM, External Affairs• 
42 000019 Asst Logistics Program Manager 
43 FC230 Asst Mgr of Revenue Control 
44 MF822 Asst Rolling Stock Maint Super 
45 SAlOO Asst Safety Specialist 
46 000091 Asst Superintendent Ops eBART 
47 000061 Asst Superintendent PwrMec Mnt 
48 MF830 Asst Superintendent Sys Mnt 
49 000150 Asst Superintendent SysT eBART 
so 000163 Asst Superintendent System Svc 
51 000090 Asst Superintendent VM eBART 
52 000020 Asst Superintendent Way & Fae 
53 FF230 Asst Treasurer 
54 FA274 Asst Treasury Analyst 
55 000058 Attendance Program Coordinator 
56 LFlOS Attorney I 
57 LFllO Attorney II 
58 LFllS Attorney Ill 
59 MA200 Auto & Equip Foreworker 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

AFSCME, Local3993 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 
AFSCME, Local3993 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
BART Police Offic;ers Association 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 
ATU, Local 1555 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Loca l 3993 
AFSCM E, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 

Page 1 of 11 

Sll 
AFG 
036 
Nll 
Nll 
058 
N04 
S08 
071 
071 
SB 
036 
036 
036 
301 
82S 
151 
SOB 
NOS 
AFF 
AFI 
N13 
S06 
NOl 
S06 
N12 
NlO 
N12 
N12 
S06 
NB 
NOB 
N14 
N14 
N14 
N14 
N14 
N14 
AFG 
AFH 
N09 
S06 
N09 
NlO 
Nl O 
N09 
NlO 
N09 
NlO 
NB 
S06 
N06 
N06 
N09 
NlO 
825 

96,218.14 12S,083.27 
$43,523.58 $56,893.82 
$70,269.24 $91,85S.20 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 

$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$58,447.79 $76,402.56 

$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$76,549.41 $91,855.09 
$82,031.00 $127,150.00 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$62,027.47 S73,53S.90 
$56,254.85 $73,535.90 
$89,529.72 $117,032.28 
$64,942.18 $76,402.56 
$64,422.59 $76,402.56 
$58,447.79 $76,402.56 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$77,166.34 $100,871.06 
$52,838.45 $69,069.94 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$86,B2.00 $B3,506.00 

$102,009.32 $B2,6B.29 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$63,788.04 $83,383.08 
$67,485.00 $104,605.00 
$63,788.04 $83,383.08 

SB3,622.00 $207,114.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$B3,622.00 $207,114.00 
$B3,622.00 $207,114.00 
$63,788.04 $83,383.08 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$63,788.04 $83,383.08 

$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$63,788.04 $83,383.08 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 

$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$77,166.34 $100,871.06 



Auto & Equip Maint Supv 
61 MA205 Auto & Equip Mechanic 
62 FAlOO Budget Analyst 
63 FB141 Budget Clerk - ATU 
64 MA300 Buildings Foreworker 
65 MA310 Buildings Worker 
66 UA210 Buyer 
67 UA213 Buyer Technician 
68 TA298 CAD Drafter 
69 FA245 Cash Handler 
70 000095 Cash Handler PT 
71 FA249 Cash Handling Elec Technician 
72 FA250 Cash Handling Foreworker 
73 TC220 Central Maintenance Supervisor 
74 TF275 Central Veh Trouble Desk Super 
75 000084 Chief Labor Relations Officer 
76 EFOSO Chief Maint & Engineer Officer 
77 MF805 Chief Mechanical Officer 
78 000094 Chief Op Officer eBART/OAC 
79 XF126 Chief Performance Audit Offer 
80 XF135 Chief Procurement Officer 
81 SF200 Chief Safety Officer 
82 000050 Chief Transit Sys Dev Officer 
83 XFlOO Chief Transportation Officer 
84 EF200 Civil Engineer 
85 CFlOO Clerk NR/PT 
86 CGlOO Clerk SEIU 
87 000013 Communication Coordinator 
88 MAllS Communications Electronic Tech 
89 MA120 Communications Foreworker 
90 VF101 Communications Officer 
91 06100 Communications Special ist 
92 000074 Community Outreach Specialist 
93 PE076 Community Services Officer 
94 000155 Comp Vehicle Maint eBART 
95 IAlOS Computer Documentation Asst 
96 MA700 Computer Electronic Technician 
97 IAllO Computer Operator 
98 000064 Computer Support Administrator 
99 IAllS Computer Support Coordinator 
100 EF102 Computer Systems Engineer 
101 EF205 Construction Engineer 
102 UA215 Contract Administrator 
103 UF221 Contract Specialist I 
104 UF222 Contract Specialist II 
105 UF223 Contract Specialist Ill 
106 000049 Contracts Technician SEIU 
107 XFlOS Controller Treasurer 
108 000168 Crew Office Supervisor 
109 000183 Crime Analyst 
110 CA120 Customer Service Clerk 
111 VAllO Customer Service Rep 
112 VA120 Customer Services Admin 
113 000016 Customer Services Assistant 
114 000173 Customer Services Supervisor 
115 000180 Customer Services Technician 
116 000071 Cyber Security Architect 
117 000072 Cyber Security Engineer 
118 IA135 Data Controller 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

AFSCME, Local3993 
SEIU, Local 1021- clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
ATU, Local 1555 
SEIU, Local 1021- Cler ical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerica l & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU,. Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Cler ical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
ATU, Local 1555 
Non-Represented Employees 
BART Police Officers Association 
SEIU Maintenance eBART 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
Board Appointed Officer 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
BART Police Officers Association 
SEIU, Local 1021 - clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 

Page 2 of 11 

301 
S08 
031 
825 
301 
508 
036 
508 
025 
026 
301 
813 
AFF 
Nll 
N13 
N14 
N13 
N13 
N13 
N13 
N12 
N13 
N13 
NOS 
010 
011 
Sll 
301 
825 
N09 
831 
N08 
027 
400 
031 
321 
031 
SOS 
S14 
NOS 
NOS 
S08 
N02 
N03 
NOS 
036 
CT 
AFG 
068 
031 
511 
513 
506 
S13 
036 
NlO 
N07 
031 

96,218.14 125,083.27 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$61,952.59 $72,885.49 
$77,166.34 $100,871.06-
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$58,447.79 $76,402.56 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$51,452.34 $67,258.05 
$56,597.42 $56,597.42 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$77,166.34 $100,871.06 

$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$17p,533.00 $264,330.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$52,892.94 $62,510.66 
$43,523.58 $56,893.82 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$77,166.34 $100,871.06 

$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$88,830.77 $104,506.90 

$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$54,191.90 $66,560.21 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 
$60,777.12 $79,447.20 
$93,978.36 $122,847.48 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$74,403.00 $115,329.00 
$78,124.00 $121,095.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$58,447.79 $76,402.56 
$264,735.35 $264,735.35 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$78,080.08 $93,691.94 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$89,529.72 $117,032.28 
$63,788.04 $83,383.08 
$89,529.72 $117,032.28 
$58,447.79 $76,402.56 

$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 



120 IC120 
121 XF142 
122 QFlOl 
123 XF117 
124 FF090 
125 XF123 
126 XF120 
127 XF132 
128 XFllS 
129 XF040 
130 000027 
131 XF106 
132 FF095 
133 AFllS 
134 ZFllO 
135 000028 
136 000043 
137 000156 
138 EF060 
139 QC216 
140 XFlSO 
141 MF410 
142 TA300 
143 000161 
144 TA310 
145 HF108 
146 MA313 
147 000078 
148 MA145 
149 EF215 
150 MASOO 
151 000034 
152 MASlO 
153 EFllO 
154 MA515 
155 MA530 
156 MA525 
157 HBlOS 
158 HJlOS 
159 EFSOO 
160 000026 
161 000032 
162 000073 
163 SF145 
164 000006 
165 MAlSO 
166 MAlSS 
167 UA195 
168 UAlOO 
169 MC350 
170 000021 
171 000182 
172 MASSO 
173 MA330 
174 XF160 
175 ZF130 
176 VAOSO 
177 TA313 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

, .., • ,._ -;- -~:/~ - ,:..'" -
1

,. ~~~ ... _ ~ ,,:,-; :-- - sn:,,..:,-;:~/r~:,,_--- -. ,: ~~! 

- ,- - ~ • , I+ ' -

Database Administrator AFSCME, Local3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
Dept Mgr Communication Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
Dept Mgr Customer Access Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
Dept Mgr Customer Service Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
Dept Mgr Financial Services Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
Dept Mgr Gov't & Comm Rei Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
Dept Mgr Human Resources Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
Dept Mgr Marketing & Research Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
Dept Mgr Office of Civil Right Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
Dept Mgr Operations Planning Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
Dept Mgr Property Development Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00. 
Dept Mgr Risk Management Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
Dept Mgr, Budget Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
Deputy Asst District Secretary Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
Deputy General Manager* Non-Represented Employees NlS $188,013.00 $291,424.00 
Deputy Managing Dir Cap Cor Non-Represented Employees N12 $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
Deputy Police chief Non-Represented Employees NB $147,316.00 $228,343.00 
Diesel Train DMU Eng eBART ATU eBART 651 $77,903.07 $89,415.46 
District Architect Non-Represented Employees Nll $127,256.00 $197,252.00 
District Right of Way Surveyor AFSCME, Local3993 AFG $109,491.09 $142,338.41 
District Secretary Board Appointed Officer DS $203,339.85 $208,424.00 
Division Manager Maint Support Non-Represented Employees NlO $121,196.00 $187,856.00 
Document Config Controller SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 509 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 
Document Control Spee eBART SEIU Professional eBART 500 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 
Drafting Supervisor SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 511 $81,257.76 $106,219.32 
Drug Testing Coordinator Non-Represented Employees N04 $82,031.00 $127,150.00 
Dump Truck/Equipment Operator SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
Elec/Electro-Mech Assembler II SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 152 $54,783.46 $71,612.53 
Elect/Electro-Mech Assembler SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 151 $52,838.45 $69,069.94 
Electrical Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
Electrical Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 824 $80,535.52 $105,275.25 
Electrical Helper SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 151 $52,838.45 $69,069.94 
Electrician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
Electronics & Comm Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
Elevator/Escalator Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 
Elevator/Escalator Trainee SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 331 $63,237.62 $82,663.57 
Elevator/Escalator Wo_rker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
Employee Dev Specialist ATU ATU, Local 1555 839 $93,241.41 $109,695.87 
Employee Dev Specialist SEIU SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter EDS $83,917.92 $109,696.56 
Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
Engineer (Mechanical Focus) Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
Engineer Intern Non-Represented Employees 081 $37,440.00 $37,440.00 
Enterprise Security Suppt Spee Non-Represented Employees N07 $99,708.00 $154,549.00 
Environmental Administrator AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $116,268.33 $151,148.73 
Environmental Engineer Non-Represented Employees NOS $86,132.00 $133,506.00 
ERS Foreworker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 825 $77,166.34 $100,871.06 
ERS Technician SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
Expeditor SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 506 $63,788.04 $83,383.08 
Expeditor /Clerk SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 031 $55,757.31 $72,885.49 
Facilities Maint Supv AFSCME, Local3993 AFE $96,218.14 $125,083.27 
Facilities/Utilities Loe Coord AFSCME, Local3993 AFF $102,009.32 $132,613.29 
Fare Inspection Officer BART Police Officers Association 035 $64,522.43 $77,423.42 
Fire Protection-Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
Fire Service Worker SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 301 $70,201.66 $91,767.10 
General Counsel Board Appointed Officer GC $292,703.05 $292,703.05 
General Manager Board Appointed Officer GM $395,024.09 $395,024.09 
Gov & Community Relations Spee SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 511 _$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
Graphic Artist SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 509 $73,755.00 $96,411.72 

Page 3 of 11 



Grounds Worker 
MA346 Grounds Worker/Applicator 

181 000017 Group Manager 
182 000041 Group Mgr Capital Projects 
183 EF113 Grp Mgr AFC Capital Program 
184 EF122 Grp Mgr Capital Program 
185 KF300 Grp Mgr Capitol Corridor 
186 EF223 Grp Mgr Elec Mech Engineering 
187 EF222 Grp Mgr Engineering 
188 EF224 Grp Mgr Engineering Liaison 
189 OF426 Grp Mgr Operations Liaison 
190 OF112 <;i rp Mgr Ops Support & Review 
191 XF128 Grp Mgr Planning 
192 000171 Grp Mgr Production Support 
193 EF121 Grp Mgr Project Controls 
194 EF107 Grp Mgr Rail Vehicle Cap Prog 
195 MF807 Grp Mgr Rolling Stock & Shops 
196 EF124 Grp Mgr Seismic Retrofit Cap 
197 000088 Grp Mgr Sustainability Program 
198 EF080 Grp Mgr Systems Engineer 
199 EF075 Grp Mgr Vehicle Maint Engineer 
200 000062 HR Division Manager 
201 HF090 HR Receptionist 
202 000042 Independent Police Auditor 
203 000054 Independent Police Invest 
204 SC132 Industrial Hygienist 
205 IC159 Information Sys Security Offer 
206 IF129 Information Systems Analyst I 
207 IF130 Information Systems Analyst II 
208 FF260 Information Systems Auditor 
209 OF025 Instructional Design Spee 
210 FC240 Insurance Analyst 
211 FA265 Intermediate Account Clerk 
212 CFlOS Intermediate Clerk NR 
213 CPlOS Intermediate Clerk NR / PT 
214 CJlOS Intermediate Clerk SEIU 
215 FF251 Internal Auditor I 
216 FF252 Internal Auditor II 
217 UAlOS Inventory Control Analyst 
218 UA120 Inventory Control Technician 
219 MA348 Irrigation/Grounds Worker 
220 000059 IT Project Manager 
221 IA160 Jr Appl Programmer Analyst 
222 FA275 Junior Accountant 
223 EF400 Junior Engineer 
224 HF122 Labor Relations Rep I 
225 HF123 Labor Relations Rep II 
226 000165 Leave Management Analyst 
227 LAllS Legal Administrative Analyst 
228 LAlOO Legal Administrative Asst 
229 LC118 Legal Office Supervisor 
230 FC282 Liability Risk Analyst 
231 MA350 Locksmith 
232 08108 Lost & Found Clerk 
233 CAllO Mail and Supply Clerk 
234 000060 Maintenance Engineer 
235 TA215 Maintenance Planner 
236 000001_- Maintenance Support Admin 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As-of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Board Appointed Officer 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cler ical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Local3993 
SEIU, Loc;al 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
ATU, Local 1555 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerica l & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
AFSCME, Local3993 

Page 4 of 11 

301 
NlO 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
Nll 
Nll 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N12 
N09 
021 
IPA 
N08 
AFG 
AFF 
N02 
N06 
NOS 
NOS 
AFF 
021 
021 
020 
021 
N02 
N04 
S08 
036 
301 
AFI 
503 
SOS 
N03 
N02 
N04 
N04 
S06 
SOS 
AFD 
AFE 
301 
019 
021 
NOS 
S08 
AFD 

77,166.34 100,871.06 
$59,617.17 $77,930.94 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 

$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 

, $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 

_ $133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$55,027.02 $65,185.33 

$199,363.72 $199,363.72 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$74,403.00 $115,329.00 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 

$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$49,866.75 $65,185.33 
$55,027.02 $65,185.33 
$60,456.86 $71,631.04 
$49,866.75 $65,185.33 
$74,403.00 $115,329.00 
$82,031.00 $127,150.00 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$58,447.79 $76,402.56 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 

$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$55,178.40 $72,128.64 
$60,777.12 $79,447.20 
$78,124.00 $121,095.00 
$74,403.00 $115,329.00 
$82,031.00 $127,150.00 
$82,031.00 $127,150.00 
$63,788.04 $83,383.08 
$60,777.12 $79,447.20 
$89,454.70 $116,291.33 
$96,218.14 $125,083.27 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$61,952.59 $72,885.49 
$49,866.75 $65,185.33 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$89,454.70 $116,291.33 



Manager of Maintenance Planng 
238 000077 Manager of Special Projects 
239 000172 Manager of Technology Programs 
240 FC205 Manager of Time and Admin 
241 000063 Manager, Engineering Liaison 
242 ZF200 Managing Director Cap Corridor• 
243 VC081 Marketing Rep II 
244 PE132 Master Police Officer 
245 UA130 Material Control Analyst 
246 UA135 Material Control Sys Analyst 
247 UA145 Material Coordinator 
248 UA150 Material Expediter 
249 EF240 Mechanical Engineer 
250 HF151 Media Producer 
251 000023 Mgr of Access Programs 
252 000024 Mgr of Access/Accessibility 
253 FC215 Mgr of Accounting 
254 000081 Mgr of Accred Police Services 
255 000167 Mgr of Ad Franchise Program 
256 MC225 Mgr of Auto & Equip Maint 
257 FF119 Mgr of Capital Budgets 
258 FF116 Mgr of Capital Project Control 
259 000174 Mgr of Capital Project Support 
260 OF115 Mgr of Central Control 
261 EF225 Mgr of Civil & Structural Eng 
262 000008 Mgr of Communications 
263 QF109 Mgr of Community Relations 
264 EF119 Mgr of Computer Sys Engineer 
265 MF400 Mgr of Construction Services 
266 UF225 Mgr of Contract Administration 
267 000170 Mgr of Creative Services 
268 000009 Mgr of Credit/Debit Fare Prog 
269 AC400 Mgr of Customer Services 
270 TC102 Mgr of Drafting & Configuratio 
271 EF120 Mgr of Elect & Comm Engineer 
272 EF233 Mgr of Electrical Engineer 
273 000065 Mgr of Emergency Preparedness 
274 SC075 Mgr of Employee/Patron Safety 
275 SFlll Mgr of Engineer Safety 
276 000169 Mgr of Engineering Programs 
277 SF140 Mgr of Environ Compliance 
278 FF297 Mgr of Financial Planning 
279 FF290 Mgr of Fleet & Capacity Plann 
280 FF117 Mgr of Grant Dev & Reporting 
281 IF177 Mgr of Information Systems 
282 FF285 Mgr of Internal Audit 
283 UC125 Mgr of Inventory Management 
284 HF130 Mgr of Labor Relations 
285 QF107 Mgr of Local Govt & Com Rei 
286 UF130 Mgr of Logistics 
287 MF405 Mgr of Maint Administration 
288 TF241 Mgr of Maintenance Engineer 
289 AF206 Mgr of Management Analysis 
290 EF234 Mgr of Mechanical Engr. 
291 FF125 Mgr of Operating Budgets 
292 OF425 Mgr of Operations Liaison 
293 SC105 Mgr of Operations Safety 
294 000055 Mgr of Ops Training and Dev 
295 QF115 Mgr of Planning 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATTACHMENT A 

Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-R~presented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
BART Police Officers Association 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME,Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non"Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME,Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 

Page 5 of 11 

N09 
AFI 
NlO 
N14 
AFE 
798 
508 
508 
301 
508 
N05 
N05 
AFH 
N09 
AFI 
NlO 
AFI 
AFH 
N09 
N09 
AFI 
N09 
NlO 
N09 
N09 
NlO 
NlO 
N09 
AFI 
AFG 
AFH 
AFI 
NlO 
NlO 
N08 
AFI 
N09 
N09 
N09 
N09 
N09 
N09 
NlO 
N09 
AFG 
N09 
N09 
N09 
N08 
NlO 
N09 
NlO 
N09 
N09 
AFH 
N09 
N09 

115,426.00 178,912.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$96,218.14 $125,083.27 

$112,411.10 $112,411.10 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 



Mgr of Purchasing 
Mgr of Quality Assurance 

298 Mgr of Real Estate Services 
299 Mgr of Reliability Engineer 
300 EF159 Mgr of Research & Development 
301 FF295 Mgr of Revenue Control 

302 OFlll Mgr of Schedules & Services 
303 SFlOO Mgr of Security Programs 
304 AC300 Mgr of Special Projects 
305 MF840 Mgr of Strategic Main Prog 

306 EF236 Mgr of Traction Power Engr 
307 EF130 Mgr of Train Control Engineer 
308 MC805 Mgr of Transit Vehicl Cleaning 
309 OF170 Mgr of Transportation Ops Supp 
310 TF237 Mgr of Vehicle Sys Engineer 
311 MF850 Mgr of Warranty Administration 
312 VA125 Multimedia Assistant Producer 
313 HF152 Multimedia Producer 
314 CAllS Office Services Supervisor 
315 CAlll Office Services Support Clerk 
316 09120 Operations Foreworker 
317 OC118 Operations Supervisor Liaison 

318 OCUS Operations Supv 

319 HFlll Operations Training Supervisor 

320 MA547 Overhead Door Worker 

321 MA360 Painter 
322 000092 Paralegal 
323 HF146 Personnel Analyst I 
324 HF147 Personnel Analyst II 
325 QF135 Planner 
326 CE175 Police Admin Specialist 
327 PDlll Police Admin Supervisor I 

328 000111 Police Admin Supervisor II 
329 000124 Police Admin Supervisor Ill 

330 000125 Police Admin Supervisor IV 

331 000126 Police Admin Supervisor V 

332 000127 Police Admin Supervisor VI 

333 PD116 Police CAD/RMS Admin I 
334 000128 Police CAD/RMS Admin II 
335 000129 Police CAD/RMS Admin Ill 

336 000130 Police CAD/RMS Admin IV 
337 000131 Police CAD/RMS Admin V 
338 000112 Police CAD/RMS Admin VI 
339 PFllO Police Chief* 
340 PD115 Police Civilian Supv Admin I 
341 000132 Police Civilian Supv Admin II 

342 000133 Police Civilian Supv Admin Ill 

343 000134 Police Civilian Supv Admin IV 
344 000135 Police Civilian Supv Admin V 
345 000136 Police Civilian Supv Admin VI 
346 PD118 Police Civilian Supv Comm I 

347 000137 Police Civilian Supv Comm II 
348 000138 Police Civilian Supv Comm Ill 
349 000139 Police Civilian Supv Comm IV 
350 000113 Police Civilian Supv Comm V 
351 000140 Police Civilian Supv Comm VI 

352 000038 Police Consultant 

353 PEllS Police Disp<1tcher 
354 PD125 Police Lieutenant I 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule {Noted by Job ntle) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
ATU, Local 1555 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
BART Police Officers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
Non-Represented Employees 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police M;magers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
.BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
Non-Represented Employees 
BART Police Officers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 

Page 6 of 11 

N09 
NlO 
NlO 
Nll 
N09 
N13 
AFI 
Nll 
NlO 
NlO 
AFH 
N09 
NlO 
N09 
Sll 
N05 
800 
021 
821 
AFF 
AFF 
N06 
301 
301 
710 
N02 
N04 
AFC 
045 
CS 
CS2 
CS3 
CS4 
css 
CS6 
CS 
CS2 
CS3 
CS4 
CS5 
CS6 
N14 
CS 
CS2 
CS3 
CS4 
css 
CS6 
CS 
CS2 
CS3 
CS4 
CS5 
CS6 
N14 
048 
LT 

115,426.00 178,912.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 · 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$147,316.00 $228,343.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$65,103.38 $85,102.58 
$49,866.75 ' $65,185.33 
$80,811.74 $95,072.85 

$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$76,869.52 $91,140.40 
$74,403.00 $115,329.00 
$82,031.00 $127,150.00 
$81,029.39 $105,338.76 
$67,534.27 $78,928.72 
$110,676.00 $128,424.00 
$114,012.00 $132,300.00 
$115,104.00 $133,572.00 
$118,980.00 $138,072.00 
$120,648.00 $140,004.00 
$125,064.00 $145,140.00 
$110,676.00 $128,424.00 
$114,012.00 $132,300.00 
$115,104.00 $133,572.00 
$118,980.00 $138,072.00 
$120,648.00 $140,004.00 
$125,064.00 $145,140.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$110,676.00 $128,424.00 
$114,012.00 $132,300.00 
$115,104.00 $133,572.00 
$118,980.00 $138,072.00 
$120,648.00 $140,004.00 
$125,064.00 $145,140.00 
$110,676.00 $128,424.00 
$114,012.00 $132,300.00 
$115,104.00 $133,572.00 
$118,980.00 $138,072.00 
$120,648.00 $140,004.00 
$125,064.00 $145,140.00 
$170,533.00 $264,330.00 
$70,202.91 $85,447.02 

$133,464.00 $152,844.00 



356 000119 Police Lieutenant 111 

357 000147 Police Lieutenant IV 
358 000120 Police Lieutenant V 
359 000121 Police Lieutenant VI 
360 PE130 Police Officer· 
361 PE129 Police Officer in Academy 
362 PD135 Police Sergeant I 
363 000114 Police Sergeant II 
364 000115 Police Sergeant Ill 
365 000116 Police Sergeant IV 
366 000117 Police Sergeant V 
367 000118 Police Sergeant VI 
368 PD138 Pol ice Support Svcs Supv I 
369 000141 Police Support Svcs Supv II 
370 000142 Pol ice Support Svcs Supil Ill 
371 000143 Pol ice Support Svcs Supv IV 
372 000144 Pol ice Support Svcs Supv V 
373 000145 Police Support Svcs Supv VI 
374 MA535 Power & Mechanical Foreworker 
375 MA545 Power & Mechanical Worker 
376 08130 Power & Support Controller 
377 AC222 Principal Admin Analyst AFSCME 
378 AF222 Principal Admin Analyst NR 
379 000045 Principal Architect 
380 EF256 Principal Civil Engineer 
381 EF090 Principal Computer Systems Eng 
382 EF262 Principal Construction Engr 
383 UF230 Principal Contract Specialist 
384 000067 Principal EGIS Analyst 
385 EF267 Principal Electrical Engineer 
386 EFS02 Principal Engineer 
387 FC139 Principal Financial Analyst 
388 vcoss Principal Gov & Comm Rei Rep 
389 FF301 Principal Internal Auditor 
390 HF128 Principal Labor Relations Rep 
391 VC084 Principa l Marketing Rep 
392 EF271 Principal Mechanical Engineer 
393 000186 Principal Performance Analyst 
394 HF156 Principal Personnel Analyst 
395 QC112 Principal Planner 
396 QC226 Principal Property Devlmnt Ofc 
397 TF256 Principal Reliabil ity Engineer 
398 QC225 Principal Right of Way Officer 
399 AF234 Principal Rsch Proj Analyst 
400 SF129 Principal Safety Engineer 
401 EF276 Principal Structural Engineer 
402 EF279 Principal Track Engineer 
403 EF146 Principal Train Control Eng 
404 TF236 Principal Vehicle Sys Engineer 
405 000184 Procurement Support Mgr 
406 MF842 Program Logistics Manager 
407 000079 Program Manager I 
408 000018 Program Manager II 
409 FA130 Project Control Admin istrator 
410 EF250 Project Manager 
411 ·000080 Project Manager II 
412 EF451 Proj ect Support Manager 
413 VCllO Public Information Officer 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

g 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Pol ice Managers Association 
BART Police Officers Association 
BART Police Officers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
BART Police Managers Association 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SE IU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
ATU, Local 1555 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 

Page 7 of 11 

LT3 
LT4 
LTS 
LT6 
778 
777 
SGT 
SG2 
SG3 
SG4 
SGS 
SG6 
CS 
CS2 
CS3 
CS4 
css 
CS6 
824 
301 
831 
AFG 
N07 
N08 
N08 
N08 
N08 
N07 
AFG 
N08 
N08 
AFG 
AFG 
N07 
N07 
AFH 
NOB 
AFG 
N07 
AFH 
AFH 
N08 
AFH 
N07 
NOB 
N08 
N08 
N08 
N08 
AFI 
N09 
N09 
NlO 
508 
N09 
NlO 
N09 
AFE 

$138,804.00 $158,976.00 
$143,472.00 $164,316.00 
$145,476.00 $166,620.00 
$150,816.00 $172,728.00 
$73,585.82 $103,881.02 
$64,928.66 $64,928.66 

$108,912.00 $129,240.00 
$112,200.00 $133,116.00 
$113,280.00 $134,412.00 
$117,096.00 $138,924.00 
$118,716.00 $140,880.00 
$123,084.00 $146,040.00 
$110,676.00 $128,424.00 
$114,012.00 $132,300.00 
$115,104.00 $133,572.00 
$118,980.00 $138,072.00 
$120,648.00 $140,004.00 
$125,064.00 $145,140.00 
$80,535.52 $105,275.25 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$88,830.77 $104,506.90 

$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 

$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 

$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$109,929.00 $170,391.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$96,218.14 $125,083.27 



Public Information Rep 
Quality Assurance Analyst 

416 000066 Quality Assurance Officer 
417 000035 Quality Team Leader 
418 000015 Query & Reports Spee 
419 KF175 Rail Svs Compl Officer Capitol 
420 QA205 Rea I Estate Officer 
421 QAlOO Real Estate Tech 
422 IA185 Real Time Programmer Analyst 
423 TF245 Reliability Engineer 
424 CA140 Reprographics Equipment Oper 
425 EF142 Research & Dev Specialist 
426 AF233 Research Projects Supv 
427 PE140 Revenue Protection Guard 
428 MA810 Rolling Stock Foreworker 
429 MF818 Rolling Stock Maint Super 
430 000149 Safety & Training Mgr eBART 
431 SF120 Safety Special ist 
432 08135 Scheduling Analyst 
433 000048 Scheduling Supervisor 
434 MC725 Sect Mgr Elev/Escalator Maint 
435 MC724 Sect Mgr Power & Mech Maint 
436 MC726 Sect Mgr Struct lnsp & Maint 
437 MC721 Sect Mgr Structures Maint 
438 MC720 Sect Mgr Systerns Maint 
439 MC722 Sect Mgr Track Maint 
440 000176 Senior Buyer 
441 000181 Senior Quality Manager 
442 MA225 Shop Machinist 
443 TA260 Shop Scheduler 
444 MA230 Shop Weider 
445 MC701 Spee Proj Mgr Track & Struct 
446 000158 Special Projects Mgr AFSCME 
447 FA288 Sr Account Clerk 
448 AC220 Sr Admin Analyst AFSCME 
449 AF220 Sr Admin Analyst NR 
450 IA190 Sr Appl Programmer Analyst 

451 IC142 Sr Applications Analyst 
452 LF120 Sr Attorney 
453 FH140 Sr Budget Clerk SEIU 
454 000166 Sr CAD Drafter 
455 FA290 Sr Cash Handler 
456 TC222 Sr Centra l Maint Supv 
457 EF255 Sr Civil Engineer 
458 CB14S Sr Clerk ATU 
459 CF146 Sr clerk NR 
460 CG145 Sr Clerk SEIU 
461 000075 Sr Computer Support Coord 
462 EF138 Sr Computer Systems Engineer 
463 EF260 Sr Construction Engineer 
464 000151 Sr Contracts Officer eBART 
465 EF265 Sr Electrical Engineer 
466 EF140 Sr Electronics & Comm Engineer 
467 HF114 Sr Employee Dev Specialist 
468 FC137 Sr Energy Analyst 
469 EF501 Sr Engineer 
470 000002 Sr Executive Staff Assistant 

471 FC138 Sr Financial Analyst AFSCME 
472 FF138 Sr Financial Analyst NR 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

AITACHMENTA 

SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 

· AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
BART Police Officers Association 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
ATU, Local 1555 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
AFSCME,Locai3993 
AFSCME, Loca13993 
AFSCME, Loe.al 3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Locai3993 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maint enance 
AFSCME, Loca l 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professiona l Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Cler ical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Loca l 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
ATU, Local 1555 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof essional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represent ed Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represent ed Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 

Page 8 of 11 

313 
AFF 
N07 
511 
036 
513 
NOS 
031 
N06 
N07 
098 
827 
Nll 
N09 
AFD 
731 
AFF 
AFG 
AFG 
AFG 
AFG 
AFG 
AFG 
SlO 
NlO 
301 
SlO 
301 
AFG 
AFG 
031 
AFD 
N05 
S14 
AFH 
N12 
031 
510 
035 · 
AFH 
N06 
031 
031 
031 
516 
N07 
N06 
N06 
N07 
N06 
NOS 
AFF 
N06 
N04 
AFE 
NOS 

81,257.76 106,219.32 
$70,269.24 $91,855.20 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$73,698.98 $96,338.74 

$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$58,447.79 $76,402.56 
$89,529.72 $117,032.28 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 
$69,257.34 $83,104.74 
$82,512.77 $107,860.06 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$89,454.70 $116,291.33 
$93,241.41 $109,695.87 
$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$77,414.76 $101,195.76 

$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$77,414.76 $101,195.76 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 

$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 
$89,454.70 $116,291.33 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$93,978.36 $122,847.48 

$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 
$77,414.76 $101,195.76 
$54,984.18 $71,874.82 
$116,268.33 $151,148.73 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$61,952.59 $72,885.49 
$61,476.69 $72,885.49 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 

$102,528.96 $134,024.76 
$99,708.00 $154,549.00 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$99,708.0.0 $154,549.00 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 

$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$82,031.00 $127,150.00 
$96,218.14 $125,083.27 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 



474 TA314 Sr Graphic Artist 
475 000093 SR HR Division Mgr Talent Acq 
476 FF253 Sr Internal Auditor 
477 UC108 Sr Inventory Control Analyst 
478 000089 Sr Labor Relations Analyst 
479 HF126 Sr Labor Relations Rep 
480 AA130 Sr Legal Secretary 
481 UC190 Sr Logistics Supv 
482 TA220 Sr Maint Planner 
483 000053 Sr Maintenance Engineer 
484 VC082 Sr Marketing Rep 
485 000029 Sr Marketing Rep PT 
486 EF270 Sr Mechanical Engineer 
487 000179 Sr Mgr of Engineering Programs 
488 000175 Sr Mgr of Engineering,eBART 
489 000177 Sr Mgr of Perf Analytics 
490 000185 Sr Mgr, Finance Analyis & Admn 
491 CA155 Sr Office Services Supv 
492 CA112 Sr Office Svs Support Clerk 
493 OB145 Sr Operations Foreworker 
494 OC155 Sr Operations Supvr Liaison 
495 SC135 Sr Ops Safety Spee 
496 IB190 Sr Ops Suppt Sys Analyst 
497 HFlSS Sr Personnel Analyst 
498 QC145 Sr Planner 
499 000105 Sr Police Officer - Adv. 
500 PE131 Sr Police Officer - lnt. 
501 000052 Sr Production Engineer 
502 EF238 Sr Quality Engineer 
503 QC210 Sr Rea I Estate Officer 
504 TF255 Sr Reliability Engineer 

505 AF232 Sr Research Projects Analyst 

506 QC224 _ Sr Right of Way Officer 

507 SC130 Sr Safety Specialist 
508 000031 Sr Scheduling Analyst ATU 

509 ABBS Sr Secretary ATU 

510 AF135 Sr Secretary N R 
511 AJ135 Sr Secretary SEIU 
512 AF138 Sr Staff Asst 
513 UA160 Sr Storekeeper 
514 EF275 Sr Structural Engineer 
515 IC200 Sr Systems Programmer 
516 IA210 Sr Telecommunications Tech 
517 FC200 Sr Time & Labor Admin Analyst 

518 EF145 Sr Train Control Engineer 

519 000044 Sr Transp Training Clerk 

520 CB160 Sr Transportation Clerk 
521 TF232 Sr Transportation Engineer 
522 TF234 Sr Vehicle Systems Engineer 
523 AF139 Staff Asst 
524 OB155 Stat ion Agent 
525 OB156 Station Agent PT 
526 UA170 Storekeeper 
527 000057 Strategic Prg Mgr, Ext Affairs 
528 EF280 Structural Engineer 
529 MA615 Structures Equipment Operator 
530 MA620 Structures Foreworker 
531 MA638 Structures Inspect Foreworker 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Local3993 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
5EIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- clerical & Maintenance 
ATU, Loca l 1555 
AFSCME, Loca13993 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
ATU, Local 1555 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME,Local3993 
BART Police Officers Association 
BART Police Officers Association 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME,Local3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME,Local3993 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
ATU, Local 1555 
ATU, Local 1555 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerica l & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 · 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
AFSCME, Loca l 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
ATU, Local 1555 
ATU, Local 1555 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
ATU, Local 1555 
ATU, Local 1555 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerica l & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Cler ical & Maintenance 

Page 9 of 11 

510 
NlO 
N05 
AFD 
N05 
N06 
071 
AFF 
511 
N06 
AFF 
AFE 
N06 
NlO 
NlO 
NlO 
NlO 
509 
031 
831 
AFG 
AFG 
742 
N05 
AFF 
792 
788 
N06 
N06 
AFF 
N06 
N05 
AFF 
AFF 
732 
061 
061 
061 
N02 
171 
N06 
AFE 
514 
AFD 
N06 
036 
031 
N06 
N06 
NO! 
521 
541 
201 
N12 
N05 
301 
825 
810 

$77,414.76 $101,195.76 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$89,454.70 $116,291.33 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$56,254.85 $73,535.90 
$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$96,218.14 $125,083.27 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 

$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$121,196.00 $187,856.00 
$73,755.00 $96,411.72 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 
$88,830.77 $104,506.90 

$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 

$98,912.94 $116,368.30 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 

$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$110,207.14 $110,207.14 
$106,997.28 $106,997.28 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$102,503.23 $120,592.16 
$61,952.59 $72,885.49 
$57,774.50 $68,353.58 
$52,290.37 $68,353.58 
$74,403.00 $115,329.00 
$65,103.38 $85,102.58 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$96,218.14 $125,083.27 
$93,978.36 $122,847.48 
$89,454.70 $116,291.33 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$64,942.18 $76,402.56 
$61,952.59 $72,885.49 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$94,961.00 $147,191.00 
$67,485.00 $104,605.00 
$66,240.93 $77,930.74 
$72,865.10 $85,723.66 
$59,617.17 $77,930.94 

$133,622.00 $207,114.00 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$77,166.34 $100,871.06 
$80,674.67 $105,457.25 _ 



534 MA630 
535 MA635 Structures Worker 
536 000036 Structures Worker PT 
537 MF535 Super of Power & Mech Maint 
538 000087 Super of Sys eBART 
539 000085 Superintendent of eBART/OAK 
540 000164 Superintendent of System Serv 
541 MF703 Superintendent of Systems Main 
542 MF610 Superintendent of Way & Fae 
543 000010 Supv Bus Sys Operations 
544 000148 Supv of Operati_ons eBART 
545 TF263 Survey Taker PT 
546 EA315 Survey Tech 
547 000157 Sys General Custod ian eBART 
548 000152 System Main Signal Comm eBART 
549 000154 System Main Track Signal eBART 
550 MA385 ' System Service Crewleader 
551 MA390 System Service Foreworker 
552 MC395 System Service Supv 
553 MA400 System Service Worker 
554 MA399 System Service Worker 141 
555 MA401 System Service Worker PT 
556 IC198 Systems Programmer 
557 000007 Tech Maintenance Support Coard 
558 TA140 Tech Publications Admin 
559 TA302 Technical Administrator 
560 TA125 Technical Editor 
561 IA300 Technical Programmer Analyst 
562 000025 Technical Publications Analyst 
563 TA301 Technical Resources Admin 
564 IA200 Telecommunications Specialist 
565 IA205 Telecommunications Technic ian 
566 000068 Time & Labor Admin Analyst ATU 
567 FA212 Time and Labor Admin Analyst 
568 UA180 Tool Room Attendant 
569 MA640 Track Equipment Operator 
570 MA645 Track Foreworker 
571 MA655 Track Welder 
572 MA660 Track Worker 
573 000022 Track Worker PT 
574 MA720 Train Control Electronic Tech 
575 EF165 Train Control Engineer 
576 MA725 Train Control Foreworker 
577 OC190 Tra in Controller 
578 09160 Train Operator 
579 09161 Train Operator PT 
580 CA165 Transit Information Clerk 
581 CA175 Transit Information Supv 
582 CA159 Transit Information Tech 
583 MA825 Transit Veh Elec Tee 
584 MA830 Transit Vehicle Mechanic 
585 000037 Transit Vehicle Mechanic PT 
586 000033 Transportation Adm Specialist 
587 CB175 Transportation Clerk 
588 OF080 Transportation Operations Mgr 
589 OC150 Transportation Supervisor 
590 FC275 Treasury Analyst 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Loca l 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
'Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
AFSCME eBART 
Non-Represented Employees 
SE IU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU Maintenance eBART 
SEIU Maintenance eBART 
SEIU Maintenance eBART 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Local3993 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
ATU, Local 1555 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SE IU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SE IU, Loca l 1021 - Clerica.l & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
Non-Represented Employees 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
ATU, Local 1555 
ATU, Local 1555 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local· 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
ATU, Local 1555 
ATU, Local 1555 
Non-Represented Employees 
AFSCME, Loca l 3993 
AFSCME, Local3993 

Page 10 of 11 

201 
221 
Nll 
Nll 
Nll 
Nll 
Nll 
Nll 
AFI 
EBl 
093 
091 
401 
400 
400 
141 
818 
AFD 
111 
141 
121 
AFF 
AFE 
510 
511 
503 
511 
509 
513 
506 
509 
741 
TAD 
201 
301 
825 
301 
201 
221 
301 
N05 
825 
AFI 
621 
641 
031 
511 
036 
301 
301 
314 
031 
021 
N09 
AFG 
AFD 

73,391.55 95,936.88 
$59,617.17 $77,930.94 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$59,617.17 $77,930.94 
$65,578.86 $65,578.86 

$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$127,256.00 $197,252.00 
$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$109,163.60 $141,912.67 
$73,948.37 $73,948.37 
$61,144.72 $79,927.95 
$50,734.53 $66,319.76 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$52,366.08 $68,452.59 
$71,389.55 $93,319.82 
$89,454.70 $116,291.33 
$50,734.53 $66,319.76 
$52,366.08 $68,452.59 
$55,807.86 $55,807.86 

$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$96,218.14 $125,083.27 
$77,414.76 $101,195.76 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$55,178.40 $72,128.64 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$73,755.00 $96,411.72 
$89,529.72 $117,032.28 
$63,788.04 $83,383.08 
$73,755.00 $96,411.72 
$86,208.72 $101,422.05 
$77,588.04 . $101,422.32 
$59,617.17 $77,930.94 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$77,166.34 $100,871.06 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$59,617.17 $77,930.94 
$65,578.86 $65,578.86 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$86,132.00 $133,506:00 
$77,166.34 $100,871.06 

$124,045.47 $161,258.87 
$66,240.93 $77,930.74 
$72,865.10 $85,723.66 
$55,757.31 $72,885.49 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$58,447.79 $76,402.56 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$70,201.66 $91,767.10 
$77,221.87 $77,221.87 
$61,952.59 $72,885 .49 
$61,952.59 $72,885.49 

$115,426.00 $178,912.00 
$109,491.09 $142,338.41 
$89,454.70 $116,291.33 



592 MA826 lVET Trainee 
593 MA840 Utility Foreworker 
594 MA835 Utility Worker 
595 MA836 Utility Worker PT 
596 TA130 Vehicle Inspector 
597 MC830 Vehicle Performance Analyst 
598 TF233 Vehicle Systems Engineer 
599 MA900 Warranty Administrator 
600 TA135 Wayside Inspector 
601 TA311 Web Page Specialist 

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

Pay Schedule (Noted by Job Title) 

As of January 1, 2019 

ATIACHMENTA 

SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
AFSCME, Local 3993 
Non-Represented Employees 
SE IU, Local 1021- Professional Chapter 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Clerical & Maintenance 
SEIU, Loca l 1021- Professional Chapter 

331 
818 
111 
121 
311 
AFF 
N05 
511 
311 
510 

$63,237.62 $82,663.57 
$71,389.55 $93,319.82 
$50,734.53 $66,319.76 
$55,807.86 $55,807.86 
$73,391.55 $95,936.88 

$102,009.32 $132,613.29 
$86,132.00 $133,506.00 
$81,257.76 $106,219.32 
$73,391.55 $95,936.88 
$77,414.76 $101,195.76 

* Due to t he unique nature of these jobs as executive management employees reporting directly to the General Manager, t hese classifications are eligible to 
receive Management Incentive Pay of $4,800 annually (26 equal pay period installments of $184.61). 

Board Appointed Officer salaries were effective as of 7/1/2018. 

Page 11 of 11 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERALM~~R~PROVAL: 

/LJJ ,{,II/. 
DATE: 2/14/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Richard Fuentes 

Dept: Grant Development 

Signature/Date·~ 

. ~io}ILOI""/ 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approval and forward to Board 

BARC 

Resolution Authorizing the Execution of BART to Antioch Extension Application, 
and Supporting Documents, for the FY19 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

(LCTOP) 

PURPOSE: To obtain Board approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Execution of BART 
to Antioch Extension Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FYl 9 Low Carbon 
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 

DISCUSSION: 

The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) is one of several programs 
established by the California Legislature through Senate Bill 862 in 2014 and further amended 
in 2016 through Senate Bill 824. Drawing funds from the state's Cap-and-Trade Program's 
annual proceeds, the LCTOP was created to provide operating and capital assistance for 
transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility, with a priority on 
disadvantaged communities with direct, meaningful and assured benefit. 

Projects eligible to receive LCTOP funding are those that demonstrate greenhouse gas 
.emissions reductions and are consistent with both BART's Short Range Transit Plan and the 
region's Sustainable Communities Strategies (e.g., Plan Bay Area). In addition, 50% of the 
total funds received by a transit agency must be expended on projects that benefit 
disadvantaged communities within the agency's service area. Because approximately 50% of 
BART's stations serve disadvantage communities, staff have determined that any project 
serving the BART system meets this criterion. LCTOP funds can be used for either 
operating or capital programs or projects including new or expanded bus or rail services, 
expanded inter-modal facilities, equipment acquisition, maintenance and other operating 



Resolution Authorizing the Execution of BART to Antioch Extension Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FY 
19 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 

costs. 

The LCTOP is formula-based program, administered by the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans). BART receives the funds directly from the state once the 
application is approved. For FY19, BART is eligible to receive $8,374,385, nearly more than 
50% of what it received in in FY18, due to the high receipts generated by the carbon 
auctions held in late 2018. 

Program guidelines require transit agencies that receive LCTOP funds to authorize, by Board 
resolution, its agents to execute application documents and provide certain certifications and 
assurances. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

If the proposed project is approved by Caltrans, the funds will be used to offset the net 
operating expenses of the BART to Antioch extension in FY20. 

By adopting this Resolution Authorizing the Execution of BART to Antioch Extension 
Funds Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FYl 9 Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Program, BART may receive $8,374,385 on or before June 30, 2019. 

This action will have no fiscal impact on unprogrammed District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: Do not approve the Resolution Authorizing the Execution of BART to 
Antioch Extension Application, and Supporting Documents, for the FY 19 Low Carbon 
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP). BART could choose another project. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adoption of the following motion. 

MOTION: The BART Board Approves adoption of the attached Resolution "In the Matter 
of Authorizing Execution of A Project Application and Filing Related Forms for the FY 
2019-20 Low Carbon Transit Operations Program for $8,374,385 in Funding for BART to 
Antioch Extension." 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

In the Matter of Authorizing the Execution of 
A Project Application for FY 2019-2020 Low 
Carbon Transit Operations Funding 
Of BART to Antioch Extension Resolution No. 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE CERTIFICATIONS AND 
ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS FOT THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT 
OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP) FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT: 

BART TO ANTIOCH OPERATIONS I $8,374,385 

WHEREAS, San Francisco Bay Area Bay Area Rapid Transit District is an eligible sponsor and 
may receive state funding for transit projects from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 
(LCTOP) now or sometime in the future; and 

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or regional 
implementing agency to abide by applicable regulations; and 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) as the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and 

WHEREAS, Caltrans has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering and distributing 
LCTOP funds eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and 

WHEREAS, BART wishes to delegate authorization to execute these documents and any 
amendments thereto BART to Antioch Operations. 

WHEREAS, BART wishes to implement the following LCTOP project listed above, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Grace Crunican, General Manager be 
authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP program and any Amendments 
thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay 
Area Rapid Transit District that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following project 
nomination and allocation request to the Department in FY 2019-2020 LCTOP funds: 

List of project, including the following information: 

Project Name: BART to Antioch Extension 

Amount ofLCTOP funds requested: $8,374,385 



Short Description of projects: The new service between the Pittsburg/Bay Point Station and 
Antioch is 10 miles long, adds two new stations, and provides much needed congestion relief on 
California State Route 4. 

Benefit to a Priority Populations: Yes 

Contributing Sponsors (if applicable): None 

AGENCY BOARD DESIGNEE 

BY: ------------



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: w~. 
DA1E: 2/5/2019 BOARDINIT1A1EDITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Steve Beroldo Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

Dept: SysteP:v~ 

Signat~.J;f ~ ~ . 

. 2. - I? - 2,01 C, [ t l 

! Status: Approved · I Date Created: 2/5/2019 

To Extend the 19th Street Bike Station Lease 

PURPOSE 

To authonze the General Manager or her designee to execute a three-year lease extension 
with 19th and Broadway LLC for approximately 2,440 square feet of commercial space at 
1773/1775 Broadway for the 19th Street Bike Station. 

DISCUSSION 

Project History 

The 19th Street Bike Station has been in operation since February 2015. The project is a 
partnership between BART and the City of Oakland. It is housed in 2,440 square feet of 
leased retail space at the comer of 19th and Broadway (immediately across the street from a 
BART entrance). Tenant improvements were funded by a $531,000 Safe Routes to Transit 
Grant, R~gional Measure 2. The lease was for a five-year term which expires on June 30, 
2019; however, the lease includes an option to extend the term. 

Project Operation 

The Bike Station has capacity to park 130 bikes with a valet style parking program. BART 
manages the operation of the Bike Station under Agreement 6M6063 with BikeHub who 
provides bicycle retail and repair services which are designed to support and encourage 
bicycle access to BART. In addition, a portion of the profits from the retail sales and repairs 
offset a portion of the operational costs. BikeHub subleases the retail space from BART at 



19th St Bike Station Lease 

market rate for sales and repair operations. 

Project Evaluation 

By a number of measures the project is successful. The bike parking fills daily and some 
cyclists are even turned away in the late morning. Fortunately, there is also bike parking on 
the concourse level of the 19th Street BART station that serves as overflow. A December 
2018 survey of users revealed several positive findings: 

• 95% of respondents indicated that the bike station made it more likely they would use 
their bike for this trip 

• 95% were very satisfied with the services provided 
• 87% of users were taking BART in conjunction with their use of the bike station 
• 51 % of the users are female (most studies show women to be approximately 25% of 

commute cyclists) 

Long-term Operational Plan 

Currently, the District is designing a new bike station facility to serve the 19th Street BART 
Station. The site for this facility is a BART-owned parcel adjacent to the Paramount Theater 
on Broadway in Oakland ( currently a surface parking lot). It is anticipated that this new 
facility, designed to park approximately 400 bikes and have space for a bicycle retail and 

. repair component will be completed within three years. A BART-owned facility will reduce 
operating costs. 

Proposed Lease Extension 

Staff proposes a three-year extension of the existing lease to continue operations until the 
new facility is completed. For the option period, commencing July 1, 2019 the market rental 
value for the space will apply. For purposes of determining the fiscal impact of this lease 
extension, staff estimates that a base rental rate of $3 .25 p·er square foot is typical for similar 
retail spaces. 

BikeHub pays a portion of the rent for the space occupied by the retail/repair 
operations under a sublease, and the City of Oakland contributes financially toward 
operational expenses under a Cooperative Operating Agreement. 

The Office of the General Counsel will review and approve the lease, any sublease 
amendment and all related documents as to form. 



19th St Bike Station Lease 

FISCAL IMPACT 

A three-year lease extension will cost the District $294,130 for the period of July 1, 2019 to 
June 30, 2022 (plus a common area maintenance assessment of approximately $2,400 per 
year). Funds will be budgeted in the Customer Development operating budget (Dept. 
1102491), Account 680330 Building Space Rental. BART is reimbursed for a portion of the 
rent by other parties as indicated in the table. 

Total City of Oakland Sublease BART Share 
FY20 $95,160 $55,000 $36,161 $3,999 
FY21 $98,015 $55,000 $37,246 $5,769 
FY22 $100,955 $55,000 $38,363 $7,592 

$294,130 $165,000 $111,769 $17,361 

Funding will be included in the proposed annual operating budgets, which are subject to 
Board approval. This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed 
District reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The alternative is to not enter into an extension of the lease and close the 19th Street Bike 
Station in June of 2019. Bike racks and other furnishings will need to be stored for three 
years. BART riders who still wish to access the station by bicycle and park have the option 
to park in racks on the concourse level of the station. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt thefollowing motion. 

MOTION 

The General Manager or her designee is authorized to enter into a lease extension with 19th 
and Broadway LLC for co111mercial space at 1773/1775 Broadway for a three-year term for 
the 19th Street Bike Station. 





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Board of Directors 

General Manager . 

MEMORANDUM 

FY19 Second Quarter Financial Report 

DATE: February 22, 2019 

The FY19 Second Quarter Financial Report (October - December 2018) is attached. The net result for the 
quarter was $8.6M favorable to budget; however, staff does not anticipate FY19 will remain favorable. 

Operating Sources 

Total Ridership was 4.0% under budget for the second quarter ofFY19, and 3.0% lower than in the same 
period of FYl 8. Second quarter FY19 weekday trips were 2.6% below budget and weekend/holiday trips 
were 9.8% below budget. Ridership was affected by poor air quality from the northern California fires. 
Passenger revenue in the second quarter was $4.6M (3.8%) unfavorable. Although budget expectations for 
FY19 ridership were flat based oil FYl 8 performance, passenger revenue in FY19 is $4.4M (1.8%) below 
budget year-to-date. 

Financial Assistance in the second quarter ofFY19 was favorable to budget due to revenue from Sales Tax 
and Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) credit sales. Second quarter Sales Tax revenues were $13.5M 
favorable (19.7%) due to receipt of late payments from previous periods. Property Tax was $0.5M (2.1 %) 
favorable to budget in the second quarter ofFY19. Additionally, LCFS credit sales in the second quarter 
exceeded the $1.6M budget by $4.0M due to strong pricing. Per the LCFS Policy, proceeds from LCFS sales 
will be allocated equally to the Sustainability program and to the general operating fund. State Transit 
Assistance was $9.5M unfavorable due to timing of payment by the State, but is expected to be on budget at 
year-end. 

Operating Uses 

Total Expense for the second quarter was slightly under budget, finishing $6.5M (3.4%) favorable. Labor 
and benefits were on budget, at 0% favorable. Total non-labor was $6.5M (13%) under budget, largely due to 
timing of expenses for professional & technical service fees and favorable energy pricing. 

As FYl 9 progresses, low ridership is expected to have a negative impact on the net operating result. 
Additionally, labor expenses are projected to increase while non-labor savings are expected to be offset by 
increased expenditures later in the Fiscal Year. The ridership and expense trends may result in an operating 
deficit by FY 19 Year End. Staff have implemented cost saving measures and are committed to limiting 
spending and increasing efficiencies to help manage the projected FY19 operating shortfall. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

Board of Directors 

General Manager 

DATE: February 21, 2019 

RE: Financial Outlook for FY20 presentation 

Attached is the "Financial Outlook for FY20" presentation that will be presented to the Board at 
the February 28, 2019 meeting as an information item. 

If you have any questions about the document, please contact Pamela Herhold, Assistant General 
Manager, Performance and Budget, at 510-464-6168. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

7u+1: ~ 
J;::.Rirace Crunican 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERALMANAGERAPPROVAL: 2c, f(!'B, Zc,t'} GENERALMANAGERACTIONREQ'D: 

7zu- ~, P0c---
DATE: 2/1/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Signatu1·e/Date: 

.2-/,'3 ]~] [ l 

! Status: Approved I Date Created: 2/1/2019 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS NO. 6M8142, 6M8143, 6M8144, 
6M8145, 6M8146, 6M8147, 6M8148, AND 6M8149 ARCHITECTURAL AND 

GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR BART PROJECTS 

PURPOSE: To authorize the General Manager to award Agreement No. 6M8142 to 
AECOM Technical Services, Inc.; Agreement No. 6M8143 to HDR Engineering, Inc.; 
Agreement No. 6M8144 to HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, a Joint Venture; Agreement 
No. 6M8145 to Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.; Agreement No. 6M8146 to Parsons 
Transportation Group, Inc.; Agreement No. 6M8147 to PGH Wong Engineering, Inc.; 
Agreement No. 6M8148 to T.Y. Lin International/Transit Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint 
Venture; and Agreement No. 6M8149 to WSP USA Inc.; to provide Architectural and 
General Engineering Services for BART Projects. 

DISCUSSION: Architectural and General Engineering Services Consultants have a lead role 
in the design, engineering, and construction of projects within the District's capital program. 
Recent awards of Architectural and General Engineering Services Agreements were made as 
follows: 

• April 2014: $15 million in contract commitment authority each to the following six 
teams: Acumen/Parsons, a Joint Venture; B&C/URS Joint Venture; Kal Krishnan 
Consulting Services (KKCS), Inc.; PGH Wong Engineering, Inc.; STV Incorporated; 
and Transit Modernization Partners, a Joint Venture (Parsons Brinckerhoff, Inc. and 
Robin Chiang & Company, Inc.) 

• December 2016: a change order was approved by the Board of Directors which 
increased the contract commitment authority available in each of the six 2014 
Agreements by an additional $4 million. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS NO. 6M8142, 6M8143, 6M8144, 6M8145, 6M8146, 6M8147, 6M8148, 
AND 6M8 (cont.) 

• July 2017: $25 million in contract commitment authority each to the following six teams: 
AECOM/TSE, a Joint Venture; HNTB/FMG Joint Venture; Parsons Transportation 
Group, Inc.; PGH Wong Engineering, Inc.; STV Incorporated; and WSP USA Inc. 
(formerly Parsons Brinckerhoff, Inc.). 

These recent Agreements for Architectural and General Engineering Services are now 
reaching the limits of the permitted compensation. New agreements are required to ensure the 
District will have the essential Facilities and Systems Engineering Services needed to 
implement the District's Capital Improvement Program, including the Measure RR 
Expenditure Plan Program. On October 5, 2018, the District issued Request for Proposals 
(RFP) No. 6M8142 to engage up to eight consulting firms or joint ventures to provide 
Architectural and General Engineering Services in an amount not to exceed $40,000,000 per 
agreement, or $320,000,000 in total. Each of these agreements would have a five-year term. 

Advance Notice to Proposers was sent to 427 prospective proposers. The RFP was also 
posted to the District's Procurement Portal and was made available to proposers to 
download electronically. The RFP was also advertised in local publications. A total of 164 
firms downloaded the RFP through the Procurement Portal. A pre-proposal meeting was 
conducted on October 23, 2018, with 163 prospective proposers in attendance. 

A total of eleven proposals were submitted to the District on November 20, 2018. These 
proposals are listed in alphabetical order below: 

1. ABA Global Inc., San Francisco, CA 
2. AECOM Technical Services, Inc., Oakland, CA 
3. HDR Engineering, Inc., Walnut Creek, CA 
4. HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 
5. Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
6. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
7. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA 
8. Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., San Francisco, CA 
9. STV Inc., Oakland, CA 

10. T.Y. Lin International/Transit Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 
11. WSP USA Inc., San Francisco, CA 

The written proposals were reviewed by a Selection Committee ("Committee") consisting of 
four members from Planning, Development, & Construction, two members from 
Maintenance & Engineering, and one member from the Office of Civil Rights. Proposals 
were first reviewed to determine if the proposals were responsive to the requirements of the 
RFP. Subsequently, the proposals were evaluated, reference-checked, and scored on the 
basis of the criteria contained in the RFP with respect to the qualifications of the proposing 
firms and the qualifications of the proposed project teams. All proposers were determined to 
be responsive to the requirements of the RFP; however, a significant gap in scores emerged 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS NO. 6M8142, 6M8143, 6M8144, 6M8145, 6M8146, 6M8147, 6M8148, 
AND 6M8 (cont.) 

from this evaluation between the lower-ranked and higher-ranked proposals. As a result, the 
following ten finns and joint ventures (in alphabetical order) were shortlisted and selected for 
the oral interviews: 

1. AECOM Technical Services, Inc., Oakland, CA 
2. HDR Engineering, Inc., Walnut Creek, CA 
3. HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 
4. Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
5. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
6. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA 
7. Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., San Francisco, CA 
8. STV Inc., Oakland, CA 
9. T.Y. Lin International/Transit Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 

10. WSP USA Inc., San Francisco, CA 

The oral interviews were conducted between January 15, 2019 and January 18, 2019, by the 
same Selection Committee members as those who evaluated the written proposals. Based on 
the combined scores for the oral interviews and written statement of qualifications for RFP 
No. 6M8I42, the Committee detennined that the eight highest scoring proposers and 
therefore the most qualified finns (in alphabetical order) were: 

1. AECOM Technical Services, Inc., Oakland, CA 
2. HDR Engineering, Inc., Walnut Creek, CA 
3. HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 
4. Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
5. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
6. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA 
7. T.Y. Lin International/Transit Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 
8. WSP USA Inc., San Francisco, CA 

After making these detenninations, negotiations were entered into with these eight most 
qualified finns. BART Contract Administration, with support from Internal Audit and 
Planning, Development, & Construction, evaluated and discussed the rates and mark-ups 
(for a cost-plus fixed-fee rate agreement) received from the eight Proposers. These 
discussions were concluded on tenns favorable to BART and each of the Proposers. Staff 
determined that the recommended rate structures are fair and reasonable and that the eight 
above-listed finns are responsible organizations. 

This Agreement was advertised pursuant to the District's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
("DBE") Program requirements. The Office of Civil Rights reviewed the scope of work for 
this Agreement and determined that there were Small Business Entity (SBE) subconsulting 
opportunities; therefore, an SBE participation goal of 30% was set for this Agreement. All of 
the Proposers committed to meeting the 30% SBE participation goal. AECOM Technical 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS NO. 6M8142, 6M8143, 6M8144, 6M8145, 6M8146, 6M8147, 6M8148, 
AND 6M8 (cont.) 

Services, Inc. committed to meeting a 30% SBE participation goal; HDR Engineering, Inc. 
committed to meeting a 30% SBE participation goal; HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, a 
Joint Venture, committed to meeting a 30% SBE participation goal; Jacobs Engineering 
Group, Inc. committed to meeting a 31 % SBE participation goal; Parsons Transportation 
Group, Inc. committed to meeting a 30% SBE participation goal; PGH Wong Engineering, 
Inc. committed to meeting a 30% SBE participation goal; T.Y. Lin Intemational/fransit 
Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint Venture, committed to meeting a 32% SBE participation 
goal; and WSP USA, Inc. committed to meeting a 30% SBE participation goal. The Office 
of Civil Rights will monitor the actual SBE participation attained based on individual task 
orders issued and amounts actually paid to SBE firms. The Agreements require the 
Consultants to ensure that SBE firms have an equal opportunity to compete for and 
participate in the performance of the Agreements. 

Accordingly, staff recommends the following eight awards under RFP No. 6M8142, each in 
an amount not to exceed $40,000,000 for a five-year performance period as follows (in 
alphabetical order): 

1. AECOM Technical Services, Inc., Oakland, CA 
2. HDR Engineering, Inc., Walnut Creek, CA 
3. HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 
4. Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
5. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
6. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA 
7. T.Y. Lin lntemational/fransit Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 
8. WSP USA Inc., San Francisco, CA 

Work Plans (WP's) under each Agreement will define individual assignments in each case 
subject to funding availability. Each WP will have its own scope, schedule, and budget. 

The Office of General Counsel will approve the Agreements as to form. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: Each of the Agreements has a not-to-exceed limit of $40,000,000. 
District obligations will be subject to a series ofWP's. Each WP will have a defined scope 
of services, and separate schedule and budget. Any WP assigned for funding under a State 
or Federal grant will include State or Federal requirements. Controller/Treasurer issues fund 
codes based on grant awards for allocation to capital projects. Grant Compliance/Capital 
Management will certify the eligibility of identified funding sources prior to incurring project 
costs against these Agreements and the execution of each WP. 

ALTERNATIVES: The District could reject all proposals and re-solicit new proposals. 
Reissuing these RFP's would adversely impact the implementation ofBART's Capital 
Improvement Program and would not likely result in better quality bids. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS NO. 6M8142, 6M8143, 6M8144, 6M8145, 6M8146, 6M8147, 6M8148, 
AND 6M8 (cont.) 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award the below listed Agreements 
toprovide Architectural and General Engineering Services for BART Projectsin an amount 
not to exceed $40,000,000 each, pursuant to notificationto be issued by the General 
Manager. The awards are subject to theDistrict's protest procedures and Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA)requirements related to protests. 

1. 6M8142 to AECOM Technical Services, Inc., Oakland, CA 
2. 6M8143 to HDR Engineering, Inc., Walnut Creek, CA 
3. 6M8144 to HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA 
4. 6M8145 to Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
5. 6M8146 to Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA 
6. 6M8147 to PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA 
7. 6M8148 to T.Y. Lin Intemational!fransit Systems Engineering, Inc., a Joint Venture, 

Oakland, CA 
8. 6M8149 to WSP USA Inc., San Francisco, CA 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: February 21, 2019 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: Quarterly Service Performance Review - Second Quarter FY 2019 

Attached is the "Quarterly Service Performance Review - Second Quarter FY 2019" 
presentation that will be presented at the February 28, 2019 meeting as an information item. 

If you have any questions about the document, please contact Tamar Allen, Assistant General 
Manager, Operations at (510) 464-7513. 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Deputy General Manager 
Executive Staff 

p-Grace Crunican 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 
7}, 

1 
0 ~/ F6C> Z.019 

~4w1. r~ 
DATE: 2/4/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Maureen Wetter 

Dept: Marketing and Research 

./If tftf!itf.::__ 
Signature/Date: / 

;Z/ /'l 111 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

[ l 

BARC 

Surveillance Ordinance Use Policy and Impact Report: BART Research 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization to implement the use of certain research methodologies that 
may fall under BART's Surveillance Ordinance. These methodologies are referenced in the 
attached Surveillance Use Policy and Surveillance Impact Report. 

DISCUSSION: 
The District's Surveillance Technology Ordinance defines a "Surveillance Technology" in 
part as, " ... any electronic device or system with the capacity to monitor and collect audio, 
visual, locational...or similar information." Research methodologies that may meet this 
definition include those using electronic or mobile data collection. BART is proposing to 
use such electronic or mobile data collection methodologies for research purposes. 

Consistent with the District's Surveillance Technology Ordinance, staff has developed a 
Surveillance Use Policy and Surveillance Impact Report for this topic, "BART Research: 
Data collection & usage for research and learning." 

Pursuant to the Ordinance, the Board was notified 21 days in advance, and the Public was 
notified 15 days in advance (via posting on bart.gov and advertisement in several 
newspapers within the District) of this BART Research Surveillance Use Policy and 
Surveillance Impact Report. This item is further described below: 

BART Research: Data collection & usage for research and learning 
BART conducts research for a variety of purposes, including providing market information 
and metrics to help inform District decisions related to strategic planning, budget priorities, 
station access policy, marketing strategy, and other areas. Research methodologies using 



Surveillance Ordinance Use Policy and Impact Report: BART Research (cont.) 

electronic and/or mobile technologies may collect locational information for purposes such 
as to facilitate "in the moment" ratings of BART facilities (to improve accuracy of ratings), 
or to analyze travel behavior. Audio and/or visual information may be collected to help 
explain reasons for customer ratings, to be used as a resource when documenting focus 
group research, or for quality control purposes. Participation in BART surveys and focus 
groups involving these technologies is strictly voluntary, and customers may opt-out at any 
time. In addition to facilitating expanded research capabilities, use of these technologies 
results in faster and less expensive data collection by eliminating the need to manually enter 
survey results. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
This EDD is requesting approval for the use of Surveillance Technology, not the funds. 
Funding approval for Surveillance Technology, if required in the future, will be handled by 
separate action. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not approve the use of research methodologies using technologies that collect audio, 
visual, or locational information. If this occurred, the District would not be able to take 
advantage of new research technologies that could increase the speed and accuracy of data 
collection/reporting while reducing cost. For example, instead of using a smart phone app 
to record trips, travel diary participants could be asked to manually fill out complex and 
lengthy forms to record all trips taken by members of their household during a given week, 
resulting in participant frustration and incomplete information. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adoption of the following motion: 

MOTION: 
The Board has determined that the benefits of data collection and usage for research and 
learning as described above outweigh the costs that may be incurred by such activity, and 
the proposed Surveillance Use Policy will reasonably safeguard civil liberties and civil rights. 
The General Manager or her designee is authorized to proceed with the use of data collection 
and usage for research and learning, as described in the attached documents. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: February 20, 2019 

FROM: General Manager 

SUBJECT: State Legislation for Consideration Update 

At the February 28 Board of Directors meeting, staff will present state legislation for your consideration. 

Attached are bill analyses and language for three state bills. The legislation has a nexus to BART and 
aligns with the 2019 State and Federal Advocacy Program adopted by the Board. 

SUPPORT{3) 
ACA 1 (Aguiar - Curry) 

SB 42 (Skinner) 
SB 50 (Wiener) 

Local government financing: affordable housing and public infrastructure: 
voter approval 
Getting Home Safe Act 
Planning and zoning: housing development: equitable communities 
incentive 

Following the staff presentation, a request will be made of the Board to consider passing the draft motion 
shown below. 

If you have any questio11s, please contact Rodd Lee, Department Manager, Government and Community 
Relations at 510-464-623 5. 

Attachments 

cc: ·Deputy General Manager 
Board Appointed Officers 
Executive Staff 

DRAFT MOTION: 

race Crunican 

That the Board ofDirector·s supports ACA 1, SB 42, and SB 50. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

DATE: 1/29/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Patricia 

Schuchardt 

D t s ~I ~ .~ fl'l\'d'ft. ~""l.:,p,-,1 ep: ,,-sem e~ 

~~~ 
~'C-t~ ~lr 

Signature/Date: 

! Status: Routed 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

[ l 

j Date Created: 1/29/2019 

Amendment No. 10 to Lease for 300 Lakeside Drive, Oakland 

PURPOSE: 

To authorize the General Manager or her designee to execute Amendment No. 10 to the 
Lease for 300 Lakeside Drive in Oakland (the "Building") with SIC-Lakeside Drive LLC, 

resulting in adding Suites 1900, 1980 and 1975 (approximately 30,328sf) of the 19th floor of 
the buiJding to the existing lease. 

DISCUSSION: 

In July 2004, BART entered into a lease with Summit Commercial Partners for 317,222 
square ft of office space at 300 Lakeside Drive in Oakland (the "Lease"). The Lease includes 
a ten-year term with two 5-year options to extend. The Lease has been amended nine times. 
In the fall of 2016, Measure RR was passed approving BART' s $3 .5 billion general 
obligation bond to be used to rebuild and upgrade the backbone of the BART system. The 
passage of Measure RR has resulted in the addition of over a hundred new staff and 
consultants to manage BART projects funded by the bond. The lease was amended in 2017 
to add the 8th floor; however, additional, supplementary space is required to house the 
additional staff and a contractor related to the upgraded Train Control Modernization 
Program ("TCMP"). 



Amendment No. I Oto Lease for 300 Lakeside Drive, Oakland 

When staff entered into discussions with SIC-Lakeside Drive LLC ("SIC"), the current 

owner of the building, regarding additional space needs they were advised that the 19th floor 
was available. Staff considered the impacts of the lease expansion in the building as 
opposed to other potential short-term leasing opportunities and determined that adding an 
additional floor was the most favorable option for related synergies of having the TCMP 
project in close proximity to BART Headquarters. Staff negotiated satisfactory terms for 

the majority of the 19th floor of the building. Based on the proposed modifications to the 

19th floor, the expansion will accommodate approximately 140 staff and consultants. In 
connection with the lease of the 8th floor staff engaged the on-call economic and property 
development consulting firm, BARD Consulting, to evaluate the proposed rent and deal. 

The Proposed Lease amendment includes the following terms: 

• The additional space consists of approximately 30,328 rentable square feet ("RSF"). 
• First phase will consist of26,891 RSF known as Suite 1900 ("Primary Expansion 

Premises") commencing upon the later of the substantial completion of Tenant 
Improvements or 03/01/2019 and expire on the date of the existing Lease Term of 
07/17/2021 (co-terminus with BART's existing floors). 

• The second phase will consist of 3,437 RSF ("Must-Take Expansion Premises") 
commencing upon the later of substantial completion of Tenant Improvements or 
04/01/2019 and shall also expire on the expiration date of the existing Lease Term of 
07/17/2021. 

• Base Rent will be for the first twelve (12) months of the Primary Expansion and Must
Take Lease term shall be $53.00 per rentable square foot, per year, full service and 
increase by three percent (3%) per RSF on each anniversary of the Primary Expansion 
Term Commencement Date. 

• BART will be responsible for paying its proportionate share of increases in Building 
operating expenses and property taxes above a base year of 2019. 

• The Base Rent and any and all ofBART's pro-rata share of the operating expenses and 
property taxes for the expansion premises shall be abated for the initial first two 
months of the Primary Expansion Premises Lease Term. In addition, 50% of the Base 
Rent for the Primary Expansion Premises will be abated during months three (3) 
through six (6) of the Primary Expansion Premises Lease Term. 

• Landlord will provide turn-key tenant improvements for the expansion premises 
including the following: 

1. One (1) large conference room (12-14 people seated) 

2. Four (4) medium conference rooms (8 people seated) 



Amendment No. 10 to Lease for 300 Lakeside Drive, Oakland 

3. Two (2) small conference rooms (4 people seated) 

4. Forty (40) private offices 

5. Adequate electrical distribution for District's layout 

6. Landlord to provide stair access and install card key reader 

7. Painting and installation of carpet tile in colors selected by District 

8. At no cost to BART, the landlord will provide BART an accounting and the 
opportunity to inspect, select and use any available 

furniture in the Premises for the Expansion Premises Lease Term and any 
extension thereof. 

• BART will have the right to an additional ten (10) parking spaces in the parking garage 
-for the duration of the Expansion Lease Term and extensions (if any). 

• BART will have the right to an additional thirty (30) bike storage spaces exclusive to 
BART. 

• BART's two existing renewal rights (as outlined in the Master Lease) will remain in 
place and will also be exercisable for the expansion premises at the end of the Lease 
Term. 

Because BART already leases significant space in the Building, it is highly advantageous to 
fulfill the additional space requirements at BART-'s existing location for continuity and 
productivity~ 

BART Board Room 

As part of the negotiations of the short-term nature of the lease, BART will also be entering 
into a license agreement which will allow the landlord to terminate BART' s board room 

existing location at the 20th Street Mall location with a 120-day notice if landlord moves 
forward with the.development of the Mall location site in the future. BART would be 
provided a comparable location by the landlord on the property premises (i.e. Auditorium or 
Building Conference Center) at no cost and fully built out per BART's board room 
standards. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

The initial annual rent for the 19th floor will be $950,149 for the Primary Expansion Premises 
and $182,161 for the Must-Take Premises (this amount includes the first two montl1s of rent 



Amendment No. I O to Lease for 300 Lakeside Drive, Oakland 

and an additional four months of half rent abated for the Primary Expansion Premises) plus 
the pro-rata share of operating, maintenance and tax costs for the Building. The two-month 
rent abatement and lower rent for 4 months will offset any tenant improvements. 

The total cost for the Amendment No. 10 is estimated at $3,463,144. The $3,016,839 for 3-
year base rent will come from Capital Project 49GH002, Train Control Modernization 
Program (TCMP). The $446,305 for Must-Take Premises will come from Operating 
Account 680330 -Building Space Rentals, Cost Center 1011275. 

The table below lists funding assigned to Project 49GH002 and is included to track funding 
history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet Capital request will be expended 
from the following sources: 

Proposed Funding 
F /G 802A - Measure RR $8,000,000 
F /G 8531 - FYI 7 Operating Capital Allocation $1,828,000 

Total $9,828000 

As of February 7, 2019, $9,828,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
$438,701, committed $769,838, and reserved $0.00 to date. This action will encumber 
$3,016,839 leaving an available fund balance of $5,602,622 in this fund source for this 
project. 

The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not exercise the Lease Amendment and continue the existing lease at 300 
Lakeside, housing the additional Measure RR staff in existing space, resulting in over
crowded and unproductive conditions. 

2. Commence an additional search for other locations to house the additional Measure 
RR staff. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adoption of the following Motion. 





($ Millions)


Budget Actual Var Budget Actual Var


Revenue


122.1$     117.5 (3.8%)       -3.8% Net Passenger Revenue 246.9$     242.5 (1.8%)       -1.8%


9.2 9.1 (1.1%)       -1.1% Parking Revenue 18.3 18.4 0.5%        0.5%


16.9 17.8 5.1%        5.1% Other Operating Revenue 24.0 25.4 5.7%        5.7%


148.2 144.3 (2.6%)       -2.6% Total Net Operating Revenue 289.3 286.3 (1.0%)       -1.0%


  


 Expense


138.7 138.7 0.0% Net Labor 279.7 279.8 0.0%


 11.0 9.1 16.8%      16.8% Electric Power 21.9 19.6 10.7%      0.107


 7.6 7.6 0.0% Purchased Transportation 15.1 15.2 (0.2%)       


 32.4 27.8 14.2%      14.2% Other Non Labor 62.6 52.2 16.7%      0.167


189.7 183.2 3.4%        3.4% Total Operating Expense 379.3 366.7 3.3%        3.3%


   


(41.5) (38.9) 6.3%        6.3% Operating Result (Deficit) (90.1) (80.3) 10.8%      10.8%


Taxes and Financial Assistance


68.6 82.1 19.7%      19.7% Sales Tax 129.1 142.2 10.1%      10.1%


23.9 24.4 2.1%        2.1% Property Tax, Other Assistance 26.4 27.6 4.5%        0.045454545


9.5 0.0 (100.0%)   -100.0% State Transit Assistance 9.5 0.0 (100.0%)   -1


1.6 5.6 244.0%    244.0% Low Carbon Fuel Std Prog 3.3 9.2 183.9%    183.9%


(11.7) (11.7) (0.1%)       -0.1% Debt Service (23.3) (23.3) (0.1%)       -0.001


(32.1) (34.6) (7.8%)       -7.8% Capital and Other Allocations (52.3) (56.1) (7.3%)       -7.3%


59.8 65.8$       10.0%      10.0% Net Financial Assistance 92.7 99.6$       7.4%        0.074433657


   


18.3         26.9$       8.6$         860.0% Net Operating Result 2.7           19.3$       16.6$       1660.0%


78.1%      78.8%      0.7%        0.7% System Operating Ratio 76.3%      78.1%      1.8%        1.8%


0.405 ¢ 0.403 ¢ 0.4%        0.4% Rail Cost / Passenger Mile 0.400 ¢ 0.393 ¢ 1.9%        1.9%


* Totals may not add due to rounding to the nearest million.


  No Problem


  Caution: Potential Problem/Problem Being Addressed


  Significant Problem


Current Quarter Year to Date


Quarterly Financial Report


Second Quarter


Fiscal Year - 2019


Revenue


lAvg weekday trips for the quarter were 405,321, 2.6% under 
budget and 2.1% below the same quarter last year. Total trips 
for the quarter were 4.0% under budget and 3.0% lower than 
FY18Q2, with weekend and holiday trips 9.8% under budget. 
Net passenger revenue was 3.8% under budget. November was 
affected by nearly two weeks of poor air quality from the 
northern California fires, and ridership was particularly low the 
week after Christmas.
lParking revenue was $0.1M unfavorable mainly due to under 
budget daily non-reserve program.
lOther operating revenue was $0.9M favorable mainly due to  
over budget investment income.


Expense


lLabor was on budget. Savings from the Q2 vacancy rate of 
12.8% was offset by unfavorable overtime ($12.9M) and 
unfavorable temp help ($0.2M).   
lPower was $1.9M favorable due to lower than expected
transmission costs, and lower than expected power prices in 
the California energy market.
lTotal other non-labor was $4.6M favorable, mostly due to 
delays in work and invoice payments for professional services 
($2.9M); decreases in Clipper fees and bank rates ($1.5M); and 
discount pricing on wheels ($0.5M). These savings were offset 
by $0.3M unfavorable Other Utilities due to service expansion 
and cost increases.


Net Operating Result


lThe net operating result for Q2 was $8.6M favorable, mostly 
due to Sales Tax, Electric Power and Other Non-Labor savings. 
Favorable assistance and expenses are not expected to 
continue throughout FY19.  


Financial Assistance and Allocations


lSales tax for Q2 grew 24.8% over FY18Q2 and was $13.5M 
favorable due to receipt of late payments from previous periods. The 
state changed their payment pattern and had problems with 
implementation of the new sales tax payment software. Expecting 
issue to be completely resolved in Q3.
lProperty tax and other assistance was $0.5M favorable due to over 
budget property tax payments and local financial assistance.
lSTA was $9.5M unfavorable due to timing, expected to be on 
budget at year end. 
lLow Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) program revenue was $4.0M 
favorable to budget due to higher than anticipated sale of credits 
generated as a result of strong market prices.
lCapital and other allocations  were $2.5M greater than budget 
primarily due to $4.0M of increased LCFS revenue (allocated equally 
between sustainability and general operating fund per LCFS Policy), 
offset by $1.1M under budget SFO Ext fare revenue and $0.6M under 
budget incremental fare increase revenue.








Financial Outlook for FY20
BART Board of Directors
February 28, 2019







Introduction


• FY20 Pro Forma Budget 
• Revenue based upon current trends
• Baseline expense budget includes staffing/non-


labor to support FY20 rail service plan


• FY20 Preliminary Budget released by March 31


2







Ridership and Revenue - What’s new for 
FY20?


Service Changes
• Transbay Tube (TBT) Retrofit project includes affects three ridership 


markets:
• Weekday system service start moved later by one hour
• Weekday evening 24-minute headways system-wide
• Sunday modified service


• Service changed February 11 – ridership impacts currently under analysis


Productivity-Adjusted CPI-Based Fare Increase
• 5.4% increase taking effect January 1, 2020
• Reflects two years of CPI growth, less 0.5% productivity factor


Means-based Fares Pilot Program
• Discount for low-income riders


3







Ridership Trends


By Time Period
• Weekday peak ridership trend has flattened in last six months after 


declines in FY17 and FY18
• Weekday non-peak ridership down 4% in past year
• Saturday and Sunday down 7.5% and 6.3%, respectively
By Market
• Transbay market down 1.6%
• Intra-East and Intra-West Bay down 2.7% and 2.3%, respectively
By Trip Length
• Long trips down 0.7%
• Medium trips down 2.7%
• Short trips down 3.7%


4







Ridership and Fare Revenue


5


103.7
110.8


117.8 117.1
126.0 128.5 124.2 120.6 117.7 115.2


Annual Ridership (M)FY19 Year End Estimate
• Total trips estimated to be 2.4% 


lower than FY18
• Includes impact from 5 months of 


TBT retrofit project
FY20 budget
• Forecasted decline of 2.1% 


assumes:
• Full year of TBT retrofit 
• Continued decline of weekend and evening ridership
• Continued strong peak ridership







Ridership and Fare Revenue


Fare Revenue
• Jan 1 2020 fare changes


• 5.4% CPI-based fare increase
• Means-based fare discount


• Average trip length is up, 
resulting in higher average fare


• Magstripe surcharge in effect


6


$343
$366


$406 $407
$443


$462 $451 $443 $437 $425
$9


$19
$27 $33 $38 $41 $52


Fare Revenue ($M)


Rail Fare Revenue


Fare Increase for Priority Capital







Financial Assistance


Sales Tax
• BART growth drivers diverse: 


restaurants, retail, new car 
sales


• FY19 forecasted at 4.1% 
growth based on YTD actuals


• Forecasting 3.2% growth in 
FY20 and 3% long term


• Budget estimate finalized 
after 3Q results known in 
March


7


$181 


$195 
$209 


$221 
$233 


$242 $247 
$258 


$268 
$277 


$150


$170


$190


$210


$230


$250


$270


$290 Sales Tax ($M)







Financial Assistance (continued)


Property Tax
• Current revenues based upon 


real estate activity 18-30 months 
ago


• Growth of three counties’ 
assessed values in FY18 ranged 
from 5.7% to 10.7%


• Forecasting 7% growth by FY19 
year end, 2.5% growth in FY20


State Transit Assistance (STA)
• Infusion of STA from SB1 


implementation started in FY18
• MTC estimates flat in FY20


8


$30 $30 $31 $32 $34 $38 $42 $46 $49 $50 


$0
$10
$20
$30
$40
$50
$60 Property Tax ($M)


$20 $18 $17 $20 $18
$11 $11


$27


$39 $39


$0


$10


$20


$30


$40


$50


State Transit Assistance ($M)







Expense: Labor


• Major labor expense categories
• Wages
• Healthcare
• Pension
• Retiree Medical
• Other Benefits


• Labor costs (wages & benefits) estimated to increase in FY20 
due to:
• Wage Increase: FY18-FY21 Contract


• ATU, SEIU, AFSCME, Non-Represented 2.75% 7/1/19
• BPOA, BPMA 2.5% 7/1/19 (new contract approved)


• Increased benefit costs, especially pension and OPEB
9







Expense: Pension


Pension
• FY20 budget will be determined 


when positions are finalized
• CalPERS three-year phase-in 


lowering of assumed investment 
return from 7.5% to 7.0% will 
impact rates from FY20 on:
• FY20 Discount Rate: 7.25%


• Employer Rate
• Miscellaneous 21.9% (19.6% 


in FY19)
• Safety 69.8% (63.0% in FY18)


• Adding $10M Allocation for 
additional pension funding


10


Update – DL/LA


$27 $27 
$33 $34 $36 


$42 
$50 


$57 


$68 


$86 


$99 


$17 $17 
$17 $17 $16 


$15 
$12 


$7 


$9 


$9 


$9 


 $-


 $20


 $40


 $60


 $80


 $100


 $120
Pension ($M)


Employer Employee (Portion paid by BART)• Pension funding policy discussion –
March 2019







Expense: Retiree Medical


Retiree Medical
• FY20 Actuarial Valuation –


Preliminary Results
• FY20 Actuarially Determined 


Contribution $41.8M (draft)
• 6% increase over FY19


• Unfunded Liability FY20 $282M 
vs. FY19 $304M (FY18 $300M)
• Funded Status FY20 52% vs. 


FY19 47% (FY18 44%)
• Aim to be fully funded by 2034


11


$25 $25 $26 $27
$24


$27
$25


$36
$40


$42


$0


$5


$10


$15


$20


$25


$30


$35


$40


$45


Retiree Medical ($M)







FY19 Budget: Outlook


• Fare revenue below budget through Q2, ridership 
impact of 5 AM opening service plan still unknown


• Sales tax and other financial assistance slightly 
above budget


• Operating expense very tight
• Filling only critical positions
• Investing in improvements to quality of life


12







FY20 Budget: Outlook


• Preliminary Budget in development
Revenue


• Fare revenue drop offset by moderate sales and 
property tax growth


Pressure on operating expense
• Quality of Life investments - fare evasion mitigation, 


homelessness outreach, cleanliness, safety & 
security 


• Additional police hiring
• Accessibility Improvements
• Fire & life safety / regulatory compliance


13







FY20 Capital Budget Schedule


14


• Initial Project Cost Estimates (March)


• Department review (Mid-March to Mid-April)


• Preliminary Capital Budget review (Late April)


• Capital Headcount finalized (Late April)


• Capital Budget complete for Board review (Mid-


May)







FY20 Capital Budget 


15


• Focus will remain on system reinvestment


• Largest Projects in FY20:
• Rail Cars: Continue to put cars into service & consistent 


deliveries
• Transbay Tube Seismic project underway


• Measure RR-funded projects will continue, including:
• Continue & accelerate rail replacement
• Replace more traction power cables & substations
• Downtown San Francisco escalator replacement
• Station Modernization programs







Major FY20 Capital Funding Sources


Federal and Regional Funds
• FTA 5337 State of Good Repair 


funds


• MTC/federal funds for rail cars


16


County and Local Partners
• BART District County Measures


• Transit Agency Partners: VTA 
and SFMTA


BART / Voter Approved
• Measure RR


• Operating to Capital Allocations


• Earthquake Safety Program







FY20 Budget: Schedule


• Jan 24: Financial Outlook (Board Workshop)


• Feb 28: Financial Outlook for FY20


• Mar 31: FY20 Preliminary Budget Memo release


• Apr 25: FY20 Preliminary Budget Overview


• May 9: FY20 Budget - Sources, Uses and Service Plan; 


Capital Budget


• May 23: FY20 Public Hearing; Adopt Proposition 4 Limit


• Jun 13: Adopt FY20 Budget Resolution
17





		Slide Number 1

		Introduction

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Expense: Labor

		Expense: Pension

		Expense: Retiree Medical

		FY19 Budget: Outlook

		FY20 Budget: Outlook

		FY20 Capital Budget Schedule

		FY20 Capital Budget 

		Major FY20 Capital Funding Sources

		FY20 Budget: Schedule






Quarterly Service Performance 
Review


Second Quarter, FY 2019
October - December, 2018


Operations & Safety Committee
February 28, 2019


1







2







3


SUMMARY CHART 2nd QUARTER FY 2019
    PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CURRENT QUARTER PRIOR QTR ACTUALS YEAR TO DATE


LAST THIS QTR
ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS QUARTER LAST YEAR ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS


Average Ridership - Weekday 405,321 416,273 NOT MET 419,692 414,093 412,742 418,227 NOT MET
Customers on Time
   Peak 92.29% 94.00% NOT MET 92.27% 89.36% 92.28% 94.00% NOT MET
   Daily 93.28% 94.00% NOT MET 93.59% 91.75% 93.44% 94.00% NOT MET
Trains on Time
   Peak 89.04%       N/A N/A 89.26% 84.07% 89.15% N/A N/A
   Daily 90.09% 91.00% NOT MET 91.27% 86.13% 90.68% 91.0% NOT MET
Peak Period Transbay Car Throughput
   AM Peak 91.10% 97.50% NOT MET 92.87% 95.05% 91.98% 97.50% NOT MET
   PM Peak 93.02% 97.50% NOT MET 95.22% 95.27% 94.12% 97.50% NOT MET
Car Availability at 4 AM (0400) 618 603 MET 585 590 602 600 MET
Mean Time Between Service Delays 4,810 4,000 MET 5,032 4,627 4,919 4,000 MET
Elevators in Service
   Station 99.23% 98.00% MET 99.03% 98.73% 99.13% 98.00% MET
   Garage 97.83% 97.00% MET 96.37% 98.53% 97.10% 97.00% MET
Escalators in Service
   Street 93.67% 93.00% MET 89.83% 91.67% 91.75% 93.00% NOT MET
   Platform 97.53% 96.00% MET 96.93% 95.80% 97.23% 96.00% MET
Automatic Fare Collection
   Gates 99.55% 99.00% MET 99.57% 99.56% 99.56% 99.00% MET
   Vendors 98.79% 95.00% MET 98.67% 95.84% 98.73% 95.00% MET
Wayside Train Control System 0.66 1.00 MET 0.76 1.49 0.71 1.00 MET
Computer Control System 0.36 0.08 NOT MET 0.027 0.097 0.192 0.08 NOT MET
Traction Power 0.46 0.20 NOT MET 0.04 0.12 0.25 0.20 NOT MET
Track 0.07 0.30 MET 0.14 0.10 0.11 0.30 MET
Transportation 0.54 0.50 NOT MET 0.50 0.41 0.52 0.50 NOT MET
Environment Outside Stations 0.00 0.00 MET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MET
Environment Inside Stations 0.00 0.00 MET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MET
Station Vandalism 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00
Station Services 0.00 0.00 MET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MET
Train P.A. Announcements 0.00 0.00 MET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MET
Train Exterior Appearance 0.00 0.00 MET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MET
Train Interior Appearance 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00
Train Temperature 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00
Customer Complaints
   Complaints per 100,000 Passenger Trips 10.31 5.07 NOT MET 10.05 6.84 10.18 5.07 NOT MET


Safety
   Station Incidents/Million Patrons 1.28 5.50 MET 1.73 1.68 1.51 5.50 MET
   Vehicle Incidents/Million Patrons 0.31 1.30 MET 0.46 0.47 0.39 1.30 MET
   Lost Time Injuries/Illnesses/Per OSHA 6.84 7.50 MET 5.74 7.66 6.29 7.50 MET
   OSHA-Recordable Injuries/Illnesses/Per OSHA 12.99 13.30 MET 11.21 11.07 12.10 13.30 MET
   Unscheduled Door Openings/Million Car Miles 0.050 0.300 MET 0.100 0.100 0.075 0.300 MET
   Rule Violations Summary/Million Car Miles 0.150 0.500 MET 0.300 0.210 0.225 0.500 MET


Police
   BART Police Presence 11.0% 11.9% NOT MET 11.0% 10.5% 11.0% 11.9% NOT MET
   Quality of Life per million riders 46.17 N/A N/A 40.38 67.79 43.27 N/A N/A
   Crimes Against Persons per million riders 5.02 2.00 NOT MET 3.83 3.49 4.42 2.00 NOT MET
   Auto Burglaries per 1,000 parking spaces 4.79 8.00 MET 4.39 6.26 4.59 8.00 MET
   Auto Thefts per 1,000 parking spaces 1.39 6.00 MET 1.66 1.39 1.52 6.00 MET
   Police Response Time per Emergency Incident (Minutes) 5.15 5.00 NOT MET 5.31 5.18 5.23 5.00 NOT MET
   Bike Thefts (Quarterly Total and YTD Quarterly Average) 57 150.00 MET 122 88 90 150.00 MET


LEGEND:                                                                                       Goal met        Goal not met but w ithin 5%   Goal not met by more than 5%







4







5


FY19 Second Quarter Overview


 Ridership decreased by 3% compared to same quarter last year, 
primary decreases off peak and weekends


 On-time performance is up 2.7% compared to same quarter last 
year


 Equipment Reliability: Car, Train Control and Track, met goal; 
Traction Power and Computer Systems did not meet goal


 Equipment Availability: Elevators (Station and Garage), Escalators 
(Platform and Street), Ticket Machines and Fare Gates met goal


 Passenger Environment: Station Cleanliness, Grounds, Vandalism, 
Train Temperature and Fare Evasion scopes improved; Customer 
service remained flat; Train Cleanliness and Homeless scores fell.


 Total Customer Complaints decreased by 2% 







Customer Ridership


6


370,000


380,000


390,000


400,000


410,000


420,000


430,000


440,000


450,000


460,000


470,000


480,000


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Av
er


ag
e 


W
ee


kd
ay


 T
rip


s


 Total ridership decreased by 3.0% compared to same quarter last year
 Average weekday ridership (405,321) down by 2.1% from same quarter last year
 Core weekday ridership down by 1.9% from same quarter last year
 SFO Extension weekday ridership down by 3.4% from same quarter last year
 Average peak ridership up by 0.8% compared to same quarter last year
 Saturday and Sunday down by 6.8% and 8.8%, respectively, from same quarter 


last year
 November was affected by nearly two weeks of very poor air quality from the 


northern California fires





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


426492


439970


423264


430308


391219


405048


395222


411761


413949


426281


408861


424036


413031


425647


416795


425218


420286


426130


412411


416977


415370


416829


432972


427370


426829


428400


399130


422284


385570


395107





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			426492			439970


			Nov			423264			430308


			Dec			391219			405048


			Jan			395222			411761


			Feb			413949			426281


			Mar			408861			424036


			April			413031			425647


			May			416795			425218


			June			420286			426130


			July			412411			416977


			Aug			415370			416829


			Sept			432972			427370


			Oct			426829			428400


			Nov			399130			422284


			Dec			385570			395107












On-Time Service - Customer


7


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


O
n-


Ti
m


e 
Se


rv
ic


e-
Cu


st
om


er


 Goal not met – Actual 93.3% / Goal 94.00%
 Down 0.3% from prior quarter, up 1.5% from this quarter last year


1 29-Oct-18 Balboa Park Train Struck A Person On Trackway People 154
2 29-Oct-18 W. Oakland Brake Vehicle 120
3 17-Nov-18 L & A-Lines Net.com System(Bad Trunk Card)(See Item 6) Equip 110
4 31-Oct-18 MacArthur Essential Power Failure(Comm. Link Affected) Equip 93
5 29-Nov-18 19th St. I-Lk 3rd Rail Power (Propagating Delays) Equip 86
6 16-Nov-18 L & A-Lines Net.com System(Continued See Item 3) Equip 74
7 16-Nov-18 Bay Fair Propulsion(Semiconductor Box Fire) Vehicle 75
8 17-Nov-18 A & L Lines Multiple-Cause Delays(Veh./F.O./Routing) Equip 66
9 29-Nov-18 Systemwide Weather (Wet Tracks) Weather 64


10 2-Oct-18 W. Oakland BPD Hold (Unstable Patron) People 61





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


0.9147419355


0.95


0.9161724138


0.95


0.921516129


0.95


0.9297419355


0.95


0.9372857143


0.95


0.9362903226


0.95


0.9478333333


0.95


0.9501935484


0.95


0.9271333333


0.95


0.9423870968


0.94


0.9281034483


0.94


0.9368076923


0.94


0.935


0.94


0.9271333333


0.94


0.9361935484


0.94





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.9147419355			0.95


			Nov			0.9161724138			0.95


			Dec			0.921516129			0.95


			Jan			0.9297419355			0.95


			Feb			0.9372857143			0.95


			Mar			0.9362903226			0.95


			April			0.9478333333			0.95


			May			0.9501935484			0.95


			June			0.9271333333			0.95


			July			0.9423870968			0.94


			Aug			0.9281034483			0.94


			Sept			0.9368076923			0.94


			Oct			0.935			0.94


			Nov			0.9271333333			0.94


			Dec			0.9361935484			0.94












On-Time Service - Train


8


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results Goal


O
n-


Ti
m


e 
Se


rv
ic


e 
-T


ra
in


 Goal Not Met – Actual 90.1% / 91% Goal
 Down 1.2% from prior quarter, up 4% from this quarter last year
 37.9% of late trains were late due to multiple small delays, each under 5 minutes


POLICE ACTIONS 29.2%of delayed trains
RAIL CAR 11.9%of delayed trains
TRAIN CONTROL 7.6%of delayed trains
OPERATIONS 6.3%of delayed trains
TRACTION POWER 5.3%of delayed trains
PATRON ILL 4.9%of delayed trains
VANDALISM 4.8%of delayed trains
MULTIPLE CAUSE 4.3%of delayed trains
TRAIN STUCK PATRON 4.2%of delayed trains
COMPUTER/COMMS 4.0%of delayed trains





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


0.8471486114


0.92


0.8650103752


0.92


0.8723076923


0.92


0.8767196905


0.92


0.8940097516


0.92


0.8924205379


0.92


0.9164177512


0.92


0.9220899199


0.92


0.8973327688


0.92


0.9157916842


0.91


0.9021055783


0.91


0.921260274


0.91


0.9085341365


0.91


0.8836142522


0.91


0.9099680171


0.91





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.8471486114			0.92


			Nov			0.8650103752			0.92


			Dec			0.8723076923			0.92


			Jan			0.8767196905			0.92


			Feb			0.8940097516			0.92


			Mar			0.8924205379			0.92


			April			0.9164177512			0.92


			May			0.9220899199			0.92


			June			0.8973327688			0.92


			July			0.9157916842			0.91


			Aug			0.9021055783			0.91


			Sept			0.921260274			0.91


			Oct			0.9085341365			0.91


			Nov			0.8836142522			0.91


			Dec			0.9099680171			0.91












Wayside Train Control System


9


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


3.5


4.0


4.5


5.0


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal met – Actual 0.66 / Goal 1.00
15% improvement over last quarter, 125% improvement over same 
quarter a year ago


 Continued Equipment, Hardware and Software upgrades
 Improved Training


Includes False Occupancy & Routing, Delays Per 100 Train Runs





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


1.61


1


1


1


1.86


1


0.78


1


0.79


1


0.95


1


0.49


1


0.67


1


1.19


1


0.78


1


1.08


1


0.43


1


0.41


1


1.15


1


0.41


1





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			1.61			1


			Nov			1			1


			Dec			1.86			1


			Jan			0.78			1


			Feb			0.79			1


			Mar			0.95			1


			April			0.49			1


			May			0.67			1


			June			1.19			1


			July			0.78			1


			Aug			1.08			1


			Sept			0.43			1


			Oct			0.41			1


			Nov			1.15			1


			Dec			0.41			1












Computer Control System


10


Includes ICS computer & SORS, Delays per 100 train runs


0.0


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.8


0.9


1.0


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal not met – Actual 0.36 / Goal 0.08
 Driven by Net.com failure near Bay Fair 
 Hired expert consultant and secured advanced software license





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


0.23


0.08


0.03


0.08


0.03


0.08


0.01


0.08


0.02


0.08


0.02


0.08


0.02


0.08


0.03


0.08


0.03


0.08


0.02


0.08


0.06


0.08


0


0.08


0.01


0.08


1.05


0.08


0.01


0.08





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.23			0.08


			Nov			0.03			0.08


			Dec			0.03			0.08


			Jan			0.01			0.08


			Feb			0.02			0.08


			Mar			0.02			0.08


			April			0.02			0.08


			May			0.03			0.08


			June			0.03			0.08


			July			0.02			0.08


			Aug			0.06			0.08


			Sept			0			0.08


			Oct			0.01			0.08


			Nov			1.05			0.08


			Dec			0.01			0.08












11


Includes Coverboards, Insulators, Third Rail Trips, Substations, Delays Per 100 Train Runs


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal not met – Actual .46 / Goal .2
 Two failures during replacement of Uninterrupted Power 


Supply at MacArthur
 PG&E outage with no backup power 
 T/C power supplies failure at commissioning


Traction Power 





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


0.26


0.2


0.04


0.2


0.07


0.2


0.11


0.2


0.27


0.2


0.02


0.2


0.05


0.2


0.01


0.2


0.11


0.2


0.06


0.2


0.06


0.2


0.01


0.2


0.71


0.2


0.51


0.2


0.15


0.2





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.26			0.2


			Nov			0.04			0.2


			Dec			0.07			0.2


			Jan			0.11			0.2


			Feb			0.27			0.2


			Mar			0.02			0.2


			April			0.05			0.2


			May			0.01			0.2


			June			0.11			0.2


			July			0.06			0.2


			Aug			0.06			0.2


			Sept			0.01			0.2


			Oct			0.71			0.2


			Nov			0.51			0.2


			Dec			0.15			0.2












Track


12


Includes Rail, Track Tie, Misalignment, Switch, Delays Per 100 Train Runs


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


2.0


2.5


3.0


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal met – Actual .07 / Goal .30
 5 Miles of Track Replaced FY19 through second quarter
 74 pass miles of Track Ground FY19 through second Quarter
 C55 Interlocking Scheduled for Replacement this Spring





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			0.3


			Aug			0.3


			Sept			0.3


			Oct			0.3


			Nov			0.3


			Dec			0.3





Results


Goal


0.04


0.3


0.1


0.3


0.16


0.3


0.13


0.3


0


0.3


0


0.3


0.03


0.3


0.01


0.3


0


0.3


0.03


0.37


0.01


0


0.01


0.21





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.04			0.3


			Nov			0.1			0.3


			Dec			0.16			0.3


			Jan			0.13			0.3


			Feb			0.00			0.3


			Mar			0.00			0.3


			April			0.03			0.3


			May			0.01			0.3


			June			0.00			0.3


			July			0.03			0.3


			Aug			0.37			0.3


			Sept			0.01			0.3


			Oct			0.00			0.3


			Nov			0.01			0.3


			Dec			0.21			0.3












Car Equipment - Reliability


13


2500


3000


3500


4000


4500


5000


5500


6000


6500


7000


7500


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


M
ea


n 
Ti


m
e 


Be
tw


ee
n 


Se
rv


ic
e 


De
la


ys
 (H


ou
rs


)


 Goal met – Actual 4,810 hours/Goal 4,000 hours 
4% improvement over same quarter last year 


 Propulsion delays decreased from previous quarter. Q1- 33 | Q2- 28 
 Friction Brakes delays decreased from previous quarter. Q1- 30 | Q2- 21  





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


4573


4000


5259


4000


4162


4000


5853


4000


4345


4000


4288


4000


4804


4000


5043


4000


4240


4000


4915


4000


4845


4000


5387


4000


4910


4000


4302


4000


5331


4000





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			4573			4000


			Nov			5259			4000


			Dec			4162			4000


			Jan			5853			4000


			Feb			4345			4000


			Mar			4288			4000


			April			4804			4000


			May			5043			4000


			June			4240			4000


			July			4915			4000


			Aug			4845			4000


			Sept			5387			4000


			Oct			4910			4000


			Nov			4302			4000


			Dec			5331			4000












Car Equipment – Availability @ 0400 hours


14


425


450


475


500


525


550


575


600


625


650


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


GoalN
um


be
r o


f C
ar


s


 Goal met – Actual 618/ Goal 603 
 Additional FOTF revenue vehicles in service provided some relief
 Fleet availability requirement decreased from 88.94% to 86.72%
 09/2018 SCRAM:  A 84.75% |  B 94.74%  |  C 80.43% | Total 88.94%
 11/2018 SCRAM: Legacy fleet 89.14% | Overall Fleet 86.72% 





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


572.7096774194


595


607.1379310345


595


590.3225806452


595


597.8064516129


595


597.5714285714


595


592.6451612903


595


586.7666666667


595


595.7741935484


595


585.1333333333


595


579.935483871


595


585.8064516129


595


590.8333333333


603


614.935483871


603


606.4666666667


601


631.7419354839


604





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			572.7096774194			595


			Nov			607.1379310345			595


			Dec			590.3225806452			595


			Jan			597.8064516129			595


			Feb			597.5714285714			595


			Mar			592.6451612903			595


			April			586.7666666667			595


			May			595.7741935484			595


			June			585.1333333333			595


			July			579.935483871			595


			Aug			585.8064516129			595


			Sept			590.8333333333			603


			Oct			614.935483871			603


			Nov			606.4666666667			601


			Dec			631.7419354839			604












Transportation


15


Includes Late Dispatches, Controller-Train Operator-Tower Procedures and Other Operational Delays 
Per 100 Train Runs


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


De
la


ye
d 


 T
ra


in
s  


pe
r 1


00
 T


ra
in


 T
rip


s


 Goal not met – Actual .54 / Goal .5
 Staffing shortage due to FOTF Training





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


0.52


0.5


0.23


0.5


0.48


0.5


0.6


0.5


0.36


0.5


0.7


0.5


0.73


0.5


0.49


0.5


0.4


0.5


0.4


0.5


0.51


0.5


0.59


0.5


0.42


0.5


0.7


0.5


0.51


0.5





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.52			0.5


			Nov			0.23			0.5


			Dec			0.48			0.5


			Jan			0.6			0.5


			Feb			0.36			0.5


			Mar			0.7			0.5


			April			0.73			0.5


			May			0.49			0.5


			June			0.4			0.5


			July			0.4			0.5


			Aug			0.51			0.5


			Sept			0.59			0.5


			Oct			0.42			0.5


			Nov			0.7			0.5


			Dec			0.51			0.5












Elevator Availability - Stations


16


80%


85%


90%


95%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Active


Goal


All


 Goal met - Actual 99.23% / Goal 98%
0.2% improvement above last quarter, 0.5% improvement over same 
quarter last year


 4 of the 86 Elevators were major contributors to Out of Service time.
-- Walnut Creek Elevator was down for 119 hours due to Vandalism
-- The remaining 3 Elevators were down for  Door malfunctions. 





Chart1


			Oct			Oct			0.987


			Nov			Nov			0.987


			Dec			Dec			0.988


			Jan			Jan			0.977


			Feb			Feb			0.979


			Mar			Mar			0.982


			April			April			0.987


			May			May			0.98


			June			June			0.985


			July			July			0.991


			Aug			Aug			0.992


			Sept			Sept			0.988


			Oct			Oct			0.993


			Nov			Nov			0.99


			Dec			Dec			0.994





Active


Goal


All


0.987


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.988


0.98


0.977


0.98


0.979


0.98


0.982


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.98


0.98


0.985


0.98


0.991


0.98


0.992


0.98


0.988


0.98


0.993


0.98


0.99


0.98


0.994


0.98





Sheet1


			Month			Active			Goal			All


			Oct			0.987			0.98			0.987


			Nov			0.987			0.98			0.987


			Dec			0.988			0.98			0.988


			Jan			0.977			0.98			0.977


			Feb			0.979			0.98			0.979


			Mar			0.982			0.98			0.982


			April			0.987			0.98			0.987


			May			0.98			0.98			0.98


			June			0.985			0.98			0.985


			July			0.991			0.98			0.991


			Aug			0.992			0.98			0.992


			Sept			0.988			0.98			0.988


			Oct			0.993			0.98			0.993


			Nov			0.99			0.98			0.99


			Dec			0.994			0.98			0.994












Elevator Availability - Garage


17


 Goal met – Actual 97.8% / Goal 97%  
0.6% improvement over last quarter, 0.7%  below same quarter last year


80%


85%


90%


95%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar AprilMayJune July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


0.977


0.98


0.992


0.98


0.987


0.98


0.985


0.98


0.978


0.98


0.968


0.98


0.972


0.98


0.984


0.98


0.985


0.98


0.967


0.97


0.953


0.97


0.971


0.97


0.973


0.97


0.968


0.97


0.994


0.97





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.977			0.98


			Nov			0.992			0.98


			Dec			0.987			0.98


			Jan			0.985			0.98


			Feb			0.978			0.98


			Mar			0.968			0.98


			April			0.972			0.98


			May			0.984			0.98


			June			0.985			0.98


			July			0.967			0.97


			Aug			0.953			0.97


			Sept			0.971			0.97


			Oct			0.973			0.97


			Nov			0.968			0.97


			Dec			0.994			0.97












Escalator Availability - Street


18


 Goal met – Actual 93.7% / Goal 93%
up 3.8% from last quarter, 2.2% over same quarter last year


 FY19 Realigned the PM routes to increase ownership and 
focus on worst performers


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Weighted
Availability





Chart1


			Oct			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar			Mar


			April			April			April


			May			May			May


			June			June			June


			July			July			July


			Aug			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


Weighted Availability


0.886


0.95


0.8216


0.926


0.95


0.8307


0.938


0.95


0.8729


0.87


0.95


0.8096


0.868


0.95


0.8317


0.787


0.95


0.7511


0.873


0.95


0.86


0.849


0.95


0.8159


0.879


0.95


0.8515


0.89


0.93


0.8678


0.904


0.93


0.8723


0.901


0.93


0.8699


0.936


0.93


0.9002


0.918


0.93


0.8933


0.956


0.93


0.9567





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal			Weighted Availability


			Oct			0.886			0.95			0.8216


			Nov			0.926			0.95			0.8307


			Dec			0.938			0.95			0.8729


			Jan			0.87			0.95			0.8096


			Feb			0.868			0.95			0.8317


			Mar			0.787			0.95			0.7511


			April			0.873			0.95			0.86


			May			0.849			0.95			0.8159


			June			0.879			0.95			0.8515


			July			0.89			0.93			0.8678


			Aug			0.904			0.93			0.8723


			Sept			0.901			0.93			0.8699


			Oct			0.936			0.93			0.9002


			Nov			0.918			0.93			0.8933


			Dec			0.956			0.93			0.9567












Escalator Availability - Platform


19


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Weighted
Availability


 Goal met – Actual 97.5% / Goal 96%
Up 0.62% over last quarter, up 1.8% same quarter one year ago


 Focusing on PM’s, timely response to failures units and root 
cause analysis on poor performers 





Chart1


			Oct			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar			Mar


			April			April			April


			May			May			May


			June			June			June


			July			July			July


			Aug			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


Weighted Availability


0.958


0.96


0.9465


0.95


0.96


0.9424


0.966


0.96


0.9657


0.949


0.96


0.9485


0.952


0.96


0.9595


0.958


0.96


0.9619


0.968


0.96


0.9736


0.944


0.96


0.9583


0.948


0.96


0.9556


0.961


0.96


0.9623


0.986


0.96


0.9747


0.961


0.96


0.9584


0.976


0.96


0.9658


0.972


0.96


0.9664


0.978


0.96


0.9746





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal			Weighted Availability


			Oct			0.9580			0.9600			0.9465


			Nov			0.9500			0.9600			0.9424


			Dec			0.9660			0.9600			0.9657


			Jan			0.9490			0.9600			0.9485


			Feb			0.9520			0.9600			0.9595


			Mar			0.9580			0.9600			0.9619


			April			0.9680			0.9600			0.9736


			May			0.9440			0.9600			0.9583


			June			0.9480			0.9600			0.9556


			July			0.9610			0.9600			0.9623


			Aug			0.9860			0.9600			0.9747


			Sept			0.9610			0.9600			0.9584


			Oct			0.9760			0.9600			0.9658


			Nov			0.9720			0.9600			0.9664


			Dec			0.9780			0.9600			0.9746












AFC Gate Availability


20


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


 Goal met  - Actual 99.6% / Goal 99.0%
 AFC partnership with Transportation to identify failures 


early and respond quickly. 





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


0.995


0.99


0.9967


0.99


0.995


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.991


0.99


0.993


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.995


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.995


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.996


0.99


0.9955


0.99


0.995


0.99





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.995			0.99


			Nov			0.9967			0.99


			Dec			0.995			0.99


			Jan			0.996			0.99


			Feb			0.991			0.99


			Mar			0.993			0.99


			April			0.996			0.99


			May			0.996			0.99


			June			0.995			0.99


			July			0.996			0.99


			Aug			0.995			0.99


			Sept			0.996			0.99


			Oct			0.996			0.99


			Nov			0.9955			0.99


			Dec			0.995			0.99












AFC Vendor Availability


21


60%


70%


80%


90%


100%


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


 Goal met  - Actual 98.8% / Goal 95.0%
 Parking Validation Machines Availability – 99.1%





Chart1


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec


			Jan			Jan


			Feb			Feb


			Mar			Mar


			April			April


			May			May


			June			June


			July			July


			Aug			Aug


			Sept			Sept


			Oct			Oct


			Nov			Nov


			Dec			Dec





Results


Goal


0.959


0.95


0.9613


0.95


0.955


0.95


0.968


0.95


0.968


0.95


0.971


0.95


0.977


0.95


0.983


0.95


0.9866


0.95


0.987


0.95


0.986


0.95


0.987


0.95


0.987


0.95


0.9886


0.95


0.988


0.95





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			0.959			0.95


			Nov			0.9613			0.95


			Dec			0.955			0.95


			Jan			0.968			0.95


			Feb			0.968			0.95


			Mar			0.971			0.95


			April			0.977			0.95


			May			0.983			0.95


			June			0.9866			0.95


			July			0.987			0.95


			Aug			0.986			0.95


			Sept			0.987			0.95


			Oct			0.987			0.95


			Nov			0.9886			0.95


			Dec			0.988			0.95












Environment - Outside Stations


22


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• Changes in the PES questionnaire: Appearance of BART 
Landscaping was combined with Walkways and Entry Plaza


• Significant increase in Appearance Of BART Landscaping, 
Walkways & Entry Plaza Just Outside Station 


• Will establish goal for FY20


FY18 Q2 FY18 Q3 FY18 Q4 FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2
Environment Outside Stations (composite) 62.6% 65.3%
Appearance Of BART Landscaping, Walkways & 
Entry Plaza Just Outside Station (weight 67%) 58.1% 61.6%


BART Parking Lot Cleanliness (weight 33%) 70.2% 71.4% 74.2% 71.7% 72.7%


 Trending Positive







Environment - Inside Stations


23


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• Changes in the PES questionnaire: added Cleanliness of Concourse, 
Escalator Cleanliness, Stairwell Cleanliness; dropped Cleanliness of Other 
Areas


• Significant increase in Escalator Cleanliness and Stairwell Cleanliness
• Will establish goal for FY20


FY18 Q2 FY18 Q3 FY18 Q4 FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2
Environment Inside Stations (composite) 62.2% 63.8%
Cleanliness Of Station Platform (weight 40%) 63.1% 63.9% 63.3% 67.6% 68.8%
Cleanliness Of Concourse  (weight 25%) 62.7% 64.1%
Escalator Cleanliness  (weight 10%) 63.7% 66.0%
Stairwell Cleanliness  (weight 7.5%) 56.8% 59.9%
Elevator Cleanliness  (weight 10%) 46.7% 45.7% 42.8% 63.7% 57.9%
Restroom Cleanliness  (weight 7.5%) 34.7% 32.9% 35.2% 43.4% 44.6%


 Trending Positive
 Some decline on elevator cleanliness







Station Vandalism


24


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


 Trending Positive


• Changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating Excellent and Good
• Will establish goal for FY20


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2


Station kept free of graffiti
71.6% 73.8%







Train Interior Cleanliness


25


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• Changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating Excellent and 
Good


• Significant decrease in Train Interior Cleanliness from prior 
quarter


• Will establish goal for FY20


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2


Train Interior Cleanliness (composite) 70.8% 68.3%


Train Interior Cleanliness (weight 65%) 61.7% 58.3%↓


Train Interior kept free of graffiti (weight 35%) 87.7% 86.9%


 Decline across the board
 Winter weather and increased SFPD patrols in Downtown SF stations drove homeless Patrons 


onto trains last quarter
 Midline Rapid Response continues to improve mainline biohazard intercepts
 90 day Thorough Clean program remains in force







Train Temperature


26


 Trending positive
 Modification to A and B car HVAC appears to be paying


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


• Changes in the PES scoring scale: percent rating Excellent and 
Good


• Will establish goal for FY20


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2


Comfortable Temperature on board train 79.7% 80.9%







Customer Service


27


• New Performance Indicator
• Customer service from Station Agent replaces Availability of 


Brochures and Availability of Station Agents 
• PA Announcements for Transfer, Next Station and Destination 


combined into one attribute 
• Building historical data for the all of the elements 
• Will establish goal for FY20


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2


Customer Service (composite, all weighted equally) 74.9% 74.9%


Customer service from Station Agent (if used today) 69.8% 69.8%


Onboard next stop, destination and transfer announcements 76.5% 77.7%


Onboard delay announcements (if this train was delayed today) 78.5% 77.3%


 Trend is fairly flat







Homelessness 


28


• New Performance Indicator
• Building historical data  
• Will establish goal for FY20


Ratings guide: 
• Scale:
• Excellent
• Good
• Only Fair
• Poor
• Rating=% Excellent and Good
• Yes/No


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2


How well BART is addressing homelessness 23.7% 23.4%


 Trend is down
 Largely attributable to winter weather







Fare Evasion


• New Performance Indicator
• Building historical data
• Will establish goal for FY20


29


Ratings guide: 
Scale:
• Yes
• No
• I don’t know


Rating = % Yes


FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2


Rider saw someone not pay their fare 18.1% (Yes) 17.0% (Yes)


 Positive trend







Customer Complaints


30


Complaints Per 100,000 Customers


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


14


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec


Results


Goal


Pe
r 1


00
,0


00
 C


us
to


m
er


s


 Total complaints decreased by 61 (2%) from last quarter, up 971 (47.6%) over the 
second quarter FY18. 


 Complaints numbers decreased or remained flat in all categories except for:
 “Announcements” up 16 over last quarter
 “Biohazard” up 236 over last quarter


 A new category “Apps” was established to captured 612 concerns about the 
redesigned website and release of official mobile app. Trip planner, airport 
discount mobile ticketing, BARTWatch, and BART Perks.





Chart1


			Oct			5.07


			Nov			5.07


			Dec			5.07


			Jan			5.07


			Feb			5.07


			Mar			5.07


			April			5.07


			May			5.07


			June			5.07


			July			5.07


			Aug			5.07


			Sept			5.07


			Oct			5.07


			Nov			5.07


			Dec			5.07





Results


Goal


8.0935045285


6.5607266966


5.6937468614


6.7921704236


7.8346769986


6.887856359


6.944539361


7.2853179388


9.1561034334


9.2167610306


9.4458500433


11.5809047105


8.3888957253


9.3792315174


13.6848499929





Sheet1


			Month			Results			Goal


			Oct			8.0935045285			5.07


			Nov			6.5607266966			5.07


			Dec			5.6937468614			5.07


			Jan			6.7921704236			5.07


			Feb			7.8346769986			5.07


			Mar			6.887856359			5.07


			April			6.944539361			5.07


			May			7.2853179388			5.07


			June			9.1561034334			5.07


			July			9.2167610306			5.07


			Aug			9.4458500433			5.07


			Sept			11.5809047105			5.07


			Oct			8.3888957253			5.07


			Nov			9.3792315174			5.07


			Dec			13.6848499929			5.07












Patron Safety


31


Station Incidents per Million Patrons


St
at


io
n 


In
ci


de
nt


s/
M


ill
io


n 
Pa


tr
on


s


 Goal met





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 1			FY2018 Qtr 1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1





Results


Benchmark


1.56


5.5


1.68


5.5


1.1


5.5


1.2


5.5


1.73


5.5





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 1			1.56			5.5


			FY2018 Qtr 2			1.68			5.5


			FY2018 Qtr 3			1.1			5.5


			FY2018 Qtr 4			1.2			5.5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			1.73			5.5












Patron Safety


32


Vehicle Incidents per Million Patrons


0


1


2


3


4


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


Ve
hi


cl
e 


In
ci


de
nt


s/
M


ill
io


n 
Pa


tr
on


s


 Goal met





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Benchmark


0.47


1.3


0.38


1.3


0.36


1.3


0.46


1.3


0.31


1.3





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 2			0.47			1.3


			FY2018 Qtr 3			0.38			1.3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			0.36			1.3


			FY2019 Qtr 1			0.46			1.3


			FY2019 Qtr 2			0.31			1.3












Employee Safety


33


Lost Time Injuries/Illnesses per OSHA Incidence Rate


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


14


16


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


Lo
st


 T
im


e 
In


ju
rie


s/
Ill


ne
ss


 p
er


 O
SH


A 
ra


te


 Goal met





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Benchmark


7.66


7.5


5.6


7.5


5.88


7.5


5.74


7.5


5.88


7.5





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 2			7.66			7.5


			FY2018 Qtr 3			5.6			7.5


			FY2018 Qtr 4			5.88			7.5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			5.74			7.5


			FY2019 Qtr 2			5.88			7.5












Employee Safety


34


OSHA-Recordable Injuries/Illnesses per OSHA Incidence Rate


0


4


8


12


16


20


24


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Re sults


Benc hmark


O
SH


A 
Re


co
rd


ab
le


 In
ju


rie
s/


Ill
ne


ss
es


/O
SH


A 
ra


te


 Goal met





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Benchmark


11.07


13.3


8.2


13.3


8.34


13.3


11.21


13.3


8.34


13.3





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 2			11.07			13.3


			FY2018 Qtr 3			8.2			13.3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			8.34			13.3


			FY2019 Qtr 1			11.21			13.3


			FY2019 Qtr 2			8.34			13.3












Operating Safety


35


Unscheduled Door Openings per Million Car Miles


0.000


0.100


0.200


0.300


0.400


0.500


0.600


0.700


0.800


0.900


1.000


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


U
ns


ch
ed


ul
ed


 D
oo


r O
pe


ni
ng


s/
M


ill
io


n 
Ca


r M
ile


s


 Goal met





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Benchmark


0.1


0.3


0.21


0.3


0.2


0.3


0.1


0.3


0.05


0.3





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 2			0.1			0.3


			FY2018 Qtr 3			0.21			0.3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			0.2			0.3


			FY2019 Qtr 1			0.1			0.3


			FY2019 Qtr 2			0.05			0.3












Operating Safety


36


0.0


0.5


1.0


1.5


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Results


Benchmark


Rule Violations per Million Car Miles


Ru
le


 V
io


la
tio


ns
 p


er
 M


ill
io


n 
Ca


r M
ile


s


 Goal met





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Benchmark


0.21


0.5


0.05


0.5


0.2


0.5


0.3


0.5


0.15


0.5





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Benchmark


			FY2018 Qtr 2			0.21			0.5


			FY2018 Qtr 3			0.05			0.5


			FY2018 Qtr 4			0.2			0.5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			0.3			0.5


			FY2019 Qtr 2			0.15			0.5












BART Police Presence 


37


10.5% 10.6%
10.5% 11.0% 11.0%


0%


10%


20%


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Results


Goal (11.9%
Avg.)


Ratings Guide:
• Yes
• No
• I Don’t Know
Rating = % Yes


 Goal not met
Police Presence Composite (All items equally weighted) 11.0%
Police seen on train 6.5%
Police seen outside the station 13.9%
Police seen in the station 9.3%
Police seen on train after 7:00PM and Weekends 8.5%
Police seen outside the station after 7:00PM and Weekends 14.5%
Police seen in the station after 7:00PM and Weekends 13.4%





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Goal (11.9% Avg.)


0.104628717


0.119


0.106250905


0.119


0.1045291198


0.119


0.11


0.119


0.11


0.119





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal (11.9% Avg.)


			FY2018 Qtr 2			0.104628717			0.119


			FY2018 Qtr 3			0.106250905			0.119


			FY2018 Qtr 4			0.1045291198			0.119


			FY2019 Qtr 1			0.11			0.119


			FY2019 Qtr 2			0.11			0.119












Quality of Life*


38


0


50


100


150


200


250


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Results


Cr
im


es
 p


er
 M


ill
io


n 
Tr


ip
s


*Quality of Life Violations: Disturbing the Peace, Vagrancy, Public Urination,
Fare Evasion, Loud Music/Radios, Smoking, Eating/Drinking and Expectoration


 Quality of Life incidents are up from the last quarter but down 
from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


67.7868499551


134.4125758862


44.5903126896


40.3755237816


46.1663724627





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 2			67.7868499551			0


			FY2018 Qtr 3			134.4125758862			0


			FY2018 Qtr 4			44.5903126896			0


			FY2019 Qtr 1			40.3755237816			0


			FY2019 Qtr 2			46.1663724627			0












Crimes Against Persons


39


Crimes Against Persons include: Homicide, Rape, Robbery and Aggravated Assaults


0


1


2


3


4


5


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


Cr
im


es
 p


er
 M


ill
io


n 
Tr


ip
s


 Goal not met
 Increase driven by cell phone robberies in San Francisco





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Goal


3.4900160373


2


3.6012555417


2


3.867527121


2


3.8281493375


2


5.0180839633


2





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 2			3.4900160373			2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			3.6012555417			2


			FY2018 Qtr 4			3.867527121			2


			FY2019 Qtr 1			3.8281493375			2


			FY2019 Qtr 2			5.0180839633			2












Auto Burglary


40


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


FY2018 Q2 FY2018 Q3 FY2018 Q4 FY2019 Q1 FY2019 Q2


Results


Goal


Cr
im


es
 p


er
 1


00
0 


Pa
rk


in
g 


Sp
ac


es


 Goal met
 The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are up from last 


quarter but down from same quarter last year





Chart1


			FY2018 Q2			FY2018 Q2


			FY2018 Q3			FY2018 Q3


			FY2018 Q4			FY2018 Q4


			FY2019 Q1			FY2019 Q1


			FY2019 Q2			FY2019 Q2





Results


Goal


6.26


8


4.41


8


5.88


8


4.39


8


4.79


8





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Q2			6.26			8


			FY2018 Q3			4.41			8


			FY2018 Q4			5.88			8


			FY2019 Q1			4.39			8


			FY2019 Q2			4.79			8












Auto Theft


41


0


2


4


6


8


10


12


FY2018 Qtr 2 FY2018 Qtr 3 FY2018 Qtr 4 FY2019 Qtr 1 FY2019 Qtr 2


Results


Goal


Cr
im


es
 p


er
 1


00
0 


Pa
rk


in
g 


Sp
ac


es


 Goal met
 The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are down from 


last quarter and from same quarter last year





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Goal


2.29


6


2.24


6


1.95


6


1.66


6


1.39


6





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 2			2.29			6


			FY2018 Qtr 3			2.24			6


			FY2018 Qtr 4			1.95			6


			FY2019 Qtr 1			1.66			6


			FY2019 Qtr 2			1.39			6












Average Emergency Response Time


42


0


2


4


6


8


10


FY2018
Qtr 2


FY2018
Qtr 3


FY2018
Qtr 4


FY2019
Qtr 1


FY2019
Qtr 2


Results


Goal


Re
sp


on
se


 T
im


e 
(in


 M
in


ut
es


)


 Goal not met
 Average Emergency Response Time was down from prior quarter 


and same quarter last year 





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Goal


5.18


5


4.96


5


4.36


5


5.31


5


5.15


5





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 2			5.18			5


			FY2018 Qtr 3			4.96			5


			FY2018 Qtr 4			4.36			5


			FY2019 Qtr 1			5.31			5


			FY2019 Qtr 2			5.15			5












Bike Theft


43


0
50


100
150
200
250
300


FY2018
Qtr 2


FY2018
Qtr 3


FY2018
Qtr 4


FY2019
Qtr 1


FY2019
Qtr 2


Results


Goal


To
ta


l  
Q


ua
rt


er
ly


 B
ik


e 
Th


ef
ts


 Goal met
 Incidents of bike theft down 114% from last quarter .





Chart1


			FY2018 Qtr 2			FY2018 Qtr 2


			FY2018 Qtr 3			FY2018 Qtr 3


			FY2018 Qtr 4			FY2018 Qtr 4


			FY2019 Qtr 1			FY2019 Qtr 1


			FY2019 Qtr 2			FY2019 Qtr 2





Results


Goal


88


150


71


150


99


150


122


150


57


150





Sheet1


			FiscalYearQuarter			Results			Goal


			FY2018 Qtr 2			88			150


			FY2018 Qtr 3			71			150


			FY2018 Qtr 4			99			150


			FY2019 Qtr 1			122			150


			FY2019 Qtr 2			57			150










		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Customer Ridership

		�On-Time Service - Customer�

		�On-Time Service - Train�

		Wayside Train Control System

		Computer Control System

		Traction Power 

		Track

		Car Equipment - Reliability

		Car Equipment – Availability @ 0400 hours

		Transportation

		Elevator Availability - Stations

		Elevator Availability - Garage

		Escalator Availability - Street

		Escalator Availability - Platform

		AFC Gate Availability

		AFC Vendor Availability

		�Environment - Outside Stations�

		Environment - Inside Stations

		Station Vandalism

		Train Interior Cleanliness

		Train Temperature

		Customer Service

		Homelessness 

		Fare Evasion

		Customer Complaints

		Patron Safety

		Patron Safety

		Employee Safety

		Employee Safety

		Operating Safety

		Operating Safety

		BART Police Presence 

		�Quality of Life*�

		�Crimes Against Persons�

		�Auto Burglary�

		Auto Theft

		Average Emergency Response Time

		Bike Theft






 
  


Surveillance Use Policy 
BART Research  
Data collection & usage for research and 
learning 


BART Research  
OEA-BMRDDCU-SUP-03 


21 Day BART Board Notice – Feb. 7, 2019  
15 Day Public Notice – Feb. 13, 2019  
BART Board Meeting – Feb. 28, 2019 







Surveillance Use Policy – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 2 of 4 
 


This report covers a range of current and future research methodologies that may fall under the District 
Surveillance Ordinance. Participation in BART surveys, focus groups, or other research conducted by BART that 
make use of PII (Personally Identifiable Information) is strictly voluntary, and any locational information collected 
is used for research purposes only. 
 


A. Purpose 
This section should include: The purpose(s) that the surveillance technology is intended to advance.  


 
BART conducts research for a variety of purposes, such as to: 


 
• Provide market information and metrics to help inform District decisions related to strategic planning, budget 


priorities, station access policy, marketing strategy, and other areas. 
• Gather insight into latent demand, usage of TNCs and other emerging travel modes, and understand impact on 


public transit usage. 
• Understand effectiveness of marketing initiatives by analyzing riders’ travel behavior changes over time. 
• Identify reasons for change in ridership patterns. 


 
Methodologies using electronic and/or mobile data collection may be used to facilitate the following: 
 


• Faster and less expensive data collection by eliminating the need to manually enter survey results. 
• Expanded research capabilities using real time and location-based mobile technologies.  
• ‘In the moment’ ratings of BART facilities to improve rating accuracy, and image data that helps explain the 


reasons for ratings. 
• The use of research panels to detect changes in travel patterns over time. 
• Analysis of Bay Area residents’ travel behavior, e.g., trip purposes, travel modes, travel mode shifts, vehicle 


occupancies, changes in car ownership habits, as well as demographics (for both riders and non-riders). 
 
 


B. Authorized Use 
This section should include: The uses that are authorized, the rules and processes required prior to such use, and the uses that are prohibited.  
 
All survey data collected through all channels and technologies, shall be used in a lawful manner. Section C shows a non-
exhaustive list of various information that may be collected from users who voluntarily participate in surveys. 
 
 


C. Data Collection 
This section should include: The information that can be collected by the surveillance technology. 
 
Data collected for research purposes may include: 


• Names, addresses, emails, phone numbers 
• Location information, such as points where trips started and ended, the date and time that such trips started and 


ended, and travel speed 
• Trip purpose, mode of travel, or demographics 
• Images, audio recordings, or videos  
• Payment data (e.g., for fares, parking, etc.  Payment data may include serial numbers, entry/exit stations, 


timestamps, and/or fare products loaded or used.  It will not contain credit card or bank account details.)  
• Self-reported survey data 







Surveillance Use Policy – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 3 of 4 
 


• Incentives awarded or redeemed 
 


Any data collected in the surveys must be used and handled pursuant to this policy. Survey data shall not be used for 
personal purposes or to follow any individual or group without probable cause or a court order. Data shall not be used to 
intentionally violate anyone’s right to privacy; and shall not be used to harass, intimidate, or discriminate against any 
individual or group.  
 
 


D. Data Access 
This section should include: The individuals (as a category) who can access or use the collected information, and the rules and processes required 
prior to access or use of the information.  
 


• Access to survey data collected through any method described in Section A is limited to BART Research staff and 
the department manager. 


• If BART partners with another agency, e.g., MTC’s Travel Survey, access to the data may be limited by the 
standards and policies of the partner agency.  


• Cloud-based research platforms that BART uses have access to research data. Security aspects of research 
software are subject to review by the OCIO to protect data security.  


 
 


E. Data Protection 
This section should include: The safeguards that protect information from unauthorized access, including encryption and access control mechanisms.  
 


• BART’s computer systems will be properly secured and maintained, including ensuring that security patches, 
upgrades, and anti-virus updates are applied as appropriate. 


• Any files containing PII will be stored on secure BART computers and will not be stored in an unencrypted format 
on any portable media. 


• Qualtrics, the current online survey software used by BART, deploys their own security and privacy policy to 
protect customer data. 


 
 


F. Data Retention 
This section should include: The time period, if any, for which information collected by the surveillance technology will be routinely retained, the 
reason such retention is regularly deleted after that period lapses, and the specific conditions that must be met to retain information beyond that 
period.  
 


• Research data may be retained on District computers for as long as the data are required for research, learning, 
and ridership development. 


o Going back to previous surveys may help BART understand if travel behavior has changed due to 
extraneous factors, e.g., housing crisis, employment shifts, gasoline price changes, etc. Ability to 
recontact past respondents can help track trends over time. 


• Online survey platforms may retain data for the duration of their agreements with the District 
o Upon termination of services, survey platforms will retain data for a short amount of time to allow 


download of data 
 
 
 
 



https://www.qualtrics.com/platform/security/

https://www.qualtrics.com/privacy-statement/





Surveillance Use Policy – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 4 of 4 
 


G. Public Access 
This section should include: How collected information can be requested by members of the public, including criminal defendants.  
 
Requests for information under the California Public Records Act should be filed with the Office of the District Secretary. 
Email records@bart.gov. Phone (510) 464-6080, Fax (510) 464-6011. Mail Public Records Request c/o District Secretary 
BART 300 Lakeside Drive 23rd Floor Oakland, CA 94612.  
 
PII will not be disclosed unless such disclosure is required by law. 
 
 


H. Third Party Data Sharing 
This section should include: If and how other BART District or non-BART District entities can access or use the information, including any required 
justification or legal standard necessary to do so and any obligations imposed on the recipient of the information.  
 
BART research data will not be shared with any third party unless such disclosure is required by law, or if shared under an 
agreement that ensures that the requirements of this document are met.  For example, BART may transfer selected data 
to consulting firms or governmental organizations to use for travel modeling or environmental impact assessment, 
providing that data handling and security requirements are met. 
 


I. Training 
This section should include: A summary of the training required for any individual authorized to use the surveillance technology or to access 
information collected by the surveillance technology.  
 
N/A.  Access to confidential data is tightly limited, and authorized users are provided with adequate guidance to implement 
this policy. Moreover, policy adherence is covered in regular research staff meetings. 
 
 


J. Auditing and Oversight 
This section should include: The mechanisms to ensure that the Surveillance Use Policy is followed, including internal personnel assigned to ensure 
compliance with the policy, internal recordkeeping of the use of the technology or access to information collected by the technology, technical 
measures to monitor for misuse, any independent person or entity with oversight authority.  
 
BART Research will assign a staff person to monitor compliance with the provisions covered in this document, as well as 
reporting via the District’s “Surveillance Annual Report.”  



mailto:records@bart.gov





 


   


Surveillance Impact Report 
BART Research 
Data collection & usage for research and learning 


BART Research 
OEA-BMRDDCU-SIR-03 


21 Day BART Board Notice – Feb. 7, 2019  
15 Day Public Notice – Feb. 13, 2019  
BART Board Meeting – Feb. 28, 2019 


 







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 2 of 6 
 


This report covers a range of current and future research methodologies that may fall under the District Surveillance 
Ordinance. Participation in BART surveys, focus groups, or other research conducted by BART that make use of PII 
(Personally Identifiable Information) is strictly voluntary, and any locational information collected is used for research 
purposes only. 


 
A. Information describing the proposed surveillance technology and how it 


generally works. 
 


1. Research panels: BART invites randomly selected customers to opt-in / volunteer to participate in future research 
and keeps contact information on file (e.g., email addresses or phone numbers) to contact those individuals in 
the future. After a customer has volunteered to participate in research, they can opt-out at any time. 
 


2. App-based research: BART may occasionally recruit people to participate in app-based surveys such as travel 
diaries that use Location Services to automatically trigger survey invitations and/or to collect respondent trip data. 
This may be done by BART alone, in partnership with other regional agencies such as the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC), and/or by a research supplier selected by the District. Tracking of respondent 
location is only done with the respondent’s permission. 
 
Types of trip data automatically collected in an app can include location, speed, and time. Participants may also 
be invited to answer standard survey questions such as trip purpose, travel modes used, mode they would have 
used if usual mode is not available, satisfaction ratings, as well as demographics.  
 
With some surveys, locational data may also be used to trigger survey questions that are specific to the location 
a respondent is traversing. For example, locational data could be used to invite respondents to provide ‘in the 
moment’ ratings of the cleanliness of a particular station while they are walking through it.  This can enhance the 
accuracy of their ratings. 
 


3. Collecting information through payment media: BART may analyze ridership or payment data, e.g., from BART 
tickets or Clipper Cards for research purposes. For example, BART may request ticket or Clipper serial numbers 
from respondents in order to analyze rider travel patterns or to measure the effectiveness of District initiatives 
(see example on the next page).  (Note that payment data may include serial numbers, entry/exit stations, 
timestamps, and/or fare products loaded or used.  It will not contain credit card or bank account details.)    







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 3 of 6 
 


      


 


 
4. IP / Location Stamps: Software used by BART to administer surveys may collect respondents’ IP (Internet 


Protocol) address and/or Location Data at the time of taking survey. All surveys taken using Qualtrics (which is 
the current online survey platform that BART uses) automatically collect this data when a survey is taken. Survey 
methods include: 


• Online surveys 
• Embedding survey link in website 
• Pop-up intercept surveys 
• QR code surveys 
• App surveys 
• SMS surveys 
• Other survey methods that BART may adapt in the future  


 


QUESTION 1 (Clipper Example) 
 
BART is studying travel patterns of riders and their usage of Clipper Cards*. We are offering a $5 
Amazon.com gift card to the first 200 riders who agree to participate in the study and provide us with their 
valid Clipper card number. 
 
 
Are you willing to participate by providing your Clipper Card ID number?  
Yes 
No 
 
*BART Research will access a limited amount of Clipper data (time/date of trips taken on BART and used for BART parking 
for up to 18 months) of those who answer "Yes". The data will be anonymized and aggregated. Personal travel data will not 
be reported publicly and will not be sold or traded for any purpose.  
  
BART uses security measures to protect against unauthorized access, alteration, disclosure or destruction of Customer’s 
personal information. 
 
 


          
 


                  


  


                     
                  


  
                      


     


QUESTION 2 [administered to those who answer “Yes” in Question1] 
 
Please enter the Clipper Card ID number* in the box below to receive a $5 Amazon.com gift card**.


  


Fine print: By entering your Clipper number, you agree to allow BART Research to access a limited amount of your Clipper 
data (time/date of trips taken on BART and used for BART parking for up to 18 months).  
  
The data will be anonymized and aggregated. Your personal travel data will not be reported publicly and will not be sold or 
traded for any purpose.  







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 4 of 6 
 


Currently IP and/or location data are deleted in BART’s files, but these data may be used in the future for data 
validation or quality control purposes. For example, for ‘in the moment’ ratings of cleanliness inside BART stations, 
BART could check location data to see if it matches locations reported by survey respondents.  


 
5. Collecting image data: In some research, BART may utilize image data.  For example, BART could ask survey 


respondents to take pictures or videos to document the reason behind a low cleanliness rating. Also, BART may 
use audio and/or video recording to record focus group or in-person interviews as a resource to use when 
preparing a report afterwards or for quality control purposes. In these cases, participants are always clearly 
informed at the start of a session and can opt-out if they are not comfortable with being recorded. 


 
6. Utilizing third party research data: BART may obtain research data from third parties for research purposes. For 


example, other organizations may provide BART with data, or BART may purchase data, to study travel markets 
or predict ridership on future extensions or connections to BART.  Such data is subject to the policies of the 
organization providing the data. 


 
All data collected via the methods described in this section (Section A) is subject to the “Surveillance Use Policy”, 
submitted with this “Surveillance Impact Report.” 


 


B. Information on the proposed purpose(s) for the surveillance technology. 
 


The research techniques discussed above serve the following purposes: 
 


• Provide market information and metrics to help inform District decisions related to strategic planning, budget 
priorities, station access policy, marketing strategy, and other areas. 


• Facilitate faster and less expensive data collection by eliminating the need to manually enter survey results. 
• Expand research capabilities using real time and location-based mobile technologies.  
• Facilitate ‘in the moment’ ratings of BART facilities to improve rating accuracy, and image data that helps explain 


the reasons for ratings. 
• Facilitate the study of nonrider travel patterns. 
• Facilitate use of research panels to detect changes in travel patterns over time. 


 
 


C. If applicable, the general location(s), it may be deployed. 
 
N/A 


 
 


D. Crime statistics for any location(s), if the equipment is used to deter or 
detect crime. 


 
N/A 


 
 
 







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 5 of 6 
 


E. An assessment identifying any potential impact on privacy rights and 
discussing any plans to safeguard the rights of the public. 


 
BART takes precautions to ensure that PII (Personally Identifiable Information) is protected from inadvertent public 
disclosure. Precautions include: 


• Providing BART survey respondents with opt-in and opt-out capabilities to ensure that participation is strictly 
voluntary; 


• Storing survey data in a protected directory only available to the research team and the OCIO; and 
• Aggregating and summarizing research information related to names, addresses, emails, Clipper serial numbers, 


or locational data, or stripping data of PII, prior to public release. 
 
PII will not be disclosed to the public unless such disclosure is required by law or court order. 
 
BART research is subject to BART’s Surveillance Technology Ordinance and a specific Surveillance Use Policy that has been 
publicly noticed and presented to the BART Board for approval. 
 
 


F. The fiscal costs for the surveillance technology, including initial purchase, 
personnel and other ongoing costs, and any current or potential sources of 
funding. 
 
Staff and direct costs associated with the types of research discussed in this application vary over time. Current costs 
include approximately $90,000 in staff time and approximately $30,000 in annual fees for online survey software. 
BART is considering working with MTC on a household travel survey project that will employ locational data. The cost 
to BART to increase sample sizes in the BART service area, and to revise the survey as needed, is expected to be under 
$100,000.  
 


 


G. Whether use or maintenance of the technology will require data gathered 
by the technology to be handled or stored by a third-party vendor on an 
ongoing basis. 
 
Some BART research data will be handled and stored by a third party, e.g., when using cloud-based survey software 
for online surveys.  See Surveillance Use Policy for specifics.  


 
 


H. A summary of alternative methods (whether involving the use of a new 
technology or not) considered before deciding to use the proposed 
surveillance technology, including the costs and benefits associated with 
each alternative and an explanation of the reasons why each alternative is 
inadequate or undesirable. 
 







Surveillance Impact Report – BART Research – Data Collection & Usage for Research & Learning 


Page 6 of 6 
 


Adaption of new research technology is expected to increase speed and accuracy of data collection/reporting while 
reducing cost. BART uses survey technologies to improve survey accuracy, expand reach, and reduce reliance on paper 
and staff time. There are no known alternative methods that achieve these objectives.  
 
For example, travel diary participants could be asked to manually fill out complex and lengthy forms to record all trips 
taken by members of their household during a given week. However, the forms would be quite burdensome, and 
respondents may fail to recall some of the trips they took or may leave out other important information.  
 
Another example: Instead of establishing random on-line research panels, BART could conduct more surveys on-board 
trains. But the on-board surveys are much more expensive and time consuming. While the on-board surveys provide 
accurate information about the on-board passenger experience, ratings of stations can be subject to memory lapse, 
and it doesn’t facilitate the study of changes in passenger travel patterns over time. 


 
 


I. A summary of the experience, if any is known, other law enforcement 
entities have had with the proposed technology, including information 
about the effectiveness, any known adverse information about the 
technology such as unanticipated costs, failures, civil rights or civil liberties 
issues. 


 
BART is not aware of any such adverse impacts of the research methodologies outlined in this report. 








ACA 1 (Aguiar-Curry) Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: ACA 1 - Local government financing: affordable housing and public infrastructure: voter approval 


AUTHOR(S): Aguiar-Curry (D-Winters) 


SPONSOR(S): Author 


BACKGROUND: 
Voters in several cities and Bay Area counties have recently approved bonds and taxes dedicated to funding 
local transportation projects and affordable housing. However, in some parts of the Bay Area and across the 
state, sales tax measures have been presented to voters, but repeatedly fall short of the two-thirds voter 
approval threshold. In November 2018, local measures in San Jose, Santa Rosa, and Richmond narrowly 
failed to reach the 66 percent requirement and measures that were successful such as Measure W in San 
Mateo County barely surpassed the two-thirds threshold after almost a month of vote counting. 


PURPOSE: 
ACA 1 is a re-introduction of ACA 4 (Aguiar-Curry) from 2017. If approved by two-thirds vote of the 
Legislature, the bill would place before voters a Constitutional Amendment to lower the vote threshold for 
local special taxes and bonds to fund affordable housing and public infrastructure projects from two-thirds 
to 55 percent. The bill defines affordable housing to include housing developments, or portions of housing 
developments, that provide workforce housing affordable to households earning up to 150 percent of 
countywide median income, and housing developments that provide housing affordable to lower, low-, or 
very low-income households. Public infrastructure is defined to include improvements to transit, streets and 
highways; water protection/quality; sanitary sewers; wastewater treatment; protection of property from sea 
level rise; parks; open space and recreational facilities; flood control; broadband internet access; and local 
hospital construction. 


BART IMPACT: 
ACA 1 would assist Bay Area cities, counties, and special districts in raising local funds to address the 
regional housing crisis and invest in public infrastructure. BART transit-oriented development and 
improvements to infrastructure are some of the projects that could benefit from additional funding approved 
through a lower voter threshold. 


KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
Support: Pending. 


Opposition: None on file. 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
BART has long supported proposed constitutional amendments to lower the voter threshold for 
transportation improvements. Most recently, BART supported ACA 4 and SCA 6 (Wiener) in 2017. ACA 


1 







4 was referred to the Assembly Local Government and Appropriations Committees but was never set for a 
hearing. SCA 6 would have lowered the voter approval threshold for a local government to impose, extend, 
or increase a special tax for "transportation purposes" from two-thirds to 55 percent. SCA 6 died in the 
Senate Appropriations Committee. 


The Committee to House the Bay Area (CASA), as convened by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission and Association of Bay Area Governments, has included in their CASA Compact a call to lower 
the voter threshold for special taxes or bonds related to affordable housing and public infrastructure. 


STATUS: 
Introduced on 12/03/18; pending referral in the Assembly. 


RECOMMENDATION: 
181 Support 


Analysis completed on 02/19/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 


2 







CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE-2019-20 REGULAR SESSION 


Assembly Constitutional Amendment No.1 


Introduced by Assembly Member Aguiar-Curry 
(Coauthors: Assembly Members Chiu, Eggman, Eduardo Garcia, 


Gloria, McCarty, Mullin, Santiago, and Ting) 


December 3, 2018 


Assembly Constitutional Amendment No .. 1-A resolution to propose 
to the people of the State of California an amendment to the Constitution 
of the State, by amending Sections 1 and 4 of Article XIII A thereof, 
by amending Section 2 of, and by adding Section 2.5 to, Article XIII 
C thereof, by amending Section 3 of Article XIII D thereof, and by 
amending Section 18 of Article XVI thereof, relating to local finance. 


LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 


ACA 1, as introduced, Aguiar-Curry. Local government financing: 
affordable housing and public infrastructure: voter approval. 


(1) The California Constitution prohibits the ad valorem tax rate on 
real property from exceeding 1 % of the full cash value of the property, 
subject to certain exceptions. 


This measure would create an additional exception to the 1 % limit 
that would authorize a city, county, or city and county to levy an ad 
valorem tax to service bonded indebtedness incurred to fund the 
construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of public 
infrastructure or affordable housing, if the proposition proposing that 
tax is approved by 55% of the voters of the city, county, or city and 
county, as applicable, and the proposition includes specified 
accountability requirements. 


(2) The California Constitution conditions the imposition of a special 
tax by a local government upon the approval of ?'j of the voters of the 


/ 


99 







ACAl -2-


local government voting on that tax, and prohibits these entities from 
imposing an ad valorem tax on real property or a transactions or sales 
tax on the sale of real property. 


This measure would authorize a local government to impose, extend, 
or increase a sales and use tax or transactions and use tax imposed in 
accordance with specified law or a parcel tax,· as defined, for the 
purposes of funding the construction, rehabilitation, or replacement of 
public infrastructure or affordable housing, if the proposition proposing 
that tax is approved by 55% of its voters voting on the proposition and 
the proposition includes specified accountability requirements. This 
measure would also make conforming changes to related provisions. 


(3) The California Constitution prohibits specified local government 
agencies from incurring any indebtedness exceeding in any year the 
income and revenue provided in that year, without the assent of 3'j of 
the voters and subject to other conditions. In the case of a school district, 
community college district, or county office of education, the California 
Constitution permits a proposition for the incurrence of indebtedness 
in the form of general obligation bonds for the construction, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities, 
including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, or the 
acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities, to be adopted 
upon the approval of 55% of the voters of the district or county, as 
appropriate, voting on the proposition at an election. 


This measure would similarly lower to 55% the voter-approval 
threshold for a city, county, or city and county to incur bonded 
indebtedness, exceeding in any year the income and revenue provided 
in that year, that is in the form of general obligation bonds issued to 
fund the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of 
public infrastructure or affordable housing projects, if the proposition 
proposing that bond includes specified accountability requirements. 


Vote: 2/i. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: no. 
State-mandated local program: no. 


1 Resolved by the Assembly, the Senate concurring, That the 
2 Legislature of the State of California at its 2017-18 Regular 
3 Session commencing on the fifth day of December 2016, two-thirds 
4 of the membership of each house concurring, hereby proposes to 
5 the people of the State of California, that the Constitution of the 
6 State be amended as follows: 


99 







-3- ACAl 


1 First-That Section 1 of Article XIII A thereof is amended to 
2 read: 
3 SECTION 1. (a) The maximum amount of any ad valorem 
4 tax on real property shall not exceed-Bne 1 percent-fl-%1 of the 
5 full cash value of--stteh that property. The-em:e 1 percent-fl-%1 tax 
6 te- shall be collected by the counties and apportioned according to 
7 law to the districts within the counties. 
8 (b) The limitation provided for in subdivision (a) shall not apply 
9 to ad valorem taxes or special assessments to pay the interest and 


10 redemption charges on any of the following: 
11 (1) Indebtedness approved by the voters prior to before July 1, 
12 1978. 
13 (2) Bonded indebtedness----fur to fund the acquisition or 
14 improvement of real property approved on or after July 1, 1978, 
15 by two-thirds of the votes cast by the voters voting on the 
16 proposition. 
17 (3) Bonded indebtedness incurred by a school district, 
18 community college district, or county office of education for the 
19 construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of 
20 school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school 
21 facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school 
22 facilities, approved by 55 percent of the voters of the district or 
23 county, as appropriate, voting on the proposition on or after-the 
24 effeetive date of the measure adding this paragraph. November 8, 
25 2000. This paragraph shall apply only if the proposition approved 
26 by the voters and resulting in the bonded indebtedness includes 
27 all of the following accountability requirements: 
28 (A) A requirement that the proceeds from the sale of the bonds 
29 be used only for the purposes specified in Artiele XIII A, Seetion 
30 l(b)(3), this paragraph, and not for any other purpose, including 
31 teacher and administrator salaries and other school operating 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 


expenses. 
(B) A list of the specific school facilities projects to be funded 


and certification that the school district board, community college 
board, or county office of education has evaluated safety, class 
size reduction, and information technology needs in developing 
that list. 


(C) A requirement that the school district board, community 
college board, or county office of education conduct an annual, 


99 







ACAl -4-


1 independent performance audit to ensure that the funds have been 
2 expended only on the specific projects listed. 
3 (D) A requirement that the school district board, community 
4 . college board, or county office of education conduct an annual, 
5 independent financial audit of the proceeds from the sale of the 
6 bonds until all of those proceeds have been expended for the school 
7 facilities projects: 
8 (4) (A) Bonded indebtedness incurred by a city, county, or city· 
9 and county for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or 


10 replacement of public infrastructure or affordable housing, or the 
11 acquisition or lease of real property for public infrastructure or 
12 affordable housing, approved by 55 percent of the voters of the 
13 city, county, or city and county as appropriate, voting on the 
14 proposition on or after the effective date of the measure adding 
15 this paragraph. This paragraph shall apply only if the proposition 
16 approved by the voters and resulting in the bonded indebtedness 
17 includes all of the following accountability requirements: 
18 (i) A requirement that the proceeds from the sale of the bonds 
19 be used only for the purposes spedfied in this paragraph, and not 
20 for any other purpose, including city, county, or city and county 
21 employee salaries and other operating expenses. 
22 (ii) A list of the specific projects to be funded, and a certification 
23 that the city, county, or city and county has evaluated alternative 
24 funding sources. 
25 (iii) A requirement that the city, county, or city and county 
26 conduct an annual, independent performance audit to ensure that 
27 the funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed. 
28 (iv) A requirement that the city, county, or city and county 
29 conduct an annual, independent financial audit of the proceeds 
30 from the sale of the bonds until all of those proceeds have been 
31 expended for the public infrastructure or affordable housing 
32 projects, as applicable. 
33 (v) A requirement that the city, county, or city and county post 
34 the audits required by clauses (iii) and (iv) in a manner that is 
35 easily accessible to the public. 
36 (vi) A requirement that the city, county, or city and county 
37 appoint a citizens' oversight committee to ensure that bond 
3 8 proceeds are expended only for the purposes described in the 
39 measure approved by the voters. 


99 







-5- ACAl 


1 (BJ For purposes of this paragraph, "affordable housing" shall 
2 include housing developments, or portions of housing 
3 developments, that provide wor/iforce housing affordable to 
4 households earning up to 150 percent of countywide median 
5 income, and housing developments, or portions of housing 
6 developments, that provide housing affordable to lower, low-, or 
7 very low income households, as those terms are defined in state 
8 law. 
9 (CJ For purposes of this paragraph, "public infrastructure " 


10 shall include, but is not limited to, projects that provide any of the 
11 following: 
12 (i) Water or protect water quality. 
13 (ii) Sanitary sewer. 
14 (iii) Treatment of wastewater or reduction of pollution from 
15 stormwater runojf. 
16 (iv) Protection of property from impacts of sea level rise. 
17 (v) Parks. 
18 (vi) Ope_n space and recreation facilities. 
19 (vii) fmprovements to transit and streets and highways. 
20 (viii) Flood control. · 
21 (ix) Broadband Internet access service expansion in underserved 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 


areas. 
(x) Local hospital construction. 
(c) (I) Notwithstanding any other provisions oflaw or of this 


Constitution, a school distriets, district, community college 
districts, and district, or county offices office of education may 
levy a 55 percent vote ad valorcm tax pursuant to paragraph (3) 
of subdivision (b ). 


(2) Notwithstanding any other provisions of law or this 
Constitution, a city, county, or city and county may levy a 55 
percent ad valorem tax pursuant to paragraph ( 4) of subdivision 
(b). 


Second-That Section 4 of Article XIII A thereof is amended 
to read: 


SEC. 4. Cities, Couftties and special disttiets, Except as 
provided by Section 2.5 of Article X//IC, a city, county, or special 
district, by a two-thirds vote of the qualified eleetors of sueh 
district, its voters voting on the proposition, may impose special 
taxes on sueh district, a special tax within that city, county, or 
special district, except an ad valorem-taxes tax on real property 


99 







ACA1 -6-


1 or a tumsaetion transactions tax or sales tax on the sale of real 
2 property within sueh City, County that city, county, or special 
3 district. 
4 Third-That Section 2 of Article XIII C thereof is amended to 
5 read: 
6 SEC. 2. Loeal Government Tax Limitation. Notwithstanding 
7 any other provision of this Constitution: 
8 (a) All taxes Any tax imposed by-any a local government-shall 
9 be deemed to be is either a general-taxes tax or a special-taxes-; 


10 Speeial purpose distriets tax. A special district or ageneies, agency, 
11 including a school distriets, shall have no povv'er district, has no 
12 authority to levy a general-taxes; tax. 
13 (b) No-A local government may not impose, extend, or increase 
14 any general tax unless and until that tax is submitted to the 
15 electorate and approved by a majority vote. A general tax-shall is 
16 not-be deemed to have been increased if it is imposed at a rate not 
17 higher than the maximum rate so approved. The election required 
18 by this subdivision shall be consolidated with a regularly scheduled 
19 general election for members of the governing body of the local 
20 government, except in cases of emergency declared by a unanimous 
21 vote of the governing body. 
22 ( c) Any general tax imposed, extended, or increased, without 
23 voter approval, by any local government on or after January 1, 
24 1995, and prior to before the effective date of this article,--shaH 
25 may continue to be imposed only if that general tax is approved 
26 by a majority vote of the voters voting in an election on the issue 
27 of the imposition, which election shall be held ·.vithin two years 
28 of the effeetive date of this artiele no later than November 6, 1996, 
29 and in compliance with subdivision (b ). 
30 (d) No-Except as provided by Section 2.5, a local government 
31 may not impose, extend, or increase any special tax unless and 
32 until that tax is submitted to the electorate and approved by a 
33 two-thirds vote. A special tax-shall is not-be deemed to have been 
34 increased if it is imposed at a rate not higher than the maximum 
35 rate so approved. 
36 Fourth-That Section 2.5 is added to Article XIII C thereof, to 
37 read: 
38 SEC. 2.5. (a) The imposition, extension, or increase of a sales 
39 and use tax imposed in accordance with the Bradley-Burns Uniform 
40 Local Sales and Use Tax Law (Part 1.5 ( commencing with Section 


99 







-7- ACAl 


1 7200) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code) or a 
2 successor law, a transactions and use tax imposed in accordance 
3 with the Transactions and Use Tax Law (Part 1.6 (commencing 
4 with Section 7251) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 
5 Code) or a successor law, or a parcel tax imposed by a local 
6 government for the purpose of funding the construction, 
7 reconstruction, rehabilitation, or replacement of public 
8 infrastructure or affordable housing, or the acquisition or lease of 
9 real property for public infrastructure or affordable housing, is 


10 ~ubject to approval by 55 percent of the voters in the local 
11 government voting on the proposition, if both of the following 
12 conditions are met: 
13 (1) The proposition is approved by a majority vote of the 
14 membership of the governing board of the local government. 
15 (2) The proposition contains all of the following accountability 
16 requirements: 
17 (A) A requirement that the proceeds of the tax only be used for 
18 the purposes specified in the proposition, and not for any other 
19 purpose, including general employee salaries and other operating 
20 expenses of the local government. 
21 (B) A list of the specific projects that are to be funded by the 
22 tax, and a certification that the local government has evaluated 
23 alternative funding sources. 
24 (C) A requirement that the local government conduct an annual, 
25 independent performance audit to ensure that the proceeds of the 
26 special tax have been expended only on the specific projects listed 
27 in the proposition. 
28 (D) A requirement that the local government conduct an annual, 
29 independent financial audit of the proceeds from the tax during 
30 the lifetime of that tax. 
31 (E) A requirement that the local government post the audits 
32 required by subparagraphs (C) and (D) in a manner that is easily 
33 accessible to the public. 
34 (F) A requirement that the local government appoint a citizens' 
35 oversight committee to ensure the proceeds of the special tax are 
36 expended only for the purposes described in the measure approved 
3 7 by the voters. 
38 (b) For purposes ofthis section, the following terms have the 
39 following meanings: 


99 







ACAl -8-


1 (1) ''Affordable housing" shall include housing developments, 
2 or portions of housing developments, that provide workforce 
3 housing affordable to households earning up to 150 percent of 
4 countywide median income, and housing developments, or portions 
5 of housing developments, that provide housing affordable to lower, 
6 low-, or very low income households, as those terms are defined 
7 in state law. 
8 (2) "Parcel tax" means a special tax imposed upon a parcel of 
9 real property at a rate that is determined without regard to that 


10 property's value and that applies uniformly to all taxpayers or all 
11 real property within the jurisdiction of the local government. 
12 "Parcel tax" does not include a tax imposed on a particular class 
13 of property or taxpayers. 
14 (3) "Public infrastructure" shall include, but is not limited to, 
15 the projects that provide any of the following: 
16 (A) Water or protect water quality. 
17 (B) Sanitary sewer. 
18 (C) Treatment of wastewater or reduction of pollution from 
19 stormwater runoff. 
20 (D) Protection of property from impacts of sea level rise. 
21 (E) Parks. 
22 (F) Open space and recreation facilities. 
23 (G) Improvements to transit and streets and highways. 
24 (H) Flood control. 
25 (I) Broadband Internet access service expansion in underserved 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 


areas. 
(J) Local hospital construction. 
Fifth-That Section 3 of Article XIII D thereof is amended to 


read: 
SEC. 3. Property Taxes, Assessments, Fees and Charges 


Limited. (a) Ntr An agency shall not assess a tax, assessment, fee, 
or charge · shall be assessed by any agency· upon any parcel of 
property or upon any person as an incident of property ownership 
except: 


(1) The ad valorem property tax imposed pursuant to Article 
XIII and Article XIIIA. 


(2) Any special tax receiving a two-thirds vote pursuant to 
Section 4 of Article XIII kA or Section 2. 5 of Article XIII C. 


(3) Assessments as provided by this article. 


99 







-9- ACAl 


1 ( 4) Fees or charges for property related property-related services 
2 as provided by this article. 
3 (b) For purposes of this article, fees for the provision of electrical 
4 or gas service-shall are not-be deemed charges or fees imposed as 
5 an incident of property ownership. 
6 Sixth-That Section 18 of Article XVI thereof is amended to 
7 read: 
8 SEC. 18. (a) Ntt---A county, city, town, township, board of 
9 education, or school district, shall not incur any indebtedness or 


10 liability in any manner or for any purpose exceeding in any year 
11 the income and revenue provided for--stteh that year, without the 
12 assent of two-thirds of the voters of the public entity voting at an 
13 election to be held for that purpose, except that with respect to any 
14 such public entity which is authorized to incur indebtedness for 
15 public school purposes, any proposition for the incurr~nce of 
16 . indebtedness in the form of general obligation bonds for the 
17 purpose of repairing, reconstructing or replacing public school 
18 buildings determined, in the manner prescribed by law, to be 
19 structurally unsafe for school use, shall be adopted upon the 
20 approval of a majority of the voters of the public entity voting on 
21 the proposition at such election; nor unless before or at the time 
22 of incurring such indebtedness provision shall be made for the 
23 collection of an annual tax sufficient to pay the interest on such 
24 indebtedness as it falls due, and to provide for a sinking fund for 
25 the payment of the principal thereof, on or before maturity, which 
26 shall not exceed forty years from the time of contracting the · 
27 indebtedness. 
28 (b) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), on or after the effective 
29 date of the measure adding this subdivision, in the ease of any 
30 sehool district, eommttnity eollege distriet, or eounty offiee of 
31 edueation, any proposition for the incurrence of indebtedness in 
32 the form of general obligation bonds for the eonstruetion, 
3 3 reeonstruction, rehabilitation, 01 1 eplaeement of sehool faeilities, 
34 ineluding the furnishing and equipping of sehool faeilities, or the 
35 aequisition or lease of real propert) for sehool faeilities,for the 
36 purposes described in paragraph (3) or (4) of subdivision (b) of 
37 Section 1 of Article XIIIA shall be adopted upon the approval of 
38 55 percent of the voters of the disttiet or eounty, school district, 
39 community college district, county office of education, city, county, 
40 or city and county, as appropriate, voting on the proposition at an 


99 







ACAl -10-


1 election. This subdivision shall apply-only to a proposition for the 
2 incurrence of indebtedness in the form of general obligation bonds 
3 for the purposes specified in this subdivision only if the proposition 
4 meets all of the accountability requirements of paragraph (3) or 
5 (4) of subdivision-fb} (b), as appropriate, of Section 1 of Article 
6 XIIIA. 
7 
8 
9 


10 
11 
12 
13 


( c) When two or more propositions for incurring any 
indebtedness or liability are submitted at the same election, the 
votes cast for and against each proposition shall be counted 
separately, and-when if two-thirds or a majority or 55 percent of 
the voters, as the case may be, voting on any one of those 
propositions, vote in favor thereof, the proposition shall be deemed 
adopted. 


0 


99 







SB 42 (Skinner) Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: SB 42-Getting Home Safe Act 


AUTHOR(S): Skinner (D-Berkeley) 


SPONSOR(S): The Young Women's Freedom Center 


BACKGROUND: 
Existing law authorizes a county sheriff to discharge a person from a county jail at any time on the last day 
that the person may be confined. Existing law additionally authorizes a sheriff to offer a voluntary program 
to a person, upon completion of a sentence served or a release ordered by the court, that would allow the 
person to stay in jail for up to 16 additional hours or until normal business hours in order to offer the person 
the ability to be discharged to a treatment center or during daytime hours. County sheriffs offering this 
program are required to allow the person to make a telephone call to arrange for transportation or to notify 
his or her bail agent. 


PURPOSE: 
Beginning June 1, 2020, SB 42 would require a county sheriff to make the release standards, release 
processes, and release schedules of a county jail available to the public and to incarcerated persons. The bill 
would provide a person with the right to request that, upon release from a county jail, they be assisted in 
entering a drug or alcohol rehabilitation program and would require the county jail to provide or arrange 
transportation directly from jail to a rehabilitation program or hospital free of charge. 


SB 42 would also require a person scheduled to be released from jail during normal business hours. If 
circumstances prevent such a release, then the person would have the option to stay voluntarily up to 16 
additional hours. If a person declines this option, they must be provided the opportunity to choose from 
specified alternatives, such as free transportation to a location of the person's choosing within the county or 
within a 100-mile radius. The bill would also require a person who is released from jail after being 
incarcerated for more than 30 days to be provided with at least 3 days' supply of any necessary medication. 


The bill directs the Board of State and Community Corrections to establish the Late-Night Release 
Prevention Task Force to be composed of relevant stakeholders, including women and children who have 
been incarcerated. The task force would be required to submit a report on January 1, 2022, to the relevant 
policy and budget committees of the Legislature about the progress made by the task force in implementing 
these provisions and make suggestions for any additional legislation necessary to prevent dangerous late
night releases at county jails throughout California. 


BART IMPACT: 
Jessica St. Louis was released from Alameda County's Santa Rita Jail in the early morning hours on July 28, 
2018. At the time of her release, she was provided a BART ticket; however, the nearest BART station was 
located a mile and a half from the jail and was not yet open. Jessica St. Louis was found dead later that day 
at the passenger pick-up/drop off area of the Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station. 


1 







SB 42 seeks to prevent similar incidences and ensure that people released from county jails can get home 
safely by limiting the practice of late-night releases. If a person must be released during non-business hours, 
SB 42 would ensure individuals are given more than a BART ticket and provided access to a phone, free 
transportation, and other supportive services. 


KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
Support: The Young Women's Freedom Center (sponsor), Essie Justice Group, Anti-Police Terror Project, 
Communities United for Restorative Youth Justice, Lawyers Committee for Civil Rights, San Francisco 
Sheriffs Department, The W. Haywood Bums Institute, Western Center on Law and Poverty 


Opposition: None on file. 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
SB 42 is a re-introduction of Senator Skinner's SB 1142 from last session. SB 1142 was referred to the 
Senate Rules Committee, but was never set for a hearing. 


STATUS: 
Introduced on 12/03/18; referred to the Senate Public Safety Committee on 1/16/19. 


RECOMMENDATION: 
~ Support 


Analysis completed on 02/19/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 


2 







SENATE BILL No. 42. 


Introduced by Senator Skinner 


December 3, 2018 


An act to amend and repeal Section 4024 of, and to add Sections 
4024.5 and 4024.6 to, the Penal Code, relating to jails. 


LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 


SB 42, as introduced, Skinner. The Getting Home Safe Act. 
Existing law authorizes a county sheriff to discharge a person from 


a county jail at any time on the last day that the person may be confined 
that the sheriff considers to be in the best interests of that person. 
Existing law additionally authorizes a sheriff to offer a voluntary 
program to a person, upon completion of a sentence served or a release 
ordered by the court to be effected the same day, that would allow the 
person to stay in jail for up to 16 additional hours or until normal 
business hours, whichever is shorter, in order to offer the person the 
ability to be discharged to a treatment center or during daytime hours, 
as specified. Existing law authorizes the person to revoke his or her 
consent and be discharged as soon as possible and practicable. Existing 
law requires a sheriff offering this program to, whenever possible, allow 
the person to make a telephone call to arrange for transportation or to 
notify his or her bail agent, as specified. 


This bill would make these provisions inoperative on June 1, 2020, 
and would repeal it as of January 1, 2021. 


The bill, beginning June 1, 2020, would instead require the sheriff to 
make the release standards, release processes, and release schedules of 
a county jail available to the public and to incarcerated persons, as 
specified. The bill would provide a person with the right to request that, 
upon his or her release from a county jail, he or she be assisted in 
entering a drug or alcohol rehabilitation program, and would require 


99 







SB42 -2-


the county jail to provide or arrange transportation directly from jail to 
a rehabilitation program or hospital free of charge immediately upon 
release from jail. The bill would also require a person scheduled to be 
released from jail between the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. or sundown, 
whichever is later, to be released during that time. The bill would require 
the sheriff to offer a person scheduled to be released from jail between 
the hours of 5 p.m. or sundown, whichever is later, and 8 a.m. the option 
to voluntarily stay in jail for up to 16 additional hours or until normal 
business hours, as specified. The bill would require the person, if he or 
she declines this option, to be provided the opportunity to choose from 
specified alternatives, such as free transportation to a location of the 
person's choosing within the county or within a 100-mile radius,· 
whichever is further. The bill would also require a person who is 
released from jail after being incarcerated for more than 30 days to be 
provided with at least 3 days' supply of any necessary medication. 
Because this bill would impose new duties on sheriffs and county jails, 
it would impose a state-mandated local program. The bill would 
authorize a violation of the rights described in these provisions to be 
submitted to the Board of State and Community Corrections, 
Ombudsman. The bill would require the board to convene a stakeholder 
group that includes women and girls who have been incarcerated to aid 
in developing protocols for receiving and responding to reports of 
violations of these provisions. 


The bill would also require the Board of State and Community 
Corrections to establish the Late-Night Release Prevention Task Force. 
The bill would require the task force to be composed· of relevant 
stakeholders, including women and children who have been incarcerated, 
and would require the task force, among other duties, to submit a report 
on January 1, 2022, to the relevant policy and budget committees of 
the Legislature about the progress made by the task force in 
implementing these provisions and make suggestions for any additional 
legislation necessary to prevent dangerous late-night releases at county 
jails throughout California. 


The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local 
agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. 
Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement. 


This bill would provide that, if the Commission on State Mandates 
determines that the bill contains costs mandated by the state, 
reimbursement for those costs shall be made pursuant to the statutory 
provisions noted above. 


99 







-3- SB42 


Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. 
State-mandated local program: yes. 


The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 


1 SECTION 1. (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the 
2 following: 
3 (1) Women o.f color are more commonly criminalized for 
4 noncriminal behavior than other demographic groups and are 
5 treated like perpetrators when they call for help or are suffering a 
6 
7 
8 
9 


10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 


CflSIS. 


(2) The overrepresentation of women of color in our county 
jails is evidence of these injustices and the disregard with which 
they are discharged from county jails only worsens the harm they 
experience as a result. 


(3) Despite legislation passed and signed in 2014 that allowed 
county jails to voluntarily participate in a program that would 
reduce the number of late-night releases throughout California, 
few jails have changed their release policy and, instead, jails 
continue to regularly release jailed persons during late-night hours. 


( 4) The lack of free phone services available to people during 
detention and the inability to charge personal cell phones upon 
release exacerbates the danger of late-night releases. 


(5) This practice is especially dangerous for women, including 
transgender women, who become targets for physical abuse, sexual 
abuse, and sex trafficking from predators who are familiar with 
county jail late-night release practices. 


(6) The release of people from a county jail during late-night 
hours is not only dangerous for the person being released but also 
for the public health and safety of the community at large. 


(7) Persons who suffer from mental illness or substance 
addiction are far less likely to be able to access immediate 
treatment services following a late-night release from county jail. 


(8) Intentional or not, these release policies are cruel and fail 
to acknowledge the often significant lived trauma that people, 
especially women, who are involved in the criminal justice system 
have experienced. 


(9) There is no recidivism prevention or public safety purpose 
of county jail late-night release policies that would substantiate 
the need for counties to maintain them. In fact, the lack of access 


99 







SB42 -4-


1 to essential reentry, family reunification, and transportation services 
2 means . these late-night release policies work contrary to 
3 crime-prevention goals. 
4 (10) Throughout California, women impacted by these late-night 
5 release policies have been thwarted in their efforts to end this 
6 practice, indicating that a statewide solution is needed. 
7 (b) It is the intent of the Legislature to ensure that people are 
8 released with expediency from comity jails with conditions that 
9 protect their health and maximize the likelihood of their success 


10 in preventing rearrest by establishing a statewide release standard 
11 for county jails to follow. ' 
12 SEC. 2. Section 4024 of the Penal Code is amended to read: 
13 4024. (a) The sheriff may discharge any prisoner from the 
14 county jail at such time on the last day such prisoner may be 
15 confined as the sheriff shall consider to be in the best interests of 
16 the prisoner. 
17 (b) (1) Upon completion of a sentence served by a prisoner or 
18 the release of a prisoner ordered by the court to be effected the 
19 same day, including prisoners who are released on their own 
20 recognizance, have their charges dismissed by the court, are 
21 acquitted by a jury, are cited and released on a misdemeanor 
22 charge, have posted bail, or have the charges against them dropped 
23 by the prosecutor, the sheriff may offer a voluntary program to the 
24 prisoner that would allow that prisoner to stay in the custody 
25 facility for up to 16 additional hours or until normal business hours, 
26 whichever is shorter, in order to offer the prisoner the ability to be 
27 discharged to a treatment center or during daytime hours. The 
28 prisoner may revoke his or her consent and be discharged as soon 
29 as possible and practicable. 
30 (2) This subdivision does not prevent the early release of 
31 prisoners as otherwise allowed by law or allow jails to retain 
32 prisoners any longer than otherwise required by law without the 
33 prisoner's express written consent. 
34 (3) Offering this voluntary program is an act of discretion within 
35 the meaning of Section 820.2 of the Government Code. 
36 ( 4) If a prisoner has posted bail and elects to participate in this 
37 program, he or she shall notify the bail agent as soon as possible 
38 and practicable of his or her decision to participate. 
39 (5) A sheriff offering this program shall, whenever possible, 
40 allow the prisoner volunteering to participate in the program to 


99 







-5- SB42 


1 make a telephone call to either arrange for transportation, or to 
2 notify the bail agent pursuant to paragraph (4), or both. 
3 (c) This section shall become inoperative (m June I, 2020, and 
4 as of January I, 2021, is repealed. 
5 SEC. 3. Section 4024.5 is added to the Penal Code, to read: 
6 4024.5. (a) This section shall be known as the Getting Home 
7 SafeAct. 
8 (b) The rights established in this section apply to any person 
9 being released from a county jail, including, but not limited to, a 


10 person who has completed a sentence served, been ordered by the 
11 court to be released, been released on his or her own recognizance, 
12 been released because his or her charges have been dismissed by 
13 the court, is acquitted by a jury, is cited and released on a 
14 misdemeanor charge, has posted bail, has complied with pretrial 
15 release conditions, or has had the charges dropped against him or 
16 her by the prosecutor. 
17 ( c) ( 1) A county sheriff shall make the release standards, release 
18 processes, and release schedules of a county jail available to the 
19 public and shall post them online to the sheriff's Internet Web site. 
20 The sheriff shall also make the release standards, release processes, 
21 and release schedules of a county jail available to a person when 
22 he or she is booked into a county jail and while he or she is 
23 incarcerated in a county jail. 
24 (2) The release standards shall include the list of rights 
25 enumerated in this section and the timeframe for the expedient 
26 release of a person following the determination to release that 
27 person by a judge, jury, or appropriate county staff member. 
28 (d) (1) A person shall have the right to request that, upon his 
29 or her release from a county jail, he or she be assisted in entering 
30 a drug or alcohol rehabilitation program. The person shall be 
31 allowed to make this request upon, or subsequent to, being booked 
32 into a county jail. 
33 (2) If the person chooses to enter a drug or alcohol rehabilitation 
34 program upon release from jail, the county jail shall provide or 
35 arrange transportation directly to a rehabilitation program or 
36 hospital free of charge immediately upon release. 
37 (e) A person incarcerated in or recently released from a county 
38 jail shall have access to up to three free telephone calls from a 
39 telephone in the county jail to plan for a safe and successful release 


99 







SB42 -6-


1 and shall also have access to a free cell phone charging station 
2 upon release from jail to charge his or her personal cell phone. 
3 (f) (1) A sheriff shall offer a person scheduled to be released 


· 4 from jail between the hours of 5 p.m. or sundown, whichever is 
5 later, and 8 a.m. the option to voluntarily stay in jail for up to 16 
6 additional hours or until normal business hours, whichever is 
7 shorter, in order to offer the person the ability to be discharged 
8 during daytime hours. 
9 (2) A person shall provide his or her written consent before 


10 choosing to stay voluntarily in jail as described in paragraph (1). 
11 However, a person may revoke his or her written consent at any 
12 time and be discharged from jail as soon as possible and 
13 practicable. 
14 (g) A person scheduled to be rtileased from county jail between 
15 the hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. or sundown, whichever is later, shall 
16 be released during that time. If the person is scheduled to be 
17 released from jail between the hours of 5 p.m. or sundown, 
18 whichever is later, and 8 a.m., and he or she has declined the option 
19 described in subdivision (f), he or she shall be provided the 
20 opportunity to choose from both of the following alternatives: 
21 (1) A safe place to wait for a person he or she knows to pick 
22 him or her up with adequate and sufficient ability to charge his or 
23 her own personal cell phone and access to a free public telephone. 
24 (2) Free transportation to a location of the person's choosing 
25 within the county or within a 100-mile radius, whichever is further. 
26 (h) A person who is released from jail after being incarcerated 
27 for more than 30 days shall receive at least three days' supply of 
28 any necessary medication. 
29 (i) This section does not prevent the early release of a person 
30 as otherwise allowed by law or allow a county jail to retain a person 
31 any longer than otherwise required or allowed by law without the 
32 person's express written consent. 
33 G) (1) A violation of the rights established by this act may be 
34 submitted to the Board of State and Community Corrections, 
35 Ombudsman. 
36 (2) (A) For purposes of developing protocols for receiving and 
37 responding to reports of violations of the rights established by this 
38 act, the board shall convene a stakeholder group that includes 
39 women and girls who have been incarcerated to aid in this effort. 


99 







-7- SB42 


1 (B) For purposes of this paragraph, "woman" means an 
2 individual who self-identifies her gender as a woman, without 
3 regard to her designated sex at birth. 
4 (k) This section shall become operative on June 1, 2020. 
5 SEC. 4. Section 4024.6 is added to the Penal Code, to read: 
6 4024.6. (a} (1) TheBoardofStateandCommunityCorrections 
7 shall establish the Late-Night Release Prevention Task Force. 
8 (2) The task force shall be composed of relevant stakeholders, 
9 including women and children who have been incarcerated. 


10 (b) The task force shall do both of the following: 
11 (1) Prepare any and all materials related to the implementation 
12 of the Getting Home Safe Act. 
13 (2) Develop recommended requirements for county jails to 
14 maintain records that adequately document the implementation of 
15 the Getting Home Safe Act, including how these records will be 
16 maintained and made available to the public. 
17 (c) (1) The task force shall submit a report on January 1, 2022, 
18 to the relevant policy and budget committees of the Legislature 
19 about the progress made by the task force in implementing this 
20 section and make suggestions for any additional legislation 
21 necessary to prevent dangerous late-night releases at county jails 
22 throughout California. 
23 (2) The requirement for submitting a report imposed under 
24 paragraph (1) is inoperative on January 1, 2026, pursuant to Section 
25 10231.5 of the Government Code. 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 


(d) For purposes of this section, "woman" means an individual 
who self-identifies her gender as a woman, without regard to her 
designated sex at birth. 


SEC. 5. If the Commission on State Mandates determines that 
this act contains costs mandated by the state, reimbursement to 
local agencies and school districts for those costs shaH be made 
pursuant to Part 7 (commencing with Section 17500) of Division 
4 of Title 2 of the Government Code. 


0 


99 







SB 50 (Wiener) Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: SB SO-Planning and zoning: housing development: equitable communities incentive 


AUTHOR(S): Senate: Wiener (D-San Francisco), Caballero (D-Salinas), Hueso (D-San Diego), 
Moorlach (R-Costa Mesa), Skinner (D-Berkeley) 


Assembly: Burke (D-Marina Del Rey), Kalra (D-San Jose), Kiley (R-Rocklin), Low (D-Campbell), Rivas 
(D-Hollister), Ting (D-San Francisco), Wicks (D-Oakland) 


SPONSOR(S): California YIMBY, Non-Profit Housing Association of Northern California 


BACKGROUND: 
Local governments play a lead role in determining the location and amount of housing in their jurisdictions, 
including which developments will be located near high-quality transit corridors. Legislative leaders, who 
believe the state needs to do more to address the housing crisis, have successfully passed measures related 
to planning and zoning, density bonuses, and parking requirements. These measures include SB 35 (Wiener, 
2017), which created a streamlined, ministerial approval process for eligible housing projects in localities 
that fail to meet their Regional Housing Needs Assessment target. Attempting to build on these efforts, 
Senator Wiener introduced SB 827 in 2018, that would have established state minimum zoning near high 
quality transit. The bill died in the Senate Transportation and Housing Committee. 


PURPOSE: 
SB 50, modeled after SB 827, establishes a new '·'equitable communities incentive" (ECI) option that a local 
jurisdiction would be required to offer a developer proposing a project that is either a "transit-rich housing 
project" or a "job-rich housing project." SB 50 would exempt a transit-rich or job-rich housing proj~ct from 
various local requirements including a waiver from controls on density; parking minimums; and maximum 
height requirements of 45 feet for projects within a one-half mile radius of transit and 55 feet within a one
quarter mile radius of transit. Eligible housing projects, which include an unspecified percent of affordable 
housing, would also receive up to three additional concessions or incentives outlined in current Density 
Bonus Law. A developer proposing a project may be eligible for streamlin.ed, ministerial approval if the 
project is in an area zoned to allow housing and complies with other specified local standards. 


SB 50 also contains provisions to address concerns regarding displacement and affordability. These 
provisions include: prohibition on demolishing buildings currently or recently occupied by renters; an 
inclusionary zoning policy that can only be met by providing housing for low, very low, or extremely low
income households; and delayed implementation in sensitive communities at risk of gentrification and 
displacement. 


BART IMP ACT: 
SB 50 is complimentary to many aspects of BART's Transit Oriented Develop (TOD) Policy because it 
incentivizes the building of housing near transit. BART stations by nature are major transit stops and could 
see an increase in the number of housing units built within a half-mile radius. Denser housing near BART 


1 







could increase ridership as data shows that residents within a half-mile of BART are twice as likely to walk, 
bike or take transit for their commute trip, and own fewer cars. In addition, housing next to high-quality 
transit offers a sustainable way to ensure ongoing ridership, which helps reduce freeway congestion and 
greenhouse gas emissions related to vehicle trips. 


In relation to AB 2923 (Chiu) passed last session, SB 50 has the potential to impact future residential 
developments pursued on BART-owned land. The bill only applies to sites already zoned for residential use 
and does not apply to public/unzoned sites or commercial zoned sites. SB 50 does not interfere with BART' s 
process for setting TOD standards for stations, but in some cases may provide additional incentives to a 
developer. For example, SB 50 grants eligible projects a waiver from maximum automobile parking 
requirements. BAR T's TOD Guidelines currently have a maximum parking requirement of 0.375 - 1 spot 
per unit depending on the station place type. SB 50 also grants residential developments located within a 
one-quarter mile radius of major transit a waiver from maximum height requirements less than 55 feet. This 
is potentially equal or greater than heights in the TOD, Guidelines for stations designated as 
Neighborhood/Town Center (five stories). 


As SB 50 progresses through the legislative process, staff may wish to continue to work with the author's 
office to understand the interplay between SB 50 and BART's authority through AB 2923. 


KNOWN.SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
Support: 
Abundant Housing Los Angeles; American Association of Retired Persons; Bay Area Council; Bay Area 
Housing Advocacy Coalition, California Apartment Association, California Asian Pacific Islander Chamber 
of Commerce, California Association of Realtors, California League of Conversation Voters; California 
Renters Legal Advocacy and Education Fund (CaRLA); California YIMBY (Sponsor); Co~ncil of Infill 
Builders; Councilmember Adrian Fine, City of Palo Alto; Councilmember Herb Perez, City of Foster City; 
Grow The Richmond; Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce; Mayor Gabe Quinto, City of El Cerrito; Mayor 
John Bauters, City of Emeryville; Mayor London Breed, City and County of San Francisco; Mayor Libby 
Schaaf, City of Oakland; Mayor Darrell Steinberg, City of Sacramento; Mayor Deborah Penrose, City of 
Half Moon Bay; Mission YIMBY; People for Housing - Orange County Yimby; Progress Noe Valley; San 
Francisco Housing Action Coalition; San Francisco Planning and Urban Research (SPUR); Silicon Valley 
Community Foundation; Silicon Valley Leadership Group; State Building and Construction Trades Council, 
AFL-CIO; Supervisor David Canepa of San Mateo County; Up For Growth, California; Valley Industry 
Commerce Association; Vice Mayor David Hagele, City of Sonoma; Supervisor Jim Spering, Solano 
County; YIMBY Action 


Opposition: Pending 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
In 2017, BART supported Wiener's SB 827. The bill would have exempted a transit-rich housing project 
within a half-mile of a major transit stop or quarter-mile of a stop on a "high quality transit corridor" from 
various local requirements including maximum controls on density and minimum parking. 


The Committee to House the Bay Area (CASA), as convened by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission and Association of Bay Area Governments, has included in their CASA Compact a call for 
minimum zoning near transit to address the Bay Area's affordable housing needs. 


2 







STATUS: 
Introduced on 12/13/18; referred to Senate Committee on Housing and Senate Committee on Governance 
and Finance on 1/24/19. · 


RECOMMENDATION: 
181 Support 


Analysis completed on 2/19/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 


3 







SB 50 (Wiener) Analysis and Recommendation 


TITLE: SB 50 -Planning and zoning: housing development: equitable communities incentive 


AUTHOR(S): Senate: Wiener (D-San Francisco), Caballero (D-Salinas), Hueso (D-San Diego), 
Moorlach (R-Costa Mesa), Skinner (D-Berkeley) 


Assembly: Burke (D-Marina Del Rey), Kalra (D-San Jose), Kiley (R-Rocklin), Low (D-Campbell), Rivas 
(D~Hollister), Ting (D-San Francisco), Wicks (D-Oakland) 


SPONSOR(S): California YIMBY, Non-Profit Housing Association of Northern California 


BACKGROUND: 
Local governments play a lead role in determining the location and amount of housing in their jurisdictions, 
including which developments will be located near high-quality transit corridors. Legislative leaders, who 
believe the state needs to do more to address the housing crisis, have successfully passed measures related 
to planning and zoning, density bonuses, and parking requirements. These measures include SB 35 (Wiener, 
2017), which created a streamlined, ministerial approval process for eligible housing projects in localities 
that fail to meet their Regional Housing Needs Assessment target. Attempting to build on these efforts, 
Senator Wiener introduced SB 827 in 2018, that would have established state minimum zoning near high 
quality transit. The bill died in the Senate Transportation and Housing Committee. 


PURPOSE: 
SB 50, modeled after SB 827, establishes a new "equitable communities incentive" option that a local 
jurisdiction would be required to offer a developer proposing a project that is either a "transit-rich housing 
project" or a "job-rich housing project." SB 50 would exempt a transit-rich or job-rich housing project from 
various local requirements including a waiver from controls on density; parking minimums; and maximum 
height requirements of 45 feet for projects within a one-half mile radius of transit and 55 feet within a one
quarter mile radius of transit. Eligible housing projects, which include an unspecified percent of affordable 
housing, would also receive up to three additional concessions or incentives outlined in current Density 
Bonus Law. A developer proposing a project may be eligible for streamlined, ministerial approval if the 
project is in an area zoned to allow housing and complies with other specified local standards. 


SB 50 also contains provisions to address concerns regarding displacement and affordability. These 
provisions include: a prohibition on demolishing buildings currently or recently occupied by renters; an 
inclusionary zoning policy that can only be met by providing housing for low, very low, or extremely low
income households; and delayed implementation in sensitive communities at risk of gentrification and 
displacement. 


BART IMP ACT: 
SB 50 is complimentary to many aspects ofBART's Transit Oriented Development (TOD) Policy because 
it incentivizes the building of housing near transit. BART stations by nature are major transit stops and could 
see an increase in the number of housing units built within a half-mile radius. Denser housing near BART 


1 







could increase ridership as data shows that residents within a half-mile of BART are twice as likely to walk, · 
bike or take transit for their commute trip, and own fewer cars. In addition, housing next to high-quality 
transit offers a sustainable way to ensure ongoing ridership, which helps reduce freeway congestion and 
greenhouse gas emissions related to vehicle trips. 


In relation to AB 2923 (Chiu and Grayson) passed last session, SB 50 has the potential to impact future 
residential developments pursued on BART-owned land. The bill only applies to sites already zoned for 
residential use and does not apply to public/unzoned sites or commercial zoned sites. SB 50 does not 
interfere with BART's process for setting TOD standards for stations, but in some cases may provide 
additional incentives to a developer. For example, SB 50 grants eligible projects a waiver from maximum 
automobile parking requirements. BART's TOD Guidelines currently have a maximum parking requirement 
of 0.375 - 1 spot per unit depending on the station place type. SB 50 also grants residential developments 
located within a one-quarter mile radius of major transit a waiver from maximum height requirements less 
than 55 feet. This is potentially equal or greater than heights in the TOD Guidelines for stations designated 
as Neighborhood/Town Center (five stories). 


As SB 50 progresses through the legislative process, staff may wish to continue to work with the author's 
office to understand the interplay between SB 50 and BART's authority through AB 2923. 


KNOWN SUPPORT/OPPOSITION: 
Support: 
Abundant Housing Los Angeles; American Association of Retired Persons; Bay Area Council; Bay Area 
Housing Advocacy Coalition, California Apartment Association, California Asian Pacific Islander Chamber 
of Commerce, California Association of Realtors, California League of Conversation Voters; California 
Renters Legal Advocacy and Education Fund (CaRLA); California YIMBY (Sponsor); Council of Infill 
Builders; Councilmember Adrian Fine, City of Palo Alto; Councilmember Herb Perez, City of Foster City; 
Grow The Richmond; Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce; Mayor Gabe Quinto, City of El Cerrito; Mayor 
John Bauters, City of Emeryville; Mayor London Breed, City and County of San Francisco; Mayor Libby 
Schaaf, City of Oakland; Mayor Darrell Steinberg, City of Sacramento; Mayor Deborah Penrose, City of 
Half Moon Bay; Mission YIMBY; People for Housing - Orange County Yimby; Progress Noe Valley; San 
Francisco Housing Action Coalition; San Francisco Planning and Urban Research (SPUR); Silicon Valley 
Community Foundation; Silicon Valley Leadership Group; State Building and Construction Trades Council, 
AFL-CIO; Supervisor David Canepa of San Mateo County; Up For Growth, California; Valley Industry 
Commerce Association; Vice Mayor David Hagele, City of Sonoma; Supervisor Jim Spering, Solano 
County; YIMBY Action 


Opposition: Pending 


OTHER COMMENTS: 
In 2017, BART supported Wiener's SB 827. The bill would have exempted a transit-rich housing project 
within a half-mile of a major transit stop or quarter-mile of a stop on a "high quality transit corridor" from 
various local requirements including maximum controls on density and minimum parking. 


The Committee to House the Bay Area (CASA), as convened by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission and Association of Bay Area Governments, has included in their CASA Compact a call for 
minimum zoning near transit to address the Bay Area's affordable housing needs. 


2 







STATUS: 
Introduced on 12/13/18; referred.to Senate Committee on Housing and Senate Committee on Governance 
and Finance on 1/24/19. 


RECOMMENDATION: 
181 Support 


Analysis completed on 2/19/19. 


D Watch D Oppose 


3 







SENATE BILL No. 50 


Introduced by Senator Wiener 
(Coauthors: Senators Caballero, Hueso, Moorlach, and Skinner) 


(Coauthors: Assembly Members Burke, Kalra, Kiley, Low, 
Robert Rivas, Ting, and Wicks) · 


December 3, 2018 


An act to add Chapter 4.35 (commencing with Section 65918.50) to 
Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code, relating to housing. 


LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 


SB 50, as introduced, Wiener. Planning and zoning: housing 
development: equitable communities incentive. 


Existing law, known as the Density Bonus Law, requires, when an 
applicant proposes a housing development within the jurisdiction of a 
local government, that the city, county, or city and county provide the 
developer with a density bonus and other incentives or concessions for 
the production of lower income housing units or for the donation of 
land within the development if the developer, among other things, agrees 
to construct a specified percentage of units for very low, low-, or 
moderate-income households or qualifying residents. 


This bill would require a city, county, or city and county to grant 
upon request an equitable communities incentive when a development 
proponent seeks and agrees to construct a residential development, as 
defined, that satisfies specified criteria, including, among other things, 
that the residential development is either a job-rich housing project or 
a transit-rich housing project, as those terms are defined; the site does 
not contain, or has not contained, housing occupied· by tenants or 
accommodations withdrawn from rent or lease in accordance with 
specified law within specified time periods; and the residential 
development complies with specified additional requirements under 


99 







SB50 -2-


existing law. The bill would require that a residential development 
eligible for an equitable communities incentive receive waivers from 
maximum controls on density and automobile parking requirements 
greater than 0.5 parking spots per unit, up to 3 additional incentives or 
concessions under the Density Bonus Law, and specified additional 
waivers if the residential development is located within a Vi-mile or 
~ -mile radius of a major transit stop, as defined. The bill would 
authorize a local government to modify or expand the terms of an 
equitable communities incentive, provided that the equitable 
communities incentive is consistent with these provisions. 


The bill would include findings that the changes proposed by this bill 
address a matter of statewide concern rather than a municipal affair 
and, therefore, apply to all cities, including charter cities. The bill would 
also declare the intent of the Legislature to delay implementation of 
this bill in sensitive communities, as defined, until July 1, 2020, as 
provided. 


By adding to the duties of local planning officials, this bill would 
impose a state-mandated local program. 


The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local 
agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. 
Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement. 


This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act 
for a specified reason. 


Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. 
State-mandated local program: yes. 


The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 


1 SECTION 1. Chapter 4.35 (commencing with Section 
2 65918.50) is added to Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government 
3 Code, to read: 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 


10 
11 
12 


CHAPTER 4.35. EQUITABLE COMMUNITIES INCENTIVES 


65918.50. For purposes of this chapter: 
(a) "Affordable" means available at affordable rent or affordable 


housing cost to, and occupied by, persons and families of extremely 
low, very low, low, or moderate incomes, as specified in context, 
and subject to a recorded affordability restriction for at least 55 
years. 


99 







-3- SB50 


1 (b) "Development proponent" means an applicant who submits 
2 an application for an equitable communities incentive pursuant to 
3 this chapter. 
4 ( c) "Eligible applicant" means a development proponent who 
5 receives an equitable communities incentive. 
6 (d) "FAR" means floor area ratio. 
7 ( e) "High-quality bus corridor" means a corridor with fixed 
8 route bus service that meets all of the following criteria: 
9 ( 1) It has average service intervals of no more than 15 minutes 


10 during the three peak hours between 6 a.m. to 10 a.in., inclusive, 
11 and the three peak hours between 3 p.m. and 7 p.m., inclusive, on 
12 Monday through Friday. 
13 (2) It has average service intervals of no more than 20 minutes 
14 during the hours of 6 a.m. to 10 a.m., inclusive, on Monday through 
15 Friday. 
16 (3) It has average intervals of no more than 30 minutes during 
17 the hours of 8 a.m. to 10 p.m., inclusive, on Saturday and Sunday. 
18 (f) "Job-rich housing project" means a residential development 
19 within an area identified by the Department of Housing and 
20 Community Development and the Office of Planning and Research, 
21 based on indicators such as proximity to jobs, high area median 
22 income relative to the relevant region, and high-quality public 
23 schools, as an area of high opportunity close to jobs. A residential 
24 development shall be deemed to be within an area designated as 
25 job-rich if both of the following apply: 
26 (1) All parcels within the project have no more than 25 percent 
27 of their area outside of the job-rich area. 
28 (2) No more than 10 percent of residential units or 100 units, 
29 whichever is less, of the development are outside of the job-rich 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 


area. 
(g) "Local' government" means a city, including a charter city, 


a county, or a city and county. 
(h) "Major transit stop" means a site containing an existing rail 


transit station or a ferry terminal served by either bus or rail transit 
service. 


(i) "Residential development" means a project with at least 
two-thirds of the square footage of the development designated 
for residential use. 


G) "Sensitive community" means an area identified by the 
Department of Housing and Community Development, in 


99 







SB50 -4-


1 consultation with local community-based organizations in each 
2 region, as an area vulnerable to displacement pressures, based on 
3 indicators such as percentage. of tenant households living at, or 
4 under, the poverty line relative to the region. 
5 (k) "Tenant" means a person residing in any of the following: 
6 (1) Residential real property rented by the person under a 
7 long-term lease. 
8 (2) A single-room occupancy unit. 
9 (3) An accessory dwelling unit that is not subject to, or does 


10 not have a valid permit in accordance with, an ordinance adopted 
11 by a local agency pursuant to Section 65852.22. 
12 (4) A residential motel. 
13 (5) Any other type of residential property that is not owned by 
14 the person or a member of the person's household, for which the 
15 person or a member of the person's household provides payments 
16 on a regular schedule in exchange for the right to occupy the 
17 residential property. 
18 (l) "Transit-rich housing project" means a residential 
19 development the parcels of which are all within a one-half mile 
20 radius of a major transit stop or a one-quarter mile radius of a stop 
21 on a high-quality bus corridor. A project shall be deemed to be 
22 within a one-half mile radius of a major transit stop or a one-quarter 
23 mile radius of a stop on a high-quality bus corridor if both of the 
24 following apply: 
25 (1) All parcels within the project have no more than 25 percent 


· 26 of their area outside of a one-half mile radius of a major transit 
27 stop or a one-quarter mile radius of a stop on a high-quality bus 
28 corridor. 
29 (2) No more than 10 percent of the residential units or 100 units, 
30 whichever is less, of the project are outside of a one-half mile 
31 radius of a major transit stop or a one-quarter mile radius of a stop 
32 on a high-quality bus corridor. 
33 65918.51. (a) A local government shall, upon request of a 
34 development proponent, grant an equitable communities incentive, 
35 as specified in Section 65918.53, when the development proponent 
36 seeks and agrees to construct a residential development that 
37 satisfies the requirements specified in Section 65918.52. 
38 (b) It is the intent of the Legislature that, absent exceptional 
39 circumstances, actions taken by a local legislative body that 


99 







-5- SBSO 


1 increase residential density not undermine the equitable 
2 communities incentive program established by this chapter. 
3 65918.52. In order to be eligible for an equitable communities 
4 incentive pursuant to this chapter, a residential development shall 
5 meet all of the following criteria: 
6 (a) The residential development is either a job-rich housing 
7 project or transit-rich housing project. 
8 (b) The residential development is located on a site that, at the 
9 time of application, is zoned to allow housing as an underlying 


10 use in the zone, including, but not limited to, a residential, 
11 mixed-use, or commercial zone, as defined and allowed by the 
12 local government. 
13 (c) (1) If the local government has adopted an inclusionary 
14 housing ordinance requiring that the development include a certain 
15 number of units affordable to households with incomes that do not 
16 exceed the limits for moderate-income, lower income, very low 
17 income, or extremely low income specified in Sections 50079.5, 
18 50093, 50105, and 50106 of the Health and Safety Code, and that 
19 ordinance requires that a new development include levels of 
20 affordable housing in excess of the requirements specified in 
21 paragraph (2), the residential development complies with that 
22 ordinance. 
23 (2) If the local government has not adopted an inclusionary 
24 housing ordinance, as described in paragraph (1 ), and the residential 
25 development includes __ or more residential units, the residential 
26 development includes onsite affordable housing for households 
27 with incomes that do not exceed the limits for extremely low 
28 income, very low income, and low income specified in Sections 
29 50093, 50105, and 50106 of the Health and Safety Code. It is the 
30 intent of the Legislature to require that any development of __ 
31 or more residential units receiving an equitable communities 
32 incentive pursuant to this chapter include housing affordable to 
33 low, very low or extremely low income households, which, for 
34 projects with low or very low income units, are no less than the 
35 number of onsite units affordable to low or very low income 
36 households that would be required pursuant to subdivision (f) of 
37 Section 65915 for a development receiving a density bonus of 35 
38 percent. 
3 9 ( d) The site does not contain, or has not contained, either of the 
40 following: 


99 







SBSO -6-


1 (1) Housing occupied by tenants within the seven years 
2 preceding the date of the application, including housing that has 
3 been demolished or that tenants have vacated prior to the 
4 application for a development permit. 
5 (2) A parcel or parcels on which an owner of residential real 
6 property has exercised his or her rights under Chapter 12.75 
7 ( commencing with Section 7060) of Division 7 of Title 1 to 
8 withdraw accommodations from rent or lease within 15 years prior 
9 to the date that the development proponent submits an application 


10 pursuant to this chapter. 
11 ( e) The residential development complies with all applicable 
12 labor, construction employment, and wage standards otherwise 
13 required by law and any other generally applicable requirement 
14 regarding the approval of a development project, including, but 
15 not limited to, the local government's conditional use or other 
16 discretionary permit approval process, the California 
1 7 Environmental Quality Act (Division 13 ( commencing with Section 
18 21 OOO) of the Public Resources Code), or a streamlined approval 
19 process that includes labor protections. 
20 (t) The residential development complies with all other relevant 
21 standards, requirements, and prohibitions imposed by the local 
22 government regarding architectural design, restrictions on or 
23 oversight of demolition, impact fees, and community benefits 
24 agreements. 
25 (g) The equitable communities incentive shall not be used to 
26 undermine the economic feasibility of delivering low-income 
27 housing under the state density bonus program or a local 
28 implementation of the state density bonus program, or any locally 
29 adopted program that puts conditions on new development 
30 applications on the basis of receiving a zone change or general 
31 plan amendment in exchange for benefits such as increased 
32 affordable housing, local hire, or payment of prevailing wages. 
33 65918.53. (a) A residential developmentthat meets the criteria 
34 specified in Section 65918.52 shall receive, upon request, an 
35 equitable communities incentive as follows: 
36 (1) Any eligible applicant shall receive the following: 
37 (A) A waiver from maximum controls on density. 
38 (B) A waiver from maximum automobile parking requirements 
39 greater thari 0.5 automobile parking spots per unit. 


99 







-7- SB50 


1 (C) Up to three incentives and concessions pursuant to 
2 subdivision (d) of Section 65915. 
3 (2) An eligible applicant proposing a residential development 
4 that is located within a one-half mile radius, but outside a 
5 one-quarter mile radius, of a major transit stop and includes no 
6 less than __ percent affordable housing units shall receive, in 
7 addition to the incentives specified in paragraph (1 ), waivers from 
8 all of the following: 
9 (A) Maximum height requirements less than 45 feet. 


10 (B) Maximum FAR requirements less than 2.5. 
11 (C) Notwithstanding subparagraph (B) of paragraph (1), any 
12 maximum automobile parking requirement. 
13 (3) An eligible applicant proposing a residential development 
14 that is located within a one-quarter mile radius of a major transit 
15 and includes no less than __ percent affordable housing units 
16 shall receive, in addition to the incentives specified in paragraph 
17 (1), waivers from all of the following: 
18 (A) Maximum height requirements less than 55 feet. 
19 (B) Maximum FAR requirements less than 3.25. 
20 (C) Notwithstanding subparagraph (B) of paragraph (1), any 
21 maximum automobile parking requirement. 
22 (4) Notwithstanding any other law, for purposes of calculating 
23 any additional incentive or concession in accordance with Section 
24 65915, the number of units in the residential development after 
25 applying the equitable communities incentive received pursuant 
26 to this chapter shall be used as the base density for calculating the 
27 incentive or concession under that section. 
28 (5) An eligible applicant proposing a project that meets all of 
29 the requirements under Section 65913.4 may submit an application 
30 for streamlined, ministerial approval in accordance with that 
31 section. 
32 (b) The local government may modify or expand the terms of 
33 an equitable communities incentive provided pursuant to this 
34 chapter, provided that the equitable communities incentive is 
35 consistent with, and meets the minimum standards specified in, 
36 this chapter. 
37 65918.54. The Legislature finds and declares that this chapter 
38 addresses a matter of statewide concern rather than a municipal 
39 affair as that term is used in Section 5 of Article XI of the 


99 







SB50 -8-


1 California Constitution. Therefore, this chapter applies to all cities, 
2 including charter cities. 
3 65918.55. (a) It is the intent of the Legislature that 
4 implementation of this chapter be delayed in sensitive communities 
5 until July 1, 2020. · 
6 (b) It is further the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation 
7 that does all of the following: 
8 (1) Between January 1, 2020, and __ , allows a local 
9 government, in lieu of the requirements of this chapter, to opt for 


10 a community-led planning process aimed toward increasing 
11 residential density and multifamily housing choices near transit 
12 stops. 
13 (2) Encourages sensitive communities· to opt for a 
14 community-led planning process at the neighborhood level to 
15 develop zoning and other policies that encourage multifamily 
16 housing development at a range of income levels to meet unmet 
17 needs, protect vulnerable residents from displacement, and address 
18 other locally identified priorities. 
19 (3) Sets minimum performance standards for community plans, 
20 such as minimum overall residential development capacity and 
21 the minimum affordability standards set forth in this chapter. 
22 (4) Automatically applies the provisions of this chapter on 
23 January 1, 2025, to sensitive communities that do not have adopted 
24 community plans that meet the minimum standards described in 
25 paragraph (3), whether those plans were adopted prior to or after 
26 enactment of this chapter. 
27 SEC. 2. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to 
28 Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because 
29 a local agency or school district has the authority to levy service 
30 charges, fees, or assessments sufficient to pay for the program or 
31 level of service mandated by this act, within the meaning of Section 
32 17556 of the Government Code. 


0 


99 








State 
Legislation for 
Consideration 
February 28, 2019 


BART Board of Directors 







BART Sponsored Legislation 


AB 923 (Wicks) 
BART Electricity Procurement and Delivery 
• Would amend PUC 708.1 to grant BART broader access to 


wholesale market resources, including power from the 
California Independent System Operator (CAISO) market 
and low-cost carbon-free energy sources. 


• The authority to procure electricity from additional sources of 
supply will enable BART to economically and efficiently meet 
its long-term electricity needs as well as achieve goals within 
the Board's adopted Wholesale Electricity Portfolio Policy. 


Government and Community Relations 2 







State Legislation of Interest -
. CASA.Compact 


Compact Item Related Legislation 
I 


Rent Cap AB 36 (Bloom) - Affordable housing: rental prices (Spot) 


Rental Assistance and SB 18 (Skinner) - Keep Californians Housed Act 
Legal Counsel 


Accessory Dwelling Units AB 68 (Ting) - Land use: accessory dwelling units 
AB 69 (Ting) - Land use: accessory dwelling units (Spot) 
·sB 13 (Wieckowski) - Accessory dwelling units (Spot) 


Minimum Zoning SB 4 (McGuire) - Accessory dwelling units (Spot) 


Streamlining 


Funding 


SB SO {Wiener) - Planning and zoning: housing development: equitable communities 
incentive 


SB 6 (Beall/McGuire)"' Housing production (Spot) 


SB 5 (Beall/McGuire) - Local-State Sustainable Investment Incentive Program 
AB 10 (Chiu) - Income taxes: credits low-income housing: farmworker housing 
AB 11 (Chiu) - Community Redevelopment Law of 2019 
ACA 1 (Aguiar-Curry) - Local government financing: affordable housing and public 
infrastructure: voter approval 


Government and Community Relations 







. 


State Legislation for Consideration 


SUPPORT 


ACA 1 {Aguiar-Curry) 
Local government financing: affordable housing and public 
infrastructure: voter approval 


SB 42 {Skinner) 
Getting Home Safe Act 


SB 50 {Wiener) 
Planning and zoning: housing development: equitable 
communities incentive 


Government and Community Relations 4 







